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Annexure 1

d sshionas
you are in safe hands

ASHIANA HOUSING LIMITED

Our Company was incorporated on 25"June 1986 in Kolkata as a public limited company under the Companies
Act, 1956.
Registered Office and Cor porate Office: 5F Everest, 46/C, Chowringhee Road, Kolkata-700 071
Unit No. 304-305, Southern Park, Saket District Centre, Saket New Delhi 110017
CIN: L70109WB1986PL C040864
PAN: AADCA9093P
Tel: +91 11 4265 4265 Fax: +91 11 4265 4200. E-mail: investorrel ations@ashianahousing.com, Website:

www.ashianahousing.com

Name, telephone number and email:

1. Promoters:

a) Mr. Vishal Gupta: Tel: +91 11 4265 4265, visha @ashianahousing.com;

b) Mr. Ankur Gupta: Tel: +91 11 4265 4265, ankur @ashianahousing.com;

¢) Mr. Varun Gupta: Tel: +91 11 4265 4265, varun.gupta@ashianahousing.com;

2. CFO: Mr. Vikash Dugar: Tel: +91 11 4265 4265, vikash.dugar @ashianahousing.com;
3. Compliance Officer/ Company Secretary: Mr. Nitin Sharma Tel: +91 11 4265 4265,
nitin.sharma@ashianahousing.com;

4, Details of Debenture Trustee, Registrar to the Issue, and Credit Rating Agency

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE
VISTRA ITCL Yy BEETAL
X - I '
Vistra I TCL (India) Limited Beetal Financial & Computer Services
Address. ThelL&FS Financial Centre, Plot No. C-22, G Private Limited
Block 7" Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Address: Beetal House, 3rd Floor, Near Baba
Mumbai Harsukhdas Mandir, Behind Local Shopping
Tel No. (022) 2653 3333, Fax No. (022) 2653 3297 Centre, Madangir, Delhi -110062
Contact person: Mr. Jatin Chonani Tel No. 011 29961281-83, Fax No. 011
Email: jatin.chonani @vistra.com 29961284

Contact person: Mr. Punit Mittal, Email:
beetal @bectalfinancial.com

CREDIT RATING AGENCY STATUTORY AUDITOR

B.Chhawchharia & Co.

*’.‘\- >4 o | - - -
CREEE Ratings Chartered Accountants
Address: 04" Floor, Godrej Coliseum, Somaiya Hospital B. Chhawchharia & Co (Chartered
Road, Off Eastern Express Highway, Sion (E),
Mumbai - 400 022.
Tel.: +91-22- 6754 3456, Fax: +91-22- 022 6754 3457 Address: DTJ 524 & 525, DLF Tower B, Jasola
Email: care@careratings.com, Webgte: WWW.careratings.com | ;i Centre, Jasola, New Delhi- 110025
Contact person: Ms. Divya Bhandari

Accountants)

Phone: 011-40378600

Email: abhishek@bcco.co.in

Contact person: Mr. Abhishek Gupta (C.A.
Membership No. 529082)
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Date of the Placement Memorandum: 16 February 2024.
Type of the Placement M emorandum: General Information Document

GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT DOCUMENT FOR THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF
UPTO 560 UNSECURED, LISTED, RATED, REDEEMABLE, NON-CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES OF RS. 1,00,000 (RUPEES ONE LAKHS) FACE VALUE EACH (THE
“DEBENTURES”) AGGREGATING TO RS. 5,60,00,000/- (RUPEESFIVE CRORESSIXTY LAKHY)
(THE “ISSUE”) TO BE ISSUED B ASHIANA HOUSING LIMITED (THE “ISSUER/ COMPAN ).
ALL DEBENTURESWILL BE OFFERED BY WAY OF GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENTS
(THE “GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT”) CONTAINING THE RESPECTIVE TERMS
AND CONDITIONSOF THE DEBENTURES.

This General Information Document dated 16" February 2024 (“General Information Document”)
incorporates the disclosures required under Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 14 of the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and Form PAS-4, therelevant provisions of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (the “SEBI
Debt Regulations”), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “SEBI LODR Regulations”) and SEBI circular dated August 10, 2021
bearing reference number SEBI/HO/DDHS/POD1/P/CIR/2023/119 on Operational Circular for issue and
listing of Non-convertible Securities, Securitised Debt Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal Debt
Securities and Commercial Paper (the “SEBI Operational Circular”), in each case, as amended from time to
time. This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of prospectus and does
not constitute an offer to the public generally to subscribe for or otherwise acquire the Debentures to be issued
by the Issuer. Compliance with electronic book mechanism and details pertaining to the uploading the issue
document on the Electronic Book Provider Platform as per Schedule 11 of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (issue and listing of non-convertible securities) regulations, 2021 and para 2.1 chapter VI of SEBI Master
Circular dated August 10, 2021 is currently not applicable.

Through this General Information Document, the Issuer isinviting applications for issue and allotment of 560
unsecured, listed, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures of Rs. 1,00,000 (Rupees One Lakhs) facevalue
each (the “Debentures”) aggregating to RS. 5,60,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crores Sixty Lakhs:

The Issue of the Debentures are subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Debt
Regulations, the SEBI Operational Circular, the SEBI LODR Regulations, the Memorandum of Association
and the Articles of Association of the Issuer, the Application Form and other terms and conditions as may be
incorporated in the Debenture Trust Deed and other documentsin relation to the Issue.

GENERAL RISKS

Investment in non-convertible securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in
such securities unless they can afford to take the risk attached to such investments. Investors are advised to
take an informed decision and to read the risk factors carefully before investing in this offering. For taking an
investment decision, investors must rely on their examination of the issue including the risks involved in it.
Secific attention of investorsisinvited to statement of risk factors contained under Section on Page No. 8§ of
this General Information Document. Theserisks are not, and are not intended to be, a completelist of all risks
and considerations relevant to the non-convertible securities or investor’s decision to purchase such
securities.”

ISSUER’S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILIT

“The issuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this
General Information Document contains all information with regard to the Issuer and the Issue which is
material in the context of the Issue, that the information contained in the General | nformation Document
istrueand correct in all material aspectsand isnot misleading, that the opinionsand intentions expressed
herein are honestly stated and that there are no other facts, the omission of which make this document as
a whole or any of such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading.”
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“Investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in this Issue. For
taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of theissuer and the offer including
the risks involved. The securities have not been recommended or approved by the any regulatory authority in
India, including the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or
adequacy of this document. Specific attention of investorsis invited zo the statement of ‘Risk factors’ given on
page number 8 under the section ‘Management Perception of Risk Factors’.”

“The Issuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for, and confirms that this Offer
Document contains all information with regard to the issuer and the issue, that the information contained in
the offer document is true and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect,
that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other facts, the
omission of which make this document as a whole or any of such information or the expression of any such
opinions or intentions misleading in any material respect.”

“The issuer has no side letter with any debt securities holder except the one(s) disclosed in the offer
document/placement memorandum. Any covenants later added shall be disclosed on the stock exchange
website where the debt is listed.”

CREDIT RATING

CARE Ratings Limited has assigned “CARE A (Stable)” rating to the Debentures through its letter dated 01%
February 2024. Press release of the credit rating can be viewed a the following
link:https://www.careratings.com/upload/CompanyFiles/PR/202402130214 Ashiana Housing Limited.pdf

Please refer to the Annexure 111 to this General Information Document for rationale for the above ratings.
The above ratings are not arecommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and Investors should take their own
decision. The ratings may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency and
should be evaluated independently of any other ratings.

LISTING

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the wholesale debt segment of BSE Limited. BSE Limited has
provided an ‘in-principle’ listing approval for the listing of the Debentures offered through this General
Information Document through its letter dated 07™" December 2023.

ELIGIBLE INVESTORS

The following categories of investors, who have been specifically approached by the Company and have been
identified upfront, are eligible to apply for this private placement of Debentures subject to fulfilling their
respective investment norms/rules and compliance with laws applicable to them by submitting all the relevant
documents along with the Application Form:
Foreign Portfolio Investors
Companies and bodies corporate including public sector undertakings
Scheduled commercia banks
Urban / Central / State / District / Primary Co-operative Banks
Regional rural banks
Financial institutions including development financial ingtitutions
I nsurance companies
Mutua funds
Provident funds, pension funds, superannuation funds and gratuity funds
Other Government / Non-Government Agencies/ Boards/ Institutions

e Any other investor(s) authorized to invest in these Debentures
All potential Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to them for
investing in this issue of Debentures. Further, participation by potential investorsin the Issue may be subject
to statutory and/or regulatory requirements applicable to them in connection with subscription to Indian
securities by such categories of persons or entities. Applicants are advised to ensure that they comply with all
regulatory requirements applicable to them, including exchange controls and other requirements. Applicants
ought to seek independent legal and regulatory advice in relation to the laws applicable to them.
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ISSUE SCHEDULE AND OTHER KEY ISSUE DETAILS

The Issue Opening Date, the Issue Closing Date and the Deemed Date of Allotment for issue will be informed
to the Trustee separately and shall be incorporated in the General Information Document. The Issue shall be
open for subscription during the banking hours on each day during the period covered by the | ssue Schedul e

ISSUE SCHEDULE
I ssue Opening Date 19 February 2024
Issue Closing Date 23 February 2024
Date of Earliest Closing 23 February 2024
Pay in Date 23 February 2024
Deemed Date of Allotment 23 February 2024

ISSUE HIGHLIGHTS*

Coupon Rate IAs per this General Information Document
Coupon Payment Frequency  |As per this General Information Document
Redemption Date IAs per this General Information Document
Redemption Amount IAs per this General Information Document

Details of Debenture Trustee Vistral TCL (India) Limited

Nature and | ssue Size Debentures: 560 unsecured, rated, redeemable, listed, non-convertible debentures
for face vaue of Rs. 1,00,000 each for an aggregate amount of up to Rs.
5,60,00,000.

Base I ssue As per the General Information Document

Issue Size Issue Size: Rs. 5,60,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crores Sixty Lakhs)

Details about Underwriting of | Not Applicable
the Issueincluding the Amount
Undertaken to be
Underwritten by the

*For further detailson thetermsof the Issue, please also refer the Section on 'Summary Term Sheet'

Compliance Clause:

Compliance with electronic book mechanism and details pertaining to the uploading the issue document on the
Electronic Book Provider Platform as per Schedule |1 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (issue and listing
of non-convertible securities) Regulations, 2021 and para 2.1 chapter VI of SEBI Master Circular dated August 10,
2021 iscurrently not applicable.
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DISCLAIMERS

This General Information Document contains relevant information and disclosures required for issuing of the
Debentures in accordance with Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus
and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, Form PAS-4, the SEBI LODR Regulations, the SEBI Operational
Circular, and the SEBI Debt Regulations. The Issuer shall file a copy of this General |nformation Document with
the Registrar of Companies within a period of 30 days of its circulation. The Issuer has, together with the
Application Form (provided in Annexure 1), offered the Debentures to identified Eligible Investors (defined
below) inviting subscription to the Debentures. Any application by a person to whom the General Information
Document has not been sent by the Issuer shall be rejected without assigning any reason.

The Issue described under this General Information Document has been authorised by the Issuer through a
resolution of the Board of Directors (defined below) of the | ssuer dated November 10, 2023, and the Memorandum
of Association and Articles of Association of the Issuer.

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Issuer dated November 10, 2023, in accordance with
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Issuer has been authorised to borrow within the overall borrowing
limits of the Company, on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may think fit.

This Genera Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus. The offering
of Debentures, to be listed on the wholesale debt market (“WDM?”) segment of SE Limited (“BSE”) is being
made strictly on a private placement basis. Multiple copies hereof given to the same entity shall be deemed to be
given to the same person and shall be treated as such. Nothing in this Genera Information Document shall
constitute and/or deem to constitute an offer or an invitation to offer to the public or any section thereof to
subscribe for or otherwise acquire the Debentures in general under any law for the time being in force.

The contents of this General Information Document are intended to be used only by those Eligible Investors to
whom the General Information Document is issued. It is not intended for distribution to any other person and
should not be reproduced by the recipient. No invitation is being made to any persons other than the Eligible
Investors to whom the General Information Document has been sent. Offer of the Debentures shall only be made
pursuant to this Genera Information Document.

This Genera Information Document isissued by the Issuer. This General Information Document does not purport
to contain all theinformation that any Eligible Investor may require. Further, this General Information Document
has been prepared for informational purposes relating to this transaction only and upon the express understanding
that it will be used only for the purposes set forth herein.

The Issuer confirms after having made all reasonable enquiries, that the information contained in this General
Information Document is true and correct in all material respects and is not misleading in any materia respect.
All information considered adequate and relevant about the Issue and the Issuer has been made available in this
General Information Document for the use and perusal of the potentia investors and no selective or additional
information would be avail able for a section of investorsin any manner whatsoever. The | ssuer does not undertake
to update the General Information Document to reflect subsequent events after the date of the General Information
Document and thus it should not be relied upon with respect to such subsequent events without first confirming
its accuracy with the I ssuer.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, PAS-4, the SEBI Debt Regulations, the SEBI LODR Regulations and SEBI
Operational Circular, the copy of this General Information Document shall be filed with the relevant Registrar of
Companies and SEBI within the stipulated timelines under applicable law. Unless agreed otherwise, the Issuer
accepts no responsibility for statements made other than in this General Information Document (and any relevant
pricing or other supplements) or any other material expressly stated to be issued by or at the instance of the | ssuer
in connection with the issue of the Debentures and that anyone placing reliance on any other source of information
would be doing so at their own risk.

The purpose of this General Information Document isto provide general information about the I ssuer and to assist
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recipients, who are willing and €eligible to invest in the Debentures. Neither this General Information Document
nor any other information supplied in connection with the Debenturesisintended to provide the basis of any credit
or other evaluation and any recipient of this General Information Document should not consider such receipt a
recommendation to purchase any Debentures.

Each investor contemplating purchasing any Debentures should make its own independent investigation of the
financial condition and affairs of the Issuer and make its own appraisal of the creditworthiness of the Issuer.
Eligible Investors should consult their own financial, legal, tax and other professional advisors asto the risks and
investment considerations arising from an investment in the Debentures.

Neither the intermediaries nor their agents nor advisors associated with the issue of Debentures undertake to
review the financial condition or affairs of the Issuer during the duration of the arrangements contemplated by
this Genera Information Document or have any responsibility to advise any investor or potential investor in the
Debentures of any information coming to the attention of any other intermediary.

Disclaimer of the Securities and Exchange Board of India

This Genera Information Document has not been, filed with or submitted to SEBI. The Debentures have not been
recommended or approved by SEBI nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this document. It isto
be distinctly understood that this General Information Document should not in any way be deemed or construed
to have been approved or vetted by SEBI. SEBI does not take any responsibility either for the financial soundness
of any proposal for which the Debentures issued hereof is proposed to be made or for the correctness of the
statements made or opinions expressed in this General Information Document. The issue of Debentures being
made on a private placement basis, filing of this General Information Document with SEBI isnot required. This
requirement is to facilitate to take an informed decision for making investment in the proposed issue.

Disclaimer in respect of Jurisdiction

I ssue of these Debentures have been/will be madein Indiato Eligible Investors as specified under paragraph titled
“Who Can Apply” in this General Information Document, who have been/shall be specifically approached by the
Company. This General Information Document is not to be construed or constituted as an offer to sell or an
invitation to subscribe to Debentures offered hereby to any person to whom it is not specifically addressed. The
Debentures are governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the existing Indian laws. Any dispute
arising in respect thereof will be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts and tribunals of the city of New
Delhi.

Disclaimer clause of the stock exchange.

Asrequired, adraft copy of this GID has been filed with BSE Limited in terms of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 as amended. It is to be distinctly understood that submission of this
GID to or BSE should not in any way be deemed or construed to mean that this GID has been reviewed, cleared,
or approved by BSE, nor does BSE in any manner warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of
any of the contents of this GID. BSE does not warrant that the NCDs will be listed or will continue to be listed on
BSE nor does BSE take any responsibility for the soundness of the financial and other conditions of the Company,
its sponsors, its management, or any activities of the Company.

Disclaimer clause of the credit rating agencies.

The ratingsissued by CARE Ratings Limited are opinions on the likelihood of timely payment of the obligations
under the rated instrument and are not recommendations to sanction, renew, disburse, or recall the concerned bank
facilities or to buy, sell or hold any security. These ratings do not convey suitability or price for the investor. The
agency does not constitute an audit on the rated entity. CARE Ratings Limited has based its ratings/outl ooks based
on information obtained from reliable and credible sources. CARE Ratings Limited does not, however, guarantee
the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any information and is not responsible for any errors or omissions and
the results obtained from the use of such information. Most entities whose bank facilities/instruments are rated by
CARE Ratings Limited have paid a credit rating fee, based on the amount and type of bank facilities/instruments.
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CARE Ratings Limited or its subsidiaries/associates may also be involved with other commercia transactions
with the entity. In case of partnership/proprietary concerns, the rating /outlook assigned by CARE Ratings Limited
is, inter-alia, based on the capital deployed by the partners/proprietor and the current financial strength of the firm.
The rating/outlook may undergo a change in case of withdrawal of capital or the unsecured loans brought in by
the partners/proprietor in addition to the financial performance and other relevant factors. CARE Ratings Limited
isnot responsiblefor any errorsand statesthat it hasno financia liability whatsoever to the users of CARE Ratings
Limited’s rating. Our ratings do not factor in any rating related trigger clauses as per the terms of the
facility/instrument, which may involve acceleration of payments in case of rating downgrades. However, if any
such clauses are introduced and if triggered, the ratings may see volatility and sharp downgrades.

I ssue of Debenturesin dematerialised form

The Debentures will be issued in dematerialised form. The Issuer has made arrangements with the Depository
(defined below) for the issue of the Debenturesin dematerialised form. Investors will have to hold the Debentures
in dematerialised form as per the provisions of the Depositories Act (defined below). The Issuer shall take
necessary steps to credit the Debentures allotted to the beneficiary account maintained by the Investor with its
Depositary Participant (defined below). The Issuer will make the Allotment (defined below) to Investors on the
Deemed Date of Allotment (defined below) after verification of the Application Form (defined below), the
accompanying documents and on realisation of the application money from the Investors.
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DEFINITIONSAND ABBREVIATIONS

This General Information Document uses certain capitalized terms and abbreviations which, unless the context
otherwise indicates or implies, or it is specified otherwise, shall have the meaning as provided below. References
to any legidlation, act, regulation, rules, guidelines, or policies shall be to such legislation, act, regulation, rules,
guidelines, or policies asamended, supplemented, or re-enacted fromtimeto time and any reference to a statutory
provision shall include any subordinate legislation made under that provision.

The words and expressions used in this General Information Document, but not defined herein shall have the
same meaning ascribed to such terms under the SEBI Debt Regulations, the Companies Act, the Securities

Contract (Regulation) Act,

Issuer Related Terms

1956( “SCRA "), the Depositories Act, and the rules and regulations made thereunder.

Term Description
Article of Association | The Articles of Association of the I ssuer.
Board of Directors|The board of directors of the Issuer or any committee constituted by the Board
Board thereof.

Company/ | ssuer

Ashiana Housing Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
having its Registered Office at 5F Everest, 46/C Chowringhee Road, Kolkata -
700071

Debentures/NCDs All Debentures issued pursuant to this General Information Document.

Directors Directors on the Board, as appointed from time to time.

Memorandum of | The memorandum of association of the I ssuer.

Association

Promoters Mr. Vishal Gupta, Mr. Ankur Gupta, Ms. Rachna Gupta, Mr. Varun Gupta, and their

immediate relatives (which includes their spouses, children, and parents) and OPG
Realtors Limited.

Registered Office

5F Everest, 46/C, Chowringhee Road, Kolkata-7000 71

Registrar of Companies
or ROC

The Registrar of Companies, West Bengal situated at Kolkata.

Issue Related Terms

Term Description
Act The Companies Act, 2013
Allot/ Allotment/ | The issue and allotment of the Debentures to successful Applicantsin relation to the
Allotted Issue.

Applicant/ I nvestor

A person who applies for the issuance and alotment of Debentures pursuant to the
terms of the General Information Document and the Application Form.

Application Form

The form (including revisions thereof) pursuant to which the Applicant shall make an
offer to subscribe to the Debentures and which will be considered as the Application
for Allotment of the Debentures, in terms of General Information Document. The
form of Application Form is set out in Annexure 1.

Applicable Law

All applicable statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations, including but not
limited to, any license, permit or other governmental authorization, in each case asin
effect from time to time.

Beneficial Owner(s)

Holder(s) of the Debentures in dematerialized form whose name is recorded as
beneficia owner with the Depositories.

Business Day A day when commercia banks are open for business in New York, New York and
New Déelhi, India.
Debenture Documents | Collectively the Transaction Documents, the General Information Document, the

Debenture Trustee Agreement, the consent lettersissued by the Trustee, Registrar and
Credit Rating Agency for inclusion of their respective details in the Genera
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Term

Description

Information Document, the rating letter from the Credit Rating Agency , the letters
appointing the Registrar with respect to the issuance of the Debentures, the tripartite
agreement entered among the Issuer, its Registrar and the Depository with respect to
the issuance of the Debentures, the listing agreement between the | ssuer and BSE for
listing the Debentures, al other documents in relation to the issuance of the
Debentures, the in-principle listing approval from BSE for the Debentures and any
other document designated as a Transaction Document by the Issuer and the Trustee
(or the Debenture Holders, as the case may be).

Debenture Holder (s)

The holders and beneficial owners of the Debentures.

Debenture Trustee /
Trustee

The Debenture Trustee for the Debenture Holders, in this case being Vistra ITCL
(India) Limited for the Debenturesin respect of the Issue.

Debenture Payments

Means:

(a) interest payable on the Debentures at the Interest Rate on the Interest Payment
Date in accordance with the provisions of Debenture Trust Deed.

(b) al the Redemption Price and all other return amounts payable in accordance with
the Debenture Trust Deed; and

(c) al other monies, debts, and liabilities of the Issuer, including indemnities, costs,
charges, expenses and fees and interest accrued or to be accrued by the Debenture
Holders in respect of the Debentures, pursuant to the terms of the Debenture
Documents.

Debenture
Agreement

Trustee

The debenture trustee agreement dated November 29, 2023 entered between the
Debenture Trustee and the I ssuer.

Debenture Trust Deed

The debenture trust deed dated 08 February, 2024 between the Debenture Trustee
and the I ssuer within the prescribed timelines for the Issue.

Deemed Date of | The date on which the Issuer issues and allots the Debentures in accordance with the

Allotment subscription process set forth in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Depository National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services
(CDSL).

Distributions A committee constituted in accordance with the Transaction Documents.

Committee

Equity Shares Equity share of Rs. 2 each of the Issuer.

Final Redemption Date

The date falling on the expiry of 20 (twenty) years from the Deemed Date of
Allotment, or any earlier date compliant with Applicable Law specified by the
Distribution Committee in case of early redemption of the Debentures in accordance
with the provisions of the Debenture Trust Deed, on which date al outstanding
Debentures shall be mandatorily redeemed in full.

Final Settlement Date

The date on which the whole of the Debenture Payments are unconditionally and
irrevocably paid to the satisfaction of the Trustee in writing in accordance with the
terms of the Debenture Trust Deed and other Debenture Documents.

Interest Rate Interest rate of eight percent (8%) per annum subject to availability of Distributable
Surplus (as defined in the Debenture Trust Deed) provided that the interest rate may
be varied in accordance with the reset process set out in the Debenture Trust Deed.

I nvestor Rights| The investor rights agreement dated June 21, 2022 between the Issuer and

Agreement International Finance Corporation.

| ssuer investment | Means Rs. 8,40,00,000 (Rupees Eight Crores Forty Lakhs), which is the amount

amount allocated by the Issuer for the purposes of the Project.

Bid Closing Date

23 February 2024

Bid Opening Date

19 February 2024

Material Adverse
Effect

Any circumstance, change or effect that individually or in the aggregate with all other
circumstances, changes, or effects, isor is reasonably likely to be materially adverse
on:
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Term Description

(i) the assets or properties or liabilities (including contingent liabilities) of the
Project.

(i) the business prospects, results of operations or financial condition of the Project.

(iii) the carrying on of business or operations of, or the employee, customer, or
supplier relationships of the Project; or

(iv) the ability of the Issuer and / or any Sponsor (as may be applicable) to comply
with its/ his obligations under the Debenture Trust Deed and any other
Transaction Documents to which it/he is a party.

Pay in Date 23 February 2024

Payment Business Day

A day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which banks are open for business
generally and money markets are functioning in Mumbai, India.

Proj ect

The acquisition of Project Land, receipt of relevant Authorisations (as defined in the
Debenture Trust Deed) and construction, development, and sale of residential housing
units by the Issuer on the Project Land.

Project Land

L easehold land admeasuring area of approximately 17.90 acres situated at Plot No. P-
23 part, comprised in various Survey Nos. of Paranur Village, situated in Mahindra
World City, Chengapattu Taluk, Chengalpattu District within the Registration
District of Chengal pattu and Sub Registration District of Joint I Chengal pattu bearing
Khasra numbers detailed in Annexure V1.

Person

Any individual, corporation, company, partnership firm, voluntary association, joint
venture, trust, unincorporated organization, Authority (as defined in the Debenture
Trust Deed) or any other entity whether acting in an individual, fiduciary, or other

capacity.

Record Date

In relation to any date on which a payment is required to be made by the Issuer in
respect of the Debentures, the date that is 15 (fifteen) days prior to that payment date.

Redemption Price

The price at which Debentures are required to be redeemed by the Issuer as specified
in the Debenture Trust Deed and shall include any redemption premium payable on
the Debentures.

Register of Debenture
Holders

The register of Debenture Holders maintained by the Issuer at its Registered Office
(or such other place as permitted by law) containing the particul ars of the legal owners
of the Debentures issued by the Issuer.

Registrar/Registrar to
the I ssue

Registrar to this Issue, being Beetal Financial and Computer Services Private Limited
having its Registered Office address at Beetal House 03rd Floor, 99 Madangir, Behind
L ocal Shopping Centre, Near Dada Harsukh Das Mandir, New Delhi -110 062.

Sponsors Mr. Vishal Gupta, Mr. Ankur Gupta, Mr. Varun Gupta and OPG Realtors Limited.
Transaction 1. Debenture Trust Deed,;
Documents 2. Accounts Agreement;
3. Investor Rights Agreement;
4. Debenture Trustee Agreement; and
5. Sponsor Letter Agreement.
Unpaid Sum As defined in the Debenture Trust Deed

Conventional and General Terms, Abbreviations and Referencesto Other Business Entities

Term Description
Companies Act The Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time.
Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996 as amended from time to time.
Depository Participant/ | A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act
DP
Debenture Trustee The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustee) Regulations, 1993,
Regulations as amended from time to time.
DPID Depository Participant Identification
FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as amended from time to time.
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Term

Description

Financial Year/ Fiscal/
FY

Period of 12 months starting from Ol1st April of a year and ending on 31st March of
the following year.

Government / GOI

Government of India

IT Act The Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time.

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

NECS National Electronic Clearing Services

NEFT National Electronic Funds Transfer

NRI Non-resident Indian

PAS Rules The Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, as amended
from time to time.

p.a Per annum

PAN Permanent Account Number

RBI The Reserve Bank of India constituted under the RBI Act

RBI Act Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as amended from time to time

Rs. /INR Indian Rupees

SEBI Debt Regulations

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended from time to time.

SEBI LODR The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Regulations Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time.

SEBI Operational Operational Circular for issue and listing of Non-convertible Securities, Securitised
Circular Debt Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal Debt Securities and Commercial

Paper (SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613) dated August 10, 2021 issued by SEBI, as
amended and updated from time to time.
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MANAGEMENT’S PERCEPTION OF RISK FACTORS

The Issuer believes that the following factors may affect its ability to fulfil its obligations under the Debentures.
These risks may include, among others, business aspects, equity market, bond market, interest rate, market
volatility and economic, political, and regulatory risks and any combination of these and other risks. Prospective
Investors should carefully consider all the information in this General Information Document, including the risks
and uncertainties described below, before making an investment in the Debentures. All these factors are
contingencies which may or may not occur and the Issuer is not in a position to express a view on the likelihood
of any such contingency actually occurring.

Risks relating to the | ssue.

1.

We require certain regulatory approvalsin the ordinary course of our business and failure to obtain them
in atimely manner may adversely affect our operations.

We require statutory and regulatory approvals and permits for us to execute projects such as the Project, and
applications need to be made at appropriate stages for such approvals. Further in respect of the Project, we
require to obtain sanction from local municipalities, local bodies, pollution control boards aswell as clearance
from airport authorities. We cannot assure you that the relevant authorities will issue any of such permits or
approvals in the time frames anticipated by us. Any delay to obtain such permits or approvals in accordance
with our plans may impede the execution of our business plans and projects and may hold up our investment
in development of property which may ultimately affect our results of operations.

Project related regulatory approvals and failure to obtain them on time may adversely affect our operations
related to proposed Project.

Our business is subject to extensive government regulation, which may become more stringent in the
future. We may not be able to comply with all government regulations and may require more time or incur
higher costs to comply with such regulations.

Therea estate industry in Indiais heavily regulated by the central, state and local governmental authorities.
Real estate development companiesin Indiamust comply with a number of requirements mandated by Indian
laws and regulations, including policies and procedures established by local authorities designed to
implement such laws and regulations. Real estate laws in India are complex and their interpretation or
application by regulatory authorities may vary in different States. Further, we may have to devise new
strategies or modify our business plans in order to adapt to new laws, regulations or policies that may come
into effect from time to time with respect to the real estate sector. We cannot assure you that we will be
successful in implementing such strategies or be able to adapt ourselves to such new laws, regulations, or
policies. The amount and timing of future expenditure to comply with unanticipated regulatory requirements
may vary substantially from those currently in effect. In the past, certain laws have been enacted in Indiawith
retrospective effect. We cannot assure you that all our past actions and business operations will be in
compliance with such retrospective changesin law.

We conduct due diligence and assessment exercises prior to acquisition of land for undertaking
devel opment, but we may not be able to assess or identify certain risks and liabilities.

We constantly acquire lands for our various development activities, and these may be acquired either directly
or through subsidiaries or entities identified by us for this purpose. We have an internal assessment process
on land selection and acquisition which includes a due diligence exercise to assess the title of the land and
preparation of feasibility reports to assess its development and marketability.

Our internal assessment processis based on information that is available or accessible by us. There can be no
assurance that such information is accurate, complete, or current. Any decision based on inaccurate,
incomplete or dated information may result in risks and liahilities associated with acquiring and owning such
parcels of land, being passed onto us. This may adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results
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of operations.

The Government has enacted the Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 (“RERA”) with
respect to real estate projects.

The Government of India has enacted RERA which includes, inter alia, requirements to register real estate
projects and obtain a certificate of registration and other approvals from the relevant authority constituted
there under. We are compliant with the provisions of RERA in respect of the projects which fall under the
ambit of this statute, and we shall proceed with the Project contemplated through the proposed investment
only after complying with the provisions of RERA.

Risks Related to the Business

5.

Our businessis dependent on the performance of the real estate market in the regionsin which we operate,
and fluctuations in market conditions may adversely affect our ability to sell or lease our real estate
devel opments at expected prices.

Our business is dependent on the performance of the real estate market in the regions in which we operate
and could be adversely affected if market conditions deteriorate. Further, the market for property can be
relatively illiquid, and there may be high transaction costs as well as insufficient demand for property at the
expected lease payment or sale price, as the case may be, which may limit our ability to respond promptly to
market events. The demand for real estate is significantly affected by factors such as the existing supply of
developed properties in the market as well as the absorption rate for lease assets, which factors are in turn
influenced by changes in governmental policies, regulatory framework, environmental approvals, litigation,
economic conditions, demographic trends, employment, income levelsand interest rates, among other factors.
These factors can adversely affect the demand for and the valuation of our completed projects, ongoing
projects and our future projects, the value of our land available for future development, and, as aresult, may
materially and adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, our ability to service
our debt and the trading price of our Equity Shares.

Our revenues would largely depend upon demand for residential properties along with the taste and
preferences of the customers of the particular region in which the Company operates.

Our inability to provide customers with certain amenities or our failure to continually anticipate and respond
to customer needs will affect our business and prospects and could lead to some of our customers switching
to competitors. The magjority of our projectsarein Bhiwadi, Jaipur and Jamshedpur. We depend on our ability
to understand the preferences of our customers and to accordingly develop projects that suit their tastes and
preferences thereby focusing on the development of quality residential accommodation with various
amenities.

Our contingent liabilities could adversely affect our financial condition & results of operations.

As of 31% March 2023, and 31st December 2023 the contingent liabilities as disclosed in our Annual Report

(for F.Y. 2022-23) asfollows:
(Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars (As at) Standalone Standalone
31% March, 2023 31st December, 2023

Cess- Sonari Land 8.37 -
Service Tax & GST 614.27 1,256.12
Income Tax 153.89 130.21
Provident Fund 235.80 235.80
Commercial Tax 56.14 56.14
Employee State Insurance Corporation 4.00 4.00
Completions Certificate Charges 12.53 12.53
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Work stoppages and other labour problems including their timely availability at reasonable cost could
adversely affect the progress of the projects.

We operate in alabour-intensive industry and hire casual labour directly or indirectly in relation to specific
projects. Any differences/ disputes amongst labourers or in case if we are unable to procure required casual
labour for our existing or future projects (including as a result of any lockdown restrictions imposed on
account of COVID-19), it could adversely affect our business, financial position, results of operations and
cash flows. We however enjoy cordial relationship with the labourers / labour contractors and get |abourers
as and when required at site. We also keep minimum level of own labourers at sites for contingency.

We face intense competition in our business and may not be able to compete effectively, particularly in
regional markets where we may not have significant experience.

We operatein highly competitive markets. Competition in these marketsis based primarily on the availability
and the cost of land as well as the ability to execute projects within the required time. We face competition
from real estate companies in India bidding for new and similar property development projects, from
corporations with large land reserves, as well as government bodies such as urban development authorities
that arein the business of real estate development. Given the fragmented nature of the real estate development
industry, we often do not have adequate information about the projects our competitors are developing and
accordingly, we run the risk of incorrectly estimating demand, supply, and pricing in the market. Certain of
our competitors may be better known in certain regional markets, have more experience in undertaking real
estate development in these markets and be better placed to acquire land for new property development
projects in these markets. We may not possess the same level of knowledge and understanding in the
development, ownership, and management of properties in these markets as we do in our core markets. We
may need to take certain steps to address these risks, including adjusting our designs and development
methods, establishing business relations with local landowners and joint venture partners, obtaining raw
materials and labour on acceptable terms, understanding the requirements of the local laws and understanding
market practice and requirements of potential customers. We cannot assure you that we will be able to
successfully implement all the steps required to address these risks, which could adversely affect our results
of operations and financia conditions.

In addition, certain of our competitors may have greater land reserves in select geographies or financial
resources than we do. They may also benefit from greater economies of scale and operating efficiencies.
Competitors may, whether through consolidation or growth, present more attractive or lower cost solutions
than we do, causing usto lose market share. We cannot assure you that we will be able to compete effectively
with our competitorsin the future, and our failure to compete effectively may materially and adversely affect
our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We may face stiff competition for procuring raw materials. Fluctuations and volatility in the prices of key
raw materials may adversely affect the performance of the Company.

Some of the key raw materials for real estate development industry are cement, steel, bricks, sand, wood,
aluminium doors and windows, sanitary wares, etc. and are subject to volatility of price on account of various
economic factors which are beyond our control. If, for any reason, our primary suppliers of raw materials
should curtail or discontinue their delivery of such materialsto usin the quantities we need and at prices that
are competitive (including as a result of any lockdown restrictions imposed on account of COVID-19), our
ability to meet our material requirementsfor our projects could beimpaired, our construction schedules could
be disrupted, and we may not be able to complete our projects as per schedule.

We have been in the real estate housing space for approximately three decades and have established
relationship with the suppliers of various raw materials. The purchase department of our Company on a day-
to-day basis monitor and ensurestimely supply of materialsin desired quantity, proper usage of the materials
and progress of the work as per the project schedule and accordingly procure various raw materials. However,
increase in raw materia prices and short supplies of raw materials on account of various factors in the
economy are beyond the control of our purchase department and management which may lead to either
increase in the cost of raw materials or delay in the project schedule.

10
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There are outstanding litigation proceedings against the Company, Sponsor and Directors, an adverse
outcome in which could have a material adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

These legal proceedings are pending at different levels of adjudication before various courts and tribunals.
The amounts claimed in these proceedings have been disclosed to the extent ascertainable in the Debenture
Trust Deed and include amounts claimed jointly and severally from us and other parties. Such proceedings
could divert management time and attention and consume financial resourcesin their defence or prosecution.
Should any new developments arise, such as any change in applicable Indian law or any rulings against us by
courts or tribunals, we may need to make provisionsin our financial statements that could increase expenses
and current liabilities. An adverse outcome in any such proceedings may affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

There have been time and cost overrunsin the past in relation to some of our projects, and there could be
further time and cost overrunsin the future.

Property developments typically require substantial capital outlay during the construction phase which may
take an extended period of time to complete, and before a potential return can be generated. The time and
costs required to complete a property development may be subject to substantial increases due to many
factors, including shortages of, or price increases with respect to, construction materials or equipment,
technical skills and labour, acquisition of land, construction delays, unanticipated cost increases, changesin
the regulatory environment, adverse weather conditions, third party performance risks, environmental risks,
changesin market conditions, delays in obtaining the approvals and permits from the relevant authorities and
other unforeseeable problems and circumstances. Any of these factors may lead to delays in or prevent the
completion of a project and result in costs substantially exceeding those originally budgeted for. The cost
overruns may not be adequately compensated by contractual indemnities, which may affect our financial
condition and results of operations. We are not insured against cost overrun risks. In addition, any delaysin
completing our projects as scheduled could result in dissatisfaction among our customers, resulting in
negative publicity and lack of confidence among future buyers for our projects. Additionally, we may not
achieve the economic benefits expected of such projects. In the event there are any delaysin the completion
of such projects, our relevant approvals and leases may be terminated. We have in the past experienced time
and cost overrunsin relation to certain of our projects.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to complete all our ongoing projects or future projects within the
stipulated budget and time schedule. Further, there may be a lag between the time we acquire land and the
time we construct and develop aproject and sell or lease our inventories. The actual timing of the completion
of a project may be different from its forecasted schedule. Given that the market for propertiesis relatively
illiquid, there may be high transaction costs as well as little or insufficient demand for properties at the
expected lease income or sale price, which may limit our ability to respond promptly to market events, such
as changes in the prices of the raw materials we utilize in our projects. The risk of owning undeveloped land
and unsold inventories can be substantial and the market value of the same can fluctuate significantly as a
result of changing economic and market conditions.

We are subject to a penalty clause under our sale agreementsentered into with our customersfor any delay
in the completion and handover of the project.

The sale agreements into which we enter with our customers contain a penalty clause pursuant to which we
are liable to pay a penalty for any delay in the completion and handover of the project to the customers. In
terms of the sale agreement, any delay or default in handing over possession of the unit of the project to the
buyer of such unit, will require the Company to repay the entire consideration received by the Company for
development of such units to the buyer along with interest calculated at highest applicable margina cost of
fund based lending rate (of State Bank of India) +2% per annum or such other rate as may be applicable from
time to time from the date on which such consideration was paid to the Company until date of repayment.
Accordingly, in large residentia projects, the aggregate of all penaltiesin the event of delays may adversely
impact the overall profitability of the project and, therefore, adversely affect our results of operations.

11
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We face significant risks with respect to the length of time needed to complete each project.

It may take severa years following the acquisition of land before income or positive cash flows can be
generated through the sale of a completed real estate development project. Generally, the time required to
complete a real estate construction and development project is significant. Changes to the business
environment during such time may affect the costs and revenues associated with the project and can ultimately
affect the profitability of the project. For example, during this time there can be changesto the national, state
and local business climate and regulatory environment, local real estate market conditions, perceptions of
prospective customers with respect to the convenience and attractiveness of the project, and changes with
respect to competition from other property developments. If such changes occur during the time it takes to
complete a certain project, our returns on such project may be lower than expected and our financial
performance may be adversely affected.

We have entered into, and may in the future enter into, certain related party transactions.

We have entered into transactions with related parties, including our Promoters and Directors. Certain
transactions we typically enter into with related parties include lease arrangements with group entities,
remuneration, commission and sitting fees payable to Directors, staff welfare expenses payable to relatives
of Directors, salaries and allowances, advances from customers and loans and advances received from key
managerial personnel of the Company. For more information regarding our related party transactions, seethe
disclosure on related party transactions contained in the audited consolidated financial statements. The Audit
Committee of our Board of Directors reviews our decisions relating to significant related party transactions.

We are dependent upon the experience and skills of our senior management team and skilled employees.

Webelievethat our senior management team has contributed significantly to the devel opment of our business.
However, we cannot assure you that we will be ableto retain any or al of thekey members of our management
team. If one or more of our senior executives or other personnel are unable or unwilling to continue in their
present positions, we may be unable to replace them, our business may be disrupted, and our financia
condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected. The loss of such key personnel,
or our failure to attract additional skilled management personnel, may adversely affect our business and
results of operations. We aso believe that the success of our real estate development activities is dependent
on our ability to attract, train, motivate, and retain highly skilled professional employees in a competitive
market. Our professional staff includes engineers, design consultants, marketing specialists, treasury legals,
costing consultants, procurement officers, human resource managers and accountants. In the event we are
unable to maintain or recruit a sufficient number of skilled employees, our business and results of operations
may be adversely affected.

Our operations and our work force are exposed to various hazards, and we are exposed to risks arising
from congruction related activities that could result in material liabilities, increased expenses, and
diminished revenues.

There are certain unanticipated or unforeseen risks that may arise during real estate development due to
adverse weather and geological conditions such as storm, hurricane, lightning, flood, landslide, and
earthquake. Additionally, our operations are subject to hazards inherent in providing architectural and
construction services, such asrisk of equipment failure, impact from falling objects, collision, work accidents,
fire or explosion, including hazards that may cause injury and loss of life, severe damage to and destruction
of property and equipment, and environmental damage. Any such risk could result in exposing us to material
liabilities, increase our expenses, adversely affect our reputation, and may result in a decline in our revenues.
We cannot assure that we may be able to prevent any such incidentsin the future.

We are exposed to risks related to stringent labour legidlation relating to engagement of contract labour
and dispute resolution.

India has stringent labour laws and regulations governing our relationship with our employees and other
contractors, including in relation to hiring and termination of employees, work permits, minimum wages, and
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for the regulation of contract labour.

We use a substantial amount of contracted and sub-contracted labour for our on-site operations. We do not
directly control such labour. Failure by us or our sub-contractors to comply with the relevant laws and
requirements for labour related matters could adversely affect our business and operations. Although we do
not engage such contract labour directly, we may be held responsible under applicable Indian laws for wage
payments to such labour in the event of default by our contractors. Further, pursuant to the provisions of the
Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970, we may be required to retain such contract labour as
our employees.

Additionally, certain other Indian labour laws also set forth detailed procedures for the establishment of
unions, dispute resolution and certain other laws that impose certain financial obligations on employers upon
retrenchment. Although our employees are not currently unionized, there can be no assurance that they will
not unionize in the future. If our employees unionize, it may become difficult for us to maintain flexible
labour policies, and our business may be adversely affected. We operate in a labour-intensive industry and
our contractors typically hire casual labour in relation to specific projects. A large number of labours we
employ come from different parts of India as well, who may return to their home states after a short period
of time. If we are unable to negotiate with the workmen or the contractors, or retain or substitute our inter-
state labour, it could result in work stoppages or increased operating costs as aresult of higher than anticipated
wages or benefits. In addition, we may not be able to procure required casual labour for our existing or future
projects, which could adversely affect our business, reputation, financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows.

Fluctuations in market conditions may affect our ability to sell our projects at the prices we anticipated,
which could adversely affect our revenues and earnings.

We are subject to potentialy significant fluctuations in the market value of our land and constructed
inventories. The risk of owning undeveloped land, developed land and constructed inventories can be
substantial and the market value of the same can fluctuate significantly as aresult of changing economic and
market conditions. There is often a significant lag between the time we acquire land or development rights
and the time that we can construct and devel op such project and sell our inventories. Further, the actual timing
of the completion of aproject may be different from itsforecasted schedulefor anumber of reasons, including
the need to obtain governmental approvals and building permits. In addition, real estate investments, both in
land and constructed inventories, are relatively illiquid, which may limit our ability to vary our exposurein
the real estate business promptly in response to changes in economic or other conditions. We could be
adversely affected if market conditions deteriorate or if we purchase land or construct inventories at higher
prices during stronger economic periods and the value of the land or the constructed inventories subsequently
declines during weaker economic periods.

Our insurance coverage may not adequately protect us against losses, and successful claims that exceed
our insurance coverage may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We maintain insurance coverage of the type and in the amounts that we believe are commensurate with our
operations. Our insurance policies may be subject to certain deductibles, exclusions, and limits on coverage.
A successful assertion of one or more claims against us that exceeds our available insurance coverage or
results in changes in our insurance policies, including premium increases or the imposition of a larger
deductible or coinsurance requirement, could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Our businessis subject to a variety of safety, health and environmental laws and regulations.
Asareal estate development company, we are required to comply with various laws and regulations relating
to the environment. Some of our project operations are subject to environmental laws and regulations

including the Environmental Protection Act 1986, the Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act 1981,
the Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act 1974 and other rules, regulations, circulars, notifications,
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and guidelines promulgated by the Ministry of Environment and the Pollution Control Boards (PCBs) of the
relevant states. We may incur substantial costsin complying with environmental laws and regulations. There
can be no assurance that compliance with such laws and regulations will not result in completion delays or
material increases in our costs or otherwise have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

We believe environmental regulation of industrial activitiesin Indiawill become more stringent in the future.
The scope and extent of new environmental regulations, including their effect on our operations, cannot be
predicted with certainty. The costs and management time required to comply with these requirements could
be significant. The measures we implement in order to comply with these new laws and regulations may not
be deemed sufficient by governmental authorities and our compliance costs may significantly exceed our
estimates.

Our business may suffer if we are unable to sustain the quality of our project maintenance services.

As part of our business, we provide property maintenance services to our completed residential, commercial,
and retail developments. These servicesinclude, among others, security management, building maintenance
and the operation of |eisurefacilities such as swimming pools and fitness centres. We believe that our property
maintenance services are an integral part of our business and are important to the successful marketing and
promotion of our property developments. If ownersof the projectsthat we have devel oped elect to discontinue
the services provided by our property management subsidiary, our property management business would be
adversely impacted, which in turn could adversely affect the attractiveness of our developments.

Any failurein our I T systems could adversely impact our business.

Any delay in implementation or disruption of the functioning of our IT systems could disrupt our ability to
track, record and analyse work in progress or causing loss of data and disruption to our operations, including
an inability to assess the progress of our projects, process financial information or manage creditors/debtors
or engage in normal business activities. This could have a Material Adverse Effect on our business.

Risks Relating to Doing Businessin India

We may be affected by competition law in India and any adver se application or interpretation of the
Competition Act could adver sely affect our business.

The Competition Act, 2002, as amended (the “Competition Act”) regulates practices having “appreciable
adverse effects on competition” (“AAEC”) in the relevant mar et in India. nder the Competition Act, any
formal or informal arrangement, understanding or action in concert, which causes or is likely to cause an
AAEC is considered void and results in imposition of substantial penalties. The Competition Act also
prohibits abuse of a dominant position by any enterprise.

The Competition Act aims to, among others, prohibit all agreements and transactions which may have an
AAEC inIndia. However, theimpact of the provisions of the Competition Act on the agreements entered into
by us cannot be predicted with certainty at this stage. We are not currently party to any outstanding
proceedings and are in compliance with the provisions of the Competition Act, but we have received regquest
for information in the past as “Third arty’ in proceedings initiated against other entities.

The Indian economy has had sustained periods of high interest rates and/or inflation.

The majority of our direct costs are incurred in India. India has experienced high levels of inflation since
1980, with the wholesale price index-based inflation rate peaking at an annua rate of 13.7% in 1991.
Notwithstanding recent reductionsin the inflation rate, based on the wholesale price index, which was 1.7 %
in the financial year 2020, 4.26 % in the financial year 2019 and 2.96 % in the financial year 2018 (Source:
Office of the Economic Adviser), we tend to experience inflation-driven increases in certain of our costs,
such as salaries and related allowances, that are linked to general price levelsin India. However, we may not
be able to increase the tariffs that we charge for our services sufficiently to preserve operating margins.
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Accordingly, high rates of inflation in India could increase our costs and decrease our operating margins,
which could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

A slowdown in economic growth in I ndia and other countriesin which we operate could cause our business
to suffer.

Our results of operations and financial condition are dependent on, and have been adversely affected by,
conditions in financial markets in the global economy, and, particularly in India and the other countriesin
which we operate. In the recent past, the world economy has been largely affected by Covid 19 pandemic,
and Indian economy has not been an exception to this pandemic. Mg or economic indicators like liquidity,
domestic policy and political environment, volatility in interest rates, currency exchange rates, commaodity
and electricity prices, conditions affecting agriculture, inflation rates and various other factors have been
largely affected by this pandemic. However, there can be no certainty that economic growth will continue at
aconsistent level. The Indian economy is undergoing many changes, and it is difficult to predict the impact
of certain fundamental economic changes on our business. Conditions outside India, such as a slowdown or
recession in the economic growth of other major countries, especially the United States, have an impact on
the growth of the Indian economy. Additionally, an increase in trade deficit, a downgrading in India’s
sovereign debt rating or a decline in India’s foreign exchange reserves could negatively affect interest rates
and liquidity, which could adversely affect the Indian economy and our business. Any downturn in the
macroeconomic environment in India could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financia
condition, and the trading price of our Equity Shares.

The uneven global recovery reflects severa underlying issues and consequent risks. First, despite indications
of a gathering recovery momentum, and tax reliefs, raising questions on the sustainability of such policy
approach and the impact of the eventual unwinding and reversal of these stimuli. Should a further downgrade
of the sovereign credit ratings of the U.S. government occur, it is foreseeable that the ratings and perceived
creditworthiness of instruments issued, insured, or guaranteed by institutions, agencies or instrumentalities
directly linked to the U.S. government could also be correspondingly affected by any such downgrade.
Instruments of this nature are widely used as collateral by financia institutions to meet their day-to-day cash
flows in the short-term debt market. Any increase in borrowing rates in the U.S. may result in lesser foreign
investments into emerging economies such as India, possibly impacting their economic growth.

The resulting economic pressure on the economies in which we operate, a general lack of confidence in the
financial markets and fears of a further worsening of the economy have affected and may continue to affect
the economic conditions in such countries. We cannot assure you that the markets in which we operate will
undergo a full, timely and sustainable recovery. The economic turmoil may continue or take place in the
future, adversely affecting our business, results of operations and financia condition.

Palitical instability or a change in economic liberalization and deregulation policies could seriously harm
business and economic conditionsin India generally and our businessin particular.

The Government of India has traditionally exercised and continues to exercise influence over many aspects
of the economy. Our business and the market price and liquidity of its Equity Shares may be affected by
interest rates, changesin governmental policy, taxation, social and civil unrest and other political, economic,
or other developmentsin or affecting India. The governmentsin the past have sought to implement economic
reforms policies and have undertaken initiatives that continue the economic liberalization policies pursued
by the previous governments. There can be no assurance that liberalization policieswill continuein the future.
Therate of economic liberalization could change, and specific laws and policies affecting power or real estate
sector, foreign investment and other matters aff ecting investment in our securities could change aswell. Any
significant change in such policies could adversely affect business and economic conditions in India,
generally, and our results of operations and financial condition, in particular.

Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties may adversely affect our business and
financial performance.
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Our business and financial performance could be adversely affected by any changein laws or interpretations
of existing, or the promulgation of new laws, rules, and regulations applicable to us and our business. We
cannot assure you that the Centra Government or state governments in India will not implement new
regulations and policies which will require us to obtain additional approvals and licenses from the
Government and other regulatory bodies or impose onerous requirements and conditions on our operations.
We cannot predict the terms of any new policy, and we cannot assure you that such policy will not be
onerous.

29. Political instability or changesin the Government or in the government of the states where we operate or
significant changesin the liberalization policies or the conditions of the Indian economy could adversely
affect our business.

The Government has traditionally exercised and continues to exercise a significant influence over many
aspects of the Indian economy. Further, our business is also impacted by regulations and conditions in the
various statesin Indiawhere we operate. Our businesses, and the market price and liquidity of our securities,
may be affected by changes in exchange rates and controls, interest rates, government policies, taxation,
social and ethnic instability, and other political and economic developmentsin or affecting India. In recent
years, India has been following a course of economic liberalization and our business could be significantly
influenced by economic policies followed by the Government.

However, we cannot assure you that such policies will continue in the future. Government corruption,
scandals, and protests against certain economic reforms, which have occurred in the past, could slow the
pace of liberalization and deregulation. A significant change in India’s economic liberalization and
deregulation policies, in particular those relating to the businesses in which we operate, could disrupt
business and economic conditionsin India generally and our businesses in particular.

Other Risks

30. Debenturesthat arelisted or quoted or admitted to trading may not lead to greater liquidity.

It is not possible to predict if and to what extent a secondary market may develop in the Debentures or at
what price the Debentureswill trade in the secondary market or whether such market will beliquid or illiquid.
If so specified in this General Information Document, application has been made to list or quote or admit to
trading the Debentures on the stock exchange or quotation system(s) specified. The fact that the Debentures
may be so listed or quoted or admitted to trading does not necessarily lead to greater liquidity than if they
were not so listed or quoted or admitted to trading. The listing of the Debentures is subject to receipt of the
final listing and trading approval from the stock exchange.

The morelimited the secondary market is, the more difficult it may be for holders of the Debenturesto realise
value for the Debentures prior to redemption of the Debentures.

31. Thereisno assurancethat the credit rating of the Debentures will not be downgraded.
These Debentures have been rated by the CARE Ratings Limited as CARE A (Stable) through itsletter dated
1st February 2024. The | ssuer cannot guarantee that this rating will not be downgraded. Such adowngrade in
the credit rating may lower the value of the Debentures. Rating to be confirmed.

32. Changesin government policiesand lawsin I ndia may adversely affect the Debentures.
Future government policiesand changesin laws and regulationsin Indiaand comments, statements, or policy
changes by any regulator, including but not limited to the SEBI or the RBI, may adversely affect the
Debentures. The timing and content of any new law or regulation is not within the Issuer’s control and such
new law, regulation, comment, statement, or policy change could have an adverse effect on market for and
the price of the Debentures.
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33. Refusal of listing of any security of the Issuer during last three years by any of the stock exchangesin
India or abroad.

Listing of any security of the Issuer has never been refused by any of the stock exchangesin India or abroad.

34. Limited or sporadic trading of non-convertible securities of theissuer on the stock exchanges.
Thereisno limited or sporadic trading of non-convertible securities of the issuer on the stock exchanges.

35. In case of outstanding debt instruments or deposits or borrowings, any default in compliance with the
material covenants such ascreation of security as per termsagreed, default in payment of interest,
default in redemption or repayment, non-creation of debenture redemption reserve, default in payment
of penal interest wherever applicable.

Issuer has not defaulted in compliance with the material covenants mentioned above.

36. If secured, any risksin relation to maintenance of security cover or full recovery of the security in
case of enforcement

The Debentures are not secured.

37. Risksin relation to the non-convertible securities.

a) If thelssuer isnot ableto generate adequate profits, it may not be ableto invest an adequate amount representing
the value of our outstanding NCDs issued pursuant to this Issue, which may have a bearing on the timely
redemption of the NCDs by the Company.

b) There may be no active market for the NCDs on the retail debt market/capital market segment of the Stock
Exchange. As aresult, the liquidity and market prices of the NCDs may fail to develop and may accordingly
be adversely affected.

¢) Any downgrading in credit rating of our NCDs may adversely affect the value of NCDs and thus our ability to
raise further debt.

d) Payments to be made on the NCDs will be subordinated to certain tax and other liabilities preferred by law. In
the event of bankruptcy, liquidation or winding-up, there may not be sufficient assets remaining to pay
amounts due on the NCDs.

38. Risksin relation to the security created in relation to the debt securities, if any.

The Debentures are not secured.

39. A risk factor to state that while the debenture is secured against a charge to the tune of 100% of the
principal and interest amount in favour of debenturetrustee, and it isthe duty of the debenturetrustee to
monitor that the security is maintained, however, the possibility of recovery of 100% of the amount shall
depend on the market scenario prevalent at thetime of enforcement of the security.

Not Applicable

40. All covenants including the accelerated payment covenants given by way of side letters shall be
incorporated in the issue document by theissuer.

Distribution Waterfall Acceleration Mechanism. (a) Upon the occurrence of distribution waterfall acceleration
event, Investor shall be entitled to send a notice of such event to the Issuer. (b) Upon I nvestor having served the
notice to the Issuer, the entire distributable surplus attributable to the project as of the date of occurrence of the
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Distribution Waterfall Acceleration Event, shall be paid to Investor and retained by the Issuer in the following
manner: (i) first, to Investor (in priority to the Issuer and the other security holders of the Issuer) until Investor
receives minimum return amount; (ii) thereafter, to the I ssuer until the I ssuer receives the minimum return amount;
and (iii) thereafter, if any amounts are left which are attributable to the Project, such amount shall be paid to
Investor and retained/withdrawn by the I ssuer in accordance with distribution mechanism as agreed.

Distribution Waterfall Acceleration Event means:
In the event Investor has not realized the minimum return amount by the expiry of five years from the date on

which the Investor first subscribes the Non-Convertible Debentures, then the right of Investor to receive
distributable surplus shall get accelerated.
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HISTORY AND CERTAIN CORPORATE INFORMATION

History and Business of the Company

The Company was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 25 June 1986 as Ashiana Housing & Finance
(India) Limited. Subsequently, the name of the Company was changed to its present name in the year 2007 but
the Company has been doing business since 1979. Among others, Mr. Vishal Gupta, Mr. Ankur Gupta, and Mr.
Varun Gupta are the Promoters and Executive Directors of the Company, holding 53.35% equity shares of the
Company, whereas the total shareholding of romoters and romoter’s roup is 61.10% of the total share capital
of the Company. We are pioneer in developing senior living projects. The Company was one of the first company
to have started to make a senior living project.

The subsidiaries of Ashiana Housing Limited are also engaged in real estate business jointly except Ashiana
Maintenance Services LLP. Details of the same are as follows:

o Latest Developers Advisory Limited, and Topwell Projects Consultants Limited were incorporated
primarily for land acquisition purpose.

All the above subsidiaries are wholly owned subsidiaries of Ashiana Housing Limited and there are currently no
operations in any of these entities.

Kairav Developers Limited was formed as a wholly owned subsidiary of Ashiana Housing Ltd. for carrying on
project as a separate entity basis. However, this entity is converted into ajoint venture entity w.e.f. 18" November
2021.

Ashiana Maintenance Services LLP looks after the maintenance of projects developed by Ashiana Housing
Limited and its associates and joint ventures. Ashiana Housing Limited owns 99.7% of the partnership interest in
Ashiana Maintenance Services LL P and balance partnership interest is held by Topwell Projects Consultants Ltd.

Ashiana Amar Developers (a partnership firm) is a project-based entity in which Ashiana Housing Limited owns
95% of the partnership interest and Ashiana Maintenance Services LLP holds the balance partnership interest of
5%.

We are primarily involved in middle to upper-middle income residential housing projects in satellite cities and
townsin Indiaand around industrial hubs. Our residential real estate development projects are in three categories
comfort homes, senior living and kid centric homes.

We are an integrated real estate development company involved in all activities associated with real estate
development, including, identification and acquisition of land, planning, designing, construction, and marketing
of our projects and providing facilities management services including services such as identification of third-
party lessees/buyers for our existing customers. We undertake our projects through our in-house team of
professionals and by engaging architects and consultants. While designing and developing a project, werely on a
research-based approach for layout planning, utilisation of area earmarked for development as per our plans,
approvals, unit size, amenities, interiors and sales and marketing strategy. Depending upon the market scenario,
regulatory practice, and consumer preferences, we plan our development mix and product design. We aso
regularly interact with our customers to receive direct feedback on the quality of our projects.

We believe that we have established a strong brand image, have a successful track record of execution and a
diversified portfolio of real estate projects. As of 315 December 2023, we have successfully constructed 295.41
lakhs square feet of saleable area. As of 31% December 2023, we had:

e 26 ongoing projects (including projects in partnership), all being residential developments with
approximately 57.37 lakhs square feet of saleable area; and

o 22 future projects (including new phases of existing projects), all being residential developments with
approximately 79.98 lakhs square feet of saleable area.
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As of 31% December 2023, we had land available for future development aggregating to 52.30 lakhs square feet
of saleable area. Our land available for future development comprises lands located at Milakpur (Bhiwadi),
land located at Gurugram (Sector 80 HSIIDC Land), and land at Jaisingpura (Jaipur).

Corporate Holding Structure

M anagement Structure J

Mr. Varun Gupta Mr. Vishal Gupta Mr. Ankur Gupta
(Whole Time Director) (Managing Director) (Jt. Managing Dir ector)
( N\ 4 N\ (
Mr. Sanjeev Rawat (I\/Ir. ShantanuhHaJ(;ule Mr. Sunil V. Damle
] ; ; ] Senior VP- Bhiwadi & ]

( Senior VP- Jaipur) Neemrana) (VP- Pune)
\. / . / \.
( N\ 4 N\ (

Mr. Amit Surva Datta Mr. Shantashil Ganguly Mr. Shantnu Rishi

(VP- Jodhpur) (VP- Jamshedpur) (VP- Chennai)
. J/ . J/ .
4 N\ ( N\ 4
Mr. Vikash Dugar Mr. SK Palit Mr. Degpak Dhyani
(Chief Financial Officer) (Senior VP- Operations) (VP- Sales)

. J/ . J/ .
4 N\ ( N\ 4

Mr. Bhagwan Kumar Ms. Surbhi Dewan Mr. Sushil Joshi

(Senior VP- Land & Legal) (VP-Human Resour ce) (VP- Facility M anagement)
\. / . / \.
( N\ 4 N\
Mr. Abhijit Joshi Mr. Arvind Pandey
(VP- Gurgaon) (G.M. -Architecture & Design)

\. / . /

Changein Registered Office of the Company

Our registered office has changed to 5F Everest, 46/C, Chowringhee Road, Kolkata-700 071 on 05" April 2021.
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Subsidiaries/ Branches/Units;
Subsidiaries of Ashiana Housing L imited:

1. AshianaMaintenance ServicesLLP
Registered office: 5F Everest, 46/C Chowringhee Road, Kolkata-700071
LLP Registration Number: AAI-0801
Business carried on by the entity: Facility management of all projects of its holding company Ashiana
Housing Ltd., and the projects bult under SPV's or joint venture entities.

2. Latest Developers Advisory Limited
Registered office: 5F Everest, 46/C Chowringhee Road, K olkata-700071
CIN: U74140WB2010PLC151246
Business carried on by the entity: Real estate development and related activities.

3. Topwell Projects Consultants Limited
Registered office: 5F Everest, 46/C Chowringhee Road, Kolkata-700071
CIN: U74140WB2010PLC151254
Business carried on by the entity: Real estate devel opment and related activities.

Kairav Developers Limited (CIN: U70200WB2020PL C235663) was formed as a wholly owned subsidiary of
Ashiana Housing Ltd. for carrying on project as a separate entity basis. However, this entity is converted into a
joint venture entity w.e.f. 18" November 2021.

Ashiana Amar Developers (a partnership firm) is a project-based entity in which Ashiana Housing Limited owns
95% of the partnership interest and Ashiana Maintenance Services LL P holds the balance partnership interest of
5%.

Branches of Ashiana Housing Limited with their address:

1. Bhiwadi Branch: 4" Floor, Ashiana Village Centre, Vasundhara, Nagar, Bhiwadi, Rgjasthan  301019.

2. Jaipur Branch: 401, 3 Floor, Apex Mall, La Kothi, Tonk Road, Jaipur, Rajasthan  302015.

3. Jamshedpur Branch: 123, 1st St Tata Kandra Main Road, Adityapur, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand -831013.

4, Gurgaon Branch: Ashiana Amarah Near Village, Hayatpur Sector-93, Gurgaon  122505.

5. Jodhpur Branch: Dhinanon Ki Dhani, Pal Sangaria Link Road, Jodhpur, Rgjasthan  342014.

6. Pune Branch: AshianaMalhar, Sarkar Chowk, Pawar Basti, Near Citrine Society, Marunji, Pune 411057.

7. Halol Branch: Balgji Upavan, Old Jyoti Compound, Halol Godhra Road, Halol, Gujarat  389350.

8. Chennai Branch: Ashiana Shubham Villa Viviana, Melrosapuram Main Road, Govindhapuram Village,
Maraimalai Nagar 603204.

Project cost and means of financing, in case of funding of new projects.

Not Applicable, the funds raised through issue of these NCDs will be utilised to meet the objects stated under the
term sheet of General Information Document.

Details of any acquisition or amalgamation in the last one year

There has been no amalgamation or acquisition during the last one year.

Details of any reorganisation or reconstruction in thelast one year

There has been no reorganisation or reconstruction in the last one year.

Material events, developments or changesthat may have implications on the financials or credit quality at

the time of Issue which may affect the Issue or the Investor’s decision to invest or continue to invest in the
Debentures:
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There isno materia event, development or changes that may have implication on the financials or credit quality
at the time of Issue which may affect the Issue or the Investor’s decision to invest or continue to invest in the
Debentures.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTSUNDER FORM PAS-4 PRESCRIBED UNDER THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

1. General Information
Our Company was incorporated as Ashiana Housing Limited on 25" June 1986 under the Companies Act, 1956

asapublic limited company. For details of the business of our Company and its subsidiaries, please see the section
entitled “History and Certain Corporate | nformation” on page 19.

Sl. | Particulars Details
No.
1. | Registered office of the Ashiana Housing Limited
| ssuer 5F Everest, 46/C, Chowringhee Road,

Kolkata - 700 071.

Web site: www.ashianahousing.com
CIN No. L70109WB1986PL C040864

Date of Incorporation: 25 June, 1986

2. Corporate office and contact | Ashiana Housing Limited

details of the | ssuer 304-305, Southern Park,

Saket District Centre,

Saket, New Delhi 110017

Tel: +91 11 4265 4265

Fax: +91 11 4265 4200

Email: investorrel ations@ashi anahousing.com
Website: www.ashianahousing.com
4. | Chief Financial Officer Mr. Vikash Dugar

(CFO) of the Issuer 304-305, Southern Park,

Saket District Centre,

Saket, New Delhi 110017

Tel: +91 11 4265 4265

Fax: +91 11 4265 4200

Email: vikash.dugar @ashianahousing.com

3. Company Secretary and Mr. Nitin Sharma
Compliance Officer of the 304-305, Southern Park,
| ssuer Saket District Centre,

Saket, New Delhi 110017

Tel: +91 11 4265 4265

Fax: +91 11 4265 4200

Email: nitin.sharma@ashianahousing.com

The Investors may contact the Compliance Officer in case of any
pre-issue/ post-issue related matters such as non-credit of |etter(s) of
allotment/ Debenture(s) in the demat account, non-receipt of refund
order(s), interest warrant(s)/ cheque(s) etc.

22


http://www.ashianahousing.com/
mailto:vikash.dugar@ashianahousing.com
mailto:nitin.sharma@ashianahousing.com

General Information Document for issue of listed unsecured non-
convertible debentures on private placement basis

For private circulation only

16 February, 2024

Trustee to the Issue

Vistral TCL (India) Limited

Address: The IL&FS Financia Centre, Plot No. C-22, G Block 7t
Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai

Tel No. (022) 2653 3333, Fax No. (022) 2653 3297

Contact person: Mr. Jatin Chonani

Email: jatin.chonani @vistra.com

Registrar to the Issue

Beetal Financial & Computer Services Private Limited

3 Floor, Beetal House, Near Dada Harsukhdass Mandir, Behind
Loca Shopping Centre, Madangir, Delhi 110 062.

Credit Rating Agency
(ies) of the Issue

CARE Ratings Limited
Corporate Office: 13" Floor, E-1 Block, Videocon Tower,

Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi 110055
CIN: L67190MH1993PL C071691

Loca Office: Videocon Tower, E-1, 13th Floor, Jhandewalan
Extension, New Delhi, Delhi 110055.

7. | Auditor(s) of the M/s. B. Chhawchharia & Co.

I ssuer Date of appointment: 171" September 2022

Chartered Accountants

DTJ524 & 525, DLF Towers B, Jasola District Centre, New Delhi
110025

Contact person: Mr. Abhishek Gupta

E-mail: abhishek@bcco.co.in

Telefax: 91 (11) 4037 8600

8. | Guarantors, Arrangers, | Not applicable.
if any, of the
instrument

9. | Detailsof Legal DA PARTNERS
Counsel

AP& Partners (Advocates)
Ms. Vaivaswatah Y agini
vaivaswatha.yagani @appartners.in

T: +91-11-42594444 | M: 8556925580 | www.appartners.in
Office: B-62, Paschimi Marg, Vasant Vihar, New Delhi - 110057,
India

a) Names, addresses, DIN, and occupations of the directors.
Please refer to Section on Page N0.49 of this General Information Document.

b) Management’s perception of risk factors.
Please refer to Section on Page No.8 of this General Information Document.

c) Detailsof defaults, if any, including therein the amount involved, duration of default and present
status, in repayment of statutory dues, debenturesand interest thereon, depositsand inter est
thereon or loan from any bank or financial institution and interest thereon by the Company.

There have been no defaultsin the repayment of statutory dues, debentures, and interest thereon, deposits
and interest thereon or loan from any bank or financial institution and interest thereon by the Company.
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d) b) Name, Designation, address and phone number, email 1D of the nodal/ Compliance officer of
thelssuer, if any, for the private placement offer process:

Mr. Nitin Sharma
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
304-305, Southern Park, Saket Digtrict Centre, Saket, New Delhi 110017
Tel: +91 11 4265 4265, Fax: +91 11 4265 4200
Email: nitin.sharma@ashianahousing.com
2. Particularsof Offer
a) Date of Passing of Board Resolution
November 10, 2023
b) Date of passing of resolution in the general meeting, authorising the offer of securities
Approva of shareholdersis not required under Sections 42 and 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 asthe
proceeds from the I ssue together with the money aready borrowed by the Issuer will not exceed aggregate
of its paid-up share capital, free reserves, and securities premium, apart from temporary loans obtained from

the Issuer’s ban ers in the ordinary course of business.

¢) Kind of Securities Offered and the class of securities, total number of shares or other securities to be
issued

560 no. of unsecured, rated, redeemable, listed, non-convertible debentures for face value of INR 1,00,000/-
(Rupees One Lakhs each) aggregating INR 5,60,00,000 (Rupee Five Crore Sixty Lakhs only).

d) Price at which the Security isbeing offered including the premium, if any, along-with justification of the
price

INR 1,00,000 (Rupees One Lakh) per Debenture. The Debentures are being issued at par and no premium is
being charged on issue of Debentures pursuant to this General Information Document.

€) Name and address of the valuer who performed valuation of the security offered, and basis on which the
price hasbeen arrived at along with report of theregistered valuer — Not Applicable

f) Relevant date with reference to which the price has been arrived at; — Not Applicable

(9) Theclassor classes of personsto whom the allotment is proposed to be made:

Details of Eligible Investors are given in the Summary Term Sheet of this General Information Document on page
No. 76

h) the justification for the allotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash together with
valuation report of theregistered valuer: Not Applicable, the issuance is being made for cash.

i) Intention of promoters, directors, or key managerial personnel to subscribeto the offer.
Thereis no intention of the promoters, directors, or key managerial personnel to subscribe to the offer.

j) The proposed time within which the allotment shall be completed.
The Debentures will be allotted within 2 (two) trading days from Issue Closing Date, and the Issuer will
ensure that the Debentures are credited into the demat accounts of the Debenture Holders within such time as

may be prescribed under this General Information Document.
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k) Changein controal, if any, in the I ssuer/ Company that would occur consequent to the private placement
There will be no changein control in the I ssuer consequent to the private placement of the Debentures.

[) Thenumber of personstowhom allotment on preferential basig/ private placement basig/ rightsissue has
already been made during the year in terms of number securitiesaswell asprice

Not applicable as the company has not made any allotment on preferential basis/ private placement basis/
rights during the ongoing Financial Y ear 2023-24.

However, the Issuer had issued and alotted 264 number of Non-Convertible Debentures at nominal value of Rs
10 Lakhs each aggregating to Rs 26.40 crores on private placement basis to International Financial Corporation
on 20" July 2022.

m) Amount which the Issuer intendsto raise by way of proposed offer of securities.
Theissuer is planning to raise INR 5,60,00,000 (Rupees Five Crores Sixty Lakhs).

n) Termsof raising of securities:
a) Duration: 20 Y ears from the relevant Deemed Date of Allotment in relation.
b) Rate of Dividend: Not Applicable.
¢) Rate of Interest: Eight percent (8%) per annum subject to availability of Distributable Surplus (as defined
in the Debenture Trust Deed) provided that the interest rate may be varied in accordance
with the reset process set out in the Debenture Trust Deed.
d) Mode of payment and repayment: By way of normal banking channel, through fund transfer or RTGS.

0) Proposed time schedule for which the private placement offer cum application letter isvalid.

Issue opens on: 19 February 2024

Issue closes on: 23 February 2024

Pay In Date: 23 February 2024

Deemed Date of Allotment: 23 February 2024

Note: Theallotment of Debentures can be made prior to Issue Closing Date if the full subscription isreceived
from the Investor earlier and such date will then be deemed to be the Issue Closing Date. The subscription of
Debentures shall be subject to Debenture Trust Deed and subject to completion of al condition precedents to
the satisfaction of Debenture Trustee in accordance with the terms of Debenture Trust Deed. The issue shall
be open for subscription during the banking hours on each day during the period covered by the issue schedule
above. The Issuer reservesthe right to change/ modify the Pay In Date, Deemed Date of Allotment and Issue
Closing Date as may be notified by the Issuer in writing to the recipients of this Offer Letter.

p) Purposes and objects of the offer.

The Issuer shall use the proceeds from the I ssue towards the Project pursuant to the Debenture Trust Deed in
accordance with Applicable Law and the Transaction Documents.

g) Contribution being made by the promoters or directors either as part of the offer or separately in
furtherance of such objects.

There is no contribution being made by the promoters or directors of the Issuer either as part of the offer or
separately in furtherance of such objects.

r) Principal termsof assetscharged as security, if applicable.

Not applicable, as debentures are unsecured.
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s) Thedetails of significant and material orders passed by the Regulators, Courtsand Tribunalsimpacting

the going concer n status of the Issuer and its future oper ations.

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators, Courts and Tribunals impacting the
going concern status of the Issuer and its future operations.

t) The pre-issue and post issue shar eholding pattern of the Issuer ason 31% December 2023.

Sl.
No.

Category

Pre-lssue

Post Issue

No. of sharesheld

% of share holding

No. of sharesheld

% of share holding

A.

Promoters
holding

1

Indian

Individual

5,97,22,677

59.41

5,97,22,677

5941

Bodies
Corporate

17,04,109

1.70

17,04,109

1.70

Sub Total

6,14,26,786

61.11

6,14,26,786

61.11

Foreign
Promoters

0

0

Sub Total
(A)

6,14,26,786

61.11

6,14,26,786

61.11

Non-
Promoters’
Holding

Institutional
Investors

1,56,55,271

15.57

1,56,55,271

15.57

Non-
Institutiona
Investors

Private
Corporate
Bodies
(other than
promoters)

16,73,493

1.67

16,73,493

1.67

Directors
and
relatives

5,97,22,677

59.41

5,97,22,677

59.41

Indian
Public

1,63,26,189

16.25

1,63,26,189

16.25

Others
(including
NRIs)

54,43,118

5.40

54,43,118

5.40

Sub Total
(B)
Excluding
Directors
and
relatives
above as
their
holding is
covered in

3,90,98,071

38.89

3,90,98,071

38.89
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Promoters
Holding

Grand
Total

10,05,24,857

100

10,05,24,857

100

Note: The company bought back 18,27,242 equity shares on 14™ August 2023, @ Rs. 301/ per share.

u) Mode of payment for subscription:

Through normal banking channels, through fund transfer or RTGS.

V) Expenses of theissue along with a breakup for each item of expense, including details of the fees payable
to separately as under (in terms of amount, as a per centage of total issue expenses and as a per centage of
total issue size), as applicable:

Sr. Expenses Amount % of Total Issue | % of Total Issue
No. Expenses Size
a) L ead manager(s) fees N.A. N.A. N.A.
b) Underwriting commission | N.A. N.A. N.A.
) Brokerage, selling N.A. N.A. N.A.
Commission and
Upload Fees
d) Fees payable to the | INR 15,000/- 3.70 0.027
registrars to the issue
€) Fees payable to the legal | INR 350,000/- 86.4 0.625
Advisors
f) Advertising and marketing | N.A. N.A. N.A.
expenses
Q) Fees payable to the| INR40,147/- 9.91 0.072
regulators including stock
exchanges
h) Expenses incurred on | N.A. N.A. N.A.
printing and distribution of
issue stationary
)] Any other fees, commission | N.A. N.A. N.A.
or payments under
whatever nomenclature.

3. Disclosureswith regard to interest of directors, litigation etc.

a) Any financial or other material interest of the directors, Promoter, or key managerial personnel or
senior management in the Issue and the effect of such interest in so far as it is different from the
interests of other persons

The directors, Promoters key managerial personnel and senior management of the Company and their
relatives thereof may be deemed to be concerned or interested in Issue only to the extent of securities held by
them in the Issuer and them being the director, Promoter, member key managerial personnel or senior
management of the Issuer. Save as aforesaid, none of the directors, Promoters, key manageria personnel,
senior management, or relatives thereof are, in any way, concerned or interested in this Issue.

b) Summary of reservations or qualifications or adverse remarks of auditors in the last five years
immediately preceding the year of issue of private placement offer cum application letter and of their
impact on the financial statements and financial position of the Issuer/ Company and the corrective

27



General Information Document for issue of listed unsecured non-
convertible debentures on private placement basis

For private circulation only
16 February, 2024

steps taken and proposed to be taken by the Issuer/ Company for each of the said reservations or

qualifications or adverseremark

There are no reservations, qualifications, or adverse remarks by the auditors in their audit reports of the
Company during the last five years preceding the year of issue of this General Information Document except
that the auditors have given their observation regarding delay by 3 daysin transferring amounts, required to
betransferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) during the Financia Y ear 2022-23. There
is no impact of the aforesaid observation on the financial statements and financial position of the Company.
The Company has strengthened itsinternal compliance checklist and installed compliance software to ensure

no repetitions of such errorsin future.
4. Financial position of the Company

(a) The capital structure of thelssuer in atabular form

(Rs. In lakhs)

Share Capital

Asat 31% December 2023

The authorised share capital (number of securities, description
and aggregate nominal value)

175,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each
aggregating to Rs. 35,00,00,000/-

The issued, subscribed and paid up share capital (number of
securities, description and aggregate nominal value)

10,05,24,857 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each
aggregating to Rs. 20,10,49,714/-

Sze of the Present Offer

This is a private placement of 560 no. of
unsecured, listed, rated, redeemable, non-
convertible debentures of INR 1,00,000
(Rupees One Lakhs) each aggregating to a
principal amount of INR 5,60,00,000/-
(Rupees Five Crores Sixty Lakhs)

Paid-up Capital:

INR 20,10,49,714/-

Not applicable.

A. After the offer:

B. After the conversion of Convertible Instruments (if
applicable)

Share Premium Account:

A. Before the offer:

B. After the offer:

INR 1,43,58,79,689/-

INR 1,43,58,79,689/-

Note: Therewill be no changein the capital structure, i.e. the I ssued, Subscribed and Paid up capital and share
premium account, of the Company after/ due to the private placement of un-secured redeemable rated non-

convertible debentures.

(b) Details of the existing share capital of the Issuer company in a tabular form indicating with regard to
each allotment, the date of allotment, the number of sharesallotted, the face value of the sharesallotted,

the price and the form of consideration

Date of No. of Face |Issue|Considerati | Nature of Cumulative

Allotment Equity | Value |Price| on (Cash, |Allotment No. of Equity | Equity Share
Shares | (Rs) |(Rs) | other than equity Share | Premium (in

cash, etc) shares Capital Rs)

(Rs)
27" June, 70| 10 10 Cash As per 70 700 N.A
1986 Memorand
um of
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Associatio
n

14" August, 2000| 10 10 Cash - 2070 20700 N.A
1986

17 47930| 10 10 Cash - 50000 500000 N.A
February,

.1987

o5t 100000| 10 10 Cash - 150000| 1500000 N.A
February,

1988

o5t 290000 10 10 Cash - 440000| 4400000 N.A
September,

1989

20t 10000, 10 10 Cash - 450000 4500000 N.A
February,

1990

08" June, 150000 10 10 Cash - 600000 6000000 N.A
1990

10 600000 10 10 Cash 1200000| 12000000 N.A
February,

1992
04"August, 2070000| 10 10 Cash IPO 3270000| 32700000 N.A
1992

04t 90000 10 10 Cash IPO 3360000| 33600000 N.A
September,

1992

29t 1726600 10 10 Cash - 5086600 50866000 N.A
February,

1996

25t 762000 10 10 Cash - 5848600 58486000 N.A
November,

2000

25t *(495500)| 10 10 N.A. N.A. 5353100| 53531000 N.A
November,

2000

01% March, 13382750| 10 10 Cash Bonus 18735850| 18735850 N.A
2008 Issued 0

21% March, | **(125895)| 10 10 N.A. N.A. 18609955| 18609955 N.A
2011 0

25th ***(930497| 2 2 N.A. Sub- 93049775| 18609955 N.A
October, 75) divison 0

2013

o9t 9302324 2 215 Cash Private 102352099| 20470419 213
February, Placement 8

2015

*Cancellation of shares as per scheme of amalgamation between Woodburn Commercial Limited and the
Company

** Cancellation of shares pursuant to scheme of amalgamation between Ashiana Retirement Villages Limited
Company with Company and approved by High Court of Kolkata by its order dated 21%March 2011.

*** Qubdivision of 18,609,955 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) each into 93,049,775 Equity
Shares of Rs. 2 each.
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Note: The company bought back 18,27,242 equity shares on 14™ August 2023, @ Rs. 301/ per share.

(c) Changesinitscapital structureasat last quarter end, for the preceding threefinancial yearsand current
financial year:

Date of change (Annual General | Particulars(Rs.)
Meeting/Extraordinary General
Meeting/Boar d M eeting)

12" July, 2023 Paid up capital before Buy-Back: INR 20,47,04,198/-

Paid up capital after Buy-Back: INR 20,10,49,714/-

Paid up capital reduce by INR 36,54,484/- due to Buy-
Back

(d) Details of allotments (number and price) made by the Company for consideration other than cash in
the last one year preceding the date of this General Information Document: Thereis no such allotment.

(e) Profitsof thelssuer, beforeand after making provision for tax, for thethreefinancial yearsimmediately
preceding the date of issue of private placement offer cum application letter.
(Standalone) Rs. in lakhs

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-- 23
Profit Before Tax 308 (1,211) 3,236
Profit After Tax 363 (593) 2,706
(Consolidated) Rs. in lakhs
Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-- 23
Profit Before Tax 30 (1,463) 3,432
Profit After Tax 172 (704) 2,788

Dividends declared by the company in respect of the said three financial years; interest coverage ratios
for last threeyears (Cash profit after tax plusinterest paid/interest paid)

Dividend in % of FV of Rs. 2/- per share

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-- 23
Dividend 20.0 25.00 25.00
Interim Dividend - 20.00 -
Interest Coverage Ratio (Standalone)
Particulars FY2020-21 FY2021-22 FY2022-23
Interest coverage ratio 1.23 0.52 2.20
(Consolidated)
Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY2022-23
Interest coverageratio 1.02 0.39 2.26
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(f) A summary of financial position (K ey Financial I nfor mation) of thelssuer asin thethreeaudited balance
sheets immediately preceding the date of issue of private placement offer cum application letter/ Key
Operational and financial information parameters for the last three audited years (on a consolidated

and standalone basis):

(in Rs. Lakhs)

Asat 31%

Consolidated Basis e e R 'I?/IS at 31 Asat 31st Asat 31st
arch, 2023 Mar ch, 2022 Mar ch, 2021

Balance Sheet
Net Fixed assets 9,442 7,590 9,197 9,702
Current assets 2,16,469 2,05,819 1,70,719 120,217
Non-current assets 12,680 14,190 15,677 13,702
Total assets 2,29,149 2,20,009 1,86,396 133,919
Non-Current Liabilities*

; ; ; 16,042 19,925
e fircial ey 10,681 8723
Provisions 990 882 694 491
Other non-current liabilities 1,198 1,198 729 748
Current Liabilities*
(including maturities of long-term
borrowings)

; ; i 9,923 10,427
e fircial oty 6417 610
Provisions 161 146 175 137
Other current liabilities 1,25,560 1,11,462 85,093 42,628
Total liabilities 1,53,874 1,44,039 1,12,790 58,838
Equity (equity and other equity) 75,275 75,970 73,605 75,080
Total equity and liabilities 2,29,149 2,20,009 1,86,396 133,919
Profit and Loss
Total revenue from operations 65,187 40,737 22,174 24,198
Other income 1,769 1,782 1,185 1,733
Total Expenses 58,658 39,086 24,396 25,901
Total comprehensive income 6,679 2,878 (656) 408
Profit / (10ss) 6,602 2,788 (704) 172
Other comprehensive income 77 91 50 236
Profit / loss after tax 6,602 2,788 (704) 172
Er?érzlbr;g;i Ipuetredequny share: (a) basic; 6.60 2.81 (0.64) 0.40
Continuing operations 6.60 2.81 (0.64) 0.40
Discontinued operations - -
ocp?grt;?ilcj)i:g and discontinued 6.60 2.81 (0.64) 0.40
Cash Flow
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Nq qasrl generated from operating 15,389 1,159 (6,206) 12113
activities
Net cash used in / generated from (1,184) 3,194
investing activities (2,509) 1,224
Net cash used in financing activities (13,921) (1,438) 8,262 (7,261)
Cash and cash equivalents 15,910 15,626 12,711 15,368
Balance as per statement of cash flows 15,910 15,626 12,711 15,368
Additional information
Net worth 75,275 75,970 73,606 75,079
Cash and Cash Equivalents 15,910 15,626 12,711 15,369
Current Investments 12,044 10,118 11,500 8,602
Net Sales 66,956 42,519 23,359 25,931
EBIDTA 9,172 4,578 289 1,820
EBIT 8,470 3,736 (549) 931
Dividend amounts - 511.76 818.82 307.05
Long term debt to working capital -
(Long term Debt + Current maturities of 0.20 0.07
Long term debt)/ Working Capital 0.15 0.20
Current Liability ratio -
Current liabilities/ Non-current liabilities | 0-88 0.8 0.80 491
Total Debtsto Total assets -
(Long term Debt + Short term Debt + 0.09 0.04
Current maturities of Long Term debt)/ 0.06 0.08 ) )
Total Assets
Debt Service Coverage Ratios -
EBIT/ (Debt Interest + Short term Debt | 4.39 1.39 0.40 0.72
Payable)
Interest service coverageratio -
EBIT/ Interest Cost 6.85 2.26 0.39 102
* maturities of long-term borrowings are included in current liabilities
(in Rs. Lakhs)
Standalone Basis Asat 31% Asat 31 Asat 31st Asat 31st
December 2023 | \arch 2023 March, 2022 | March, 2021
Balance Sheet
Net Fixed assets 9,377 7,487 9,049 9,471
Current assets 2,07,749 1,98,170 1,64,267 113,723
Non-current assets 12,399 13,846 14,925 13,562
Total assets 2,20,148 2,12,016 1,79,193 127,286
Non-Current Liabilities*
Financial (borrowings, trade payables, and
other financial liabilities) 12,578 16,711 16,699 5,908
Provisions 864 766 608 349
Other non-current liabilities 8 54 - -
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Current Liabilities*
(including maturities of long-term
borrowings)

; i ; 9,338 9,929
Frared (g aiepbios,
Provisions 150 139 168 135
Other current liabilities 1,21,859 1,08,028 82,035 39,863
Tota liabilities 1,44,798 1,35,627 1,05,073 51,693
Equity (equity and other equity) 75,350 76,389 74,119 75,593
Total equity and liabilities 2,20,148 2,12,016 1,79,193 127,286
Profit and L oss
Total revenue from operations 59,926 35,051 17,200 20,153
Other income 1,470 1,448 993 1,558
Total Expenses 53,442 33,264 18,996 21,402
Total comprehensive income 6,335 2,782 (655) 475
Profit / (loss) 6,284 2,706 (593) 363
Other comprehensive income 51 76 (61) 112
Profit / loss after tax 6,284 2,706 (593) 363
E:(;rzlbr;gjiﬁiredeqwty share: (a) basic; 6.26 2.72 (0.64) 0.46
Continuing operations 6.26 2.72 (0.64) 0.46
Discontinued operations - - -
Continuing and discontinued operations | 6.26 2.72 (0.64) 0.46
Cash Flow
gcﬁ \zzs:s generated from operating 14,722 91 (6,401) 11,779
aNC?ItV(i?Is; used in / generated from investing (592) 2,985 (4,734) 1331
Net cash used in financing activities (13,895) (1,301) 8,208 (7,302)
Cash and cash equivalents 11,506 11,271 9,495 12,422
Balance as per statement of cash flows 11,506 11,271 9,495 12,422
Additional information
Net worth 75,350 76,389 74,119 75,593
Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,506 11,271 9,495 12,422
Current Investments 9,123 7,982 9,463 6,253
Net Sales 61,396 36,499 18,193 21,711
EBIDTA (excluding exceptional items) 8,789 4,299 431 2,050
EBIT (excluding exceptional items) 8,122 3,531 (336) 1,198
Dividend amounts (503) 511.76 818.82 409.408
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0.20 0.07

Current Liability ratio -
Current liabilities/ Non-current liabilities

0.91

0.87

0.84 0.88

Total Debtsto Total assets -

(Long term Debt + Short term Debt +
Current maturities of Long Term debt)/
Total Assats

0.06

0.09

0.10 0.04

Debt Service Coverage Ratios -
EBIT/ (Debt Interest + Short term Debt
Payable)

4.24

1.35

0.40 0.90

Interest service coverageratio -
EBIT/ Interest Cost

6.62

2.20

0.52 1.23

* Maturities of long-term borrowings are included in current liabilities

Asof 31% March 2023 and as on 31% December 2023, the contingent liabilities as disclosed in our Annual Report is

asfollows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars (As at) Standalone Standalone
31% March, 2023 31% December, 2023

Cess- Sonari Land 8.37 -
Service Tax & GST 614.27 1,256.12
Income Tax 513.89 130.21
Provident Fund 235.80 235.80
Commercial Tax 56.14 56.14
Employee State Insurance Corporation 4.00 4.00
Completions Certificate Charges 12.53 12.53

(fa) Columnar representation of financials (i.e. Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement and Cash Flow
Statement) of the Issuer for the last three audited years (on a consolidated and standalone basis):

(i) Balance Shesets

(in Rs. Lakhs)

Asat 31% Asat 31% | Asat 3lst | Asat 31t

Consolidated Basis December 2023 | March Mar ch, March,
2023 2022 2021

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 6,442 4,600 4,021 4,201
Capital work-in-progress - 263 - -
Investment property 2,678 2458 3,942 3,971
Intangible Assets
- Goodwill 0 0 0 0
- Other Intangible Assets 42 65 86 79
Intangible Assets under Devel opment - - - -
L eased Assets 322 270 1,234 1,530
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- Investment 4 4 2,328 4
- Deposits with banks - - - 2,204
-Other Financial Assets 2,743 2,300 2,177 625
Deferred Tax assets (Net) 450 1,914 1,889 1,087
12,680 11,873 15,677 13,702
Inventories 1,52,563 1,52,893 | 1,24,7008 74,081
Financial Assets
- Investment in joint ventures 2,542 3,400 4,339 3,127
- Investment others 9,502 6,718 7,162 5,475
- Trade receivables 3,375 3,303 2,482 2,712
- Cash and cash equivalents 7461 11,540 7,798 10,126
- Other Bank Balances 8.448 4,086 4,914 5,243
- Loans 544 } ) )
- Other financial assets 3,364 4,549 4,709 5,202
Current Tax Assets (Net) 2,056 795 817 557
Other Current Assets
- Trade advances and deposits 14,205 8,796 7,037 8,265
- EWSILIG units 2,052 1,786 2,439 2,022
- Others 10,356 7,953 4,324 3,407
2,16,469 | 2,05819 1,70,719 1,20,217
Non-Current assets held for sale - 2,317 - -
2,317 - -
(A) Total Assets 2,29,149 1,86,396 1,33,919 1,17,249
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
- Equity Share Capital 2,010 2,047 2,047 2,047
- Other Equity 73,264 73,923 71,559 73,032
Equity attributable to owners of Parent - 75,970 73,606 75,079
Non- Controlling Interests - - - 2
Total Equity 75,275 75,970 73,606 75,080
Liabilities
Non — current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
15,588 4,659
- Borrowings 1,23,82 16,513 951 1,152
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- Lease Liabilities 8 54 3,142 2,913
- Other financia liabilities 3,653 3,358
Non-Current provisions 990 882 694 491
Other Non-Current Liabilities 1,198 1,198 729 748
Total Non-Current Liabilities 18,230 22,004 21,105 9,962
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings 1,692 577 431
- Lease Liabilities 796 135 289 391
- Trade payables 69
a) Dues of micro and small enterprises 678 608 151 114
b) Dues of creditors other than micro and small 3,361 3,123 2,204 2,471
enterprises
Other Financial Liabilities 5,018 4,869 2,185 2,703
Other Current Liabilities
- Advance from customers 1,21,863 1,07,666 82,029 39,815
- Others 3,698 3,796 3,063 2,813
Current Provisions 161 146 176 137
Total Current Liabilities 1,35,644 1,22,035 91,686 48,876
(B) Equity & Liabilities 2,29,149 | 2,20,009 1,86,396 1,33,919
* Maturities of long-term borrowings are included in current liabilities
(in Rs. Lakhs)
Asat 31% Asat Asat
Standalone Basis December20 | 31¥March | 31¢ Asat 31st
23 , 2023 March, Mar ch, 2021
2022
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 6,378 4,532 3,970 4,146
Capital work-in-progress - 263 - -
Investment property 2678 2,458 3,942 3,953
Intangible Assets 34 56 86 79
Intangible Assets under Development - - - -
Leased Assets 322 234 1,137 1,372
Financial Assets
- Investment in subsidiaries 97 46 2,050 273
- Investment others 3 3 3 3
- Deposits with banks - - 1,526 2,204
- Other financia assets
2,572 2,178 509 550
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Deferred Tax assets (Net) 316 1,759 1,628 983
12,399 11,528 14,925 13,562
Inventories 152537 | 152,866 | 1,24675 74,058
Financial Assets
- Investment in subsidiaries/ joint ventures 2,544 3,406 4,345 3,133
- Investment others 6,579 4,576 5,118 3,120
- Trade receivables 2,133 1,139 1,308
- Cash and cash equivalents 2,412 7,185 4,581 7,179
3,057 4,086 4914 5,243
- Other Bank Balances 8,449 4413 |  4,6642 5,144
- Other financial assets 3215
Current Tax Assets (Net) 2,033 809 736 473
Other Current Assets
- Trade advances and deposits 1,3971 8,959 7,332 8,637
- EWS/LIG units 2,052 1,786 2,439 2,022
- Others 10,356 7,953 4,324 3,407
2,07,749 1,98,170 | 1,64,267 1,13,723
Non-Current assets held for sale - 2,317 - -
R 2,317 - -
(C) Total Assets 2,20,148 2,12,016 | 1,79,193 1,27,286
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital 2,010 2,047 2,047 2,047
Other Equity 73.340 74,342 72,072 73,546
Total Equity 75,350 76,389 74,119 75,593
Liabilities
Non — current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings 12,382 16,513 15,588 4,659
- Lease Liabilities 8 911 1047
- Other financial liabilities 197 54 200 202
198
Non-Current provisions 864 766 608 349
Total Non-Current Liabilities 13,450 17,531 17,307 6,257
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings 796 1,692 511 496
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- Lease Liabilities 70 94 225 334
- Trade payables 672 - -
a) Dues of micro and small enterprises 3,123 602 141 96
b) Dues of creditors other than micro and small 2,986 2,250 2,176
enterprises
Other Financial Labilities 4,677 4,555 2,435 2,337
Other Current Liabilities
- Advance from customers 1,21,102 1,07,139 81,537 39,315
- Others 757 889 499 548
Current Provisions 150 139 168 135
Total Current Liabilities 1,31,348 1,18,096 87,766 45,435
(D) Equity & Liabilities 2,20,148 2,12,016 | 1,79,193 1,27,286
3
* Maturities of long-term borrowings are included in current liabilities
(ii) Profit & L oss Statement
(in Rs. Lakhs)
For the For the For the For theyear
nine year year ended | ended
months ended 31%March, | 31¥March,
Consolidated Basis ended on 31%March, | 2022 2021
31 2023
December
, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 64,738 | 39,961 20,385 23,273
Income from partnership 449 | 776 1,789 925
Other Income 1,769 | 1,782 1,185 1,733
A) Total Revenue 66,956 | 42,519 23,359 25,931
Expenses
Direct Costs
- Purchases 13,409 13,586 | 33,594 6,801
- Project Expenses 29,800 37,860 | 26,316 16,631
- Changesin Inventories 1,445 | (27,936) | (49,177) (9,798)
- Hotel & Club Expenses 442 555 | 375 199
- Real Estate Support Operation Expenses 3,630 3,969 | 3,565 3,151
Total Direct Costs 48,725 28,034 | 14,674 16,985
Employee Benefits Expense 4,560 5176 | 4,137 3,467
Selling Expenses 1,966 1,758 | 1,727 1,740
Finance Costs 171 304 | 488 901
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 702 841 | 838 889
Other Expenses 2,533 2,973 | 2,533 1,920
B) Total Expenses 58,658 39,086 | 24,397 25,901
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Profit/(L oss) befor e exceptional item and tax 8,299 3,432 | (1,037) 30
Less. Exceptional Item - - | 426 -
Profit/(L oss) befor e tax 8,299 3,432 | (1,463) 30
Tax Expense
- Current Tax 254 684 E759) 14
- Deferred Tax 1,443 (40) (156)
Profit/(L oss) for the year 6,602 2,788 | (704) (172)
Other comprehensive income
(i) Itemsthat will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
o . 121 112 | 138 260
- Changesin fair value of Eqwty. Instruments (28) (18) | 14 (75)
- Tax Expenses related to above item
- Remeasurement of net defined benefit (21) 5) | (132 71
liabilities
- Tax Expenses related to the above item 6 2|29 (19)
(ii) Itemsthat will be reclassified to profit or loss ) | ’
Comprehensive income for the year 6,679 2,879 | (655) 409
Less: Non-Controlling Interests - M | @ -
Total comprehensive incomefor the year 6,679 2,878 | (656) 408
Earnings per equity share
Basic & Diluted 6601 581 (0.64) 0.40
(in Rs. Lakhs)
For the nine | For the | For the | For the
months ended | year year year ended
Standalone Basis on 31% | ended ended 31%March,
December202 | 31¥March | 31%¥March | 2021
3 , 2023 , 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 59,330 | 33,990 15,630 19,152
Income from partnership 506 | 1,062 1,570 1,001
Other Income 1,470 | 1,448 993 1,558
C) Total Revenue 61,396 | 36,499 18,193 21,711
Expenses
Direct Costs
- Purchases 13,409 13,586 | 33,594 6,801
- Project Expenses 29,800 37,860 | 26,316 16,631
- Changesin Inventories 1,445 (27,936) | (49,177) (9,798)
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- Hotel & Club Expenses 462 555 | 375 241
Total Direct Costs 45,115 24,065 | 11,108 13,876
Employee Benefits Expense 3,398 3,805 | 2.853 2,260
Selling Expenses 1,993 1,773 | 1,729 1,740
Finance Costs 168 29 | 467 890
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 6,680 768 | 767 852
Other Expenses 2,100 2,557 | 2,071 1,785
D) Total Expenses 53,442 33,264 | 18,996 21,402
Profit/(L oss) before exceptional item and tax 7,954 3,236 | (803) 308
L ess. Exceptional Item - - | 408 -
Profit/(L oss) before tax 7,954 3,236 | (1,211) 308
Tax Expense
- Current Tax 242 606 | )
- Deferred Tax 1,428 (76) (618) (55)
Profit/(L oss) for the year 6,284 2,706 | (593) 363
Other comprehensive income
(iii) Itemsthat will not be reclassified to profit or

loss

- Changesin fair value of Eqwty_ Instruments 81 75 | 57 106

- Tax Expenses related to above item (19) ol 3 27)

- Remeasurement of net defined benefit

liabilities (15) 0 | (200) 43

- Tax Expensesrelated to the above item

4 (0) | 50 (11

(iv) Itemsthat will be reclassified to profit or ) | )

loss
Other comprehensive income for the year o1 76 | (62) 112
Total comprehensive incomefor the year 6,335 2,782 | (655) 475
Earnings per equity share
Basic & Diluted 6.26 2.72 | (0.64) 0.46
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(iii) Cash Flow Statement

(in Rs. Lakhs)

For the | For the | For the | For the
nine year ended | year ended | year ended
months 31%March, | 31¥March, | 31¥March,
Consolidated Basis eriged on | 2023 2022 2021
gecelﬂber,
2023
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
iI:I’;ert_np;rofit/ (loss) beforetax and exceptional 8,299 3432 | (1,087) 30
Adjusted for:
Depreci ation 702 841 | 838 889
Interest Income (other than customers) (481) (485) | (459) (421)
Income from Investments (421) (591) | (335) (244)
Irrecoverable Balances Written Off 468 23|53 40
Provision Written Back (426) - |- -
Provision for Doubtful Debts 122 65 | 229 18
Liabilities Written Back (25) (44) | (89) (59)
Interest paid 1,427 2,762 | 1,701 1,358
Investment Property written off - -1 24 15
Fixed Assets written off - 2|51 43
Gain on modification/termination of Right of use 2 (96) | (7) (26)
Lease Liability
Minority Interest - - 1 (0.39) 0.27
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Investment Property (424) 42
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 27 © |8 (699)
Zr?]\g:ﬂcj)?em eL(:rthrOEQr]rr\]pIgé:a)e Benefits  (incl. 103 153 110 110
Profit/(loss) from Joint Venture - @ | @
Income from Partnership (449) (776) | (1789)
g]p;ir;;ng Profit before working capital 8,919 5,327 (704) 1,056
Adjusted for:
Trade Receivables (236) (909) | (51) 428
Other Financial Assets 1,639 185 | 468 174
Loans (544) - - -
Non-Financial Assets (7,812) (5,388) | 311 (1,109)
EWS/LIG Units (265) 653 | (417) (63)
Inventories 329 (28,193) | (50,620) (9,808)
Other Financial Liabilities 444 2,270 | 481 (1,375)
Customer Advances 14,196 26,106 | 42,196 22,317
Non- Financia Liabilities (98) 733 | 250 366
Trade Payables 332 1,038 | 239 319
Cash generated from operations 16,904 1,821 | (7,847) 12,304
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Direct Taxes paid/adjusted (1,515) (662) | (260) (192)
Cash flow befor e exceptional items 15,389 1,159 | (8,107) 12,114
Exceptional items - - | (426) -
A) Net Cash from Operating Activities
15,389 1,159 | (8,533) 12,114
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets (2,546) (2,114) | (545) (888)
Sale of Fixed Assets 2,210 292 | 122 2,193
Net Purchase/ sale of Investments (1,749) 3,940 | (2,616) (745)
Interest Income 481 485 | 459 421
Other Income from Long Term Investments 421 591 | 335 244
B) Net Cash from Investing Activities (1,184) 3,194 | (2,246) 1,224
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from long term and other borrowings (5,027) 2,039 | 11,075 (5,305)
Payment/Modification of Lease Liabilities (93) (204) | (295) (291)
Interest on Lease Liabilities (10 (64) | (140) (144)
Interest paid (1,416) (2,698) | (1,562) (1,214)
Tax on Buyback (1,273) - - -
Buyback of Shares (5,500) - - -
Buyback expenses paid (99) - - -
Dividend paid (503) (512) | (819) (307)
Proceeds from issuance from share capital - - - -
Proceeds from Securities Premium on issuance of - - |- -
Share Capita
Change in Capital Reserve - - - -
Change in Minority Interest - 12 -
C) Net Cash used Financing Activities (13,921) (1,438) | 8,262 (7,261)
Net increasein Cash and Cash Equivalents 284 2,915 | (2,657) 6,076
(A+B+QC)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of 15,626 12,711 | 15,368 9,292
the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the 15,910 15,626 | 12,711 15,368
year
(in Rs. Lakhs)
For the nine | For the | For the | For  the
monthsended | year year year
Standalone Basis on 31% | ended ended ended
December, 31%March | 31%¥March | 31%March
2023 , 2023 , 2022 , 2021
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net profit/ (loss) before tax and exceptional items 7,954 3,236 | (803) 308
Adjusted for:
Depreciation 668 768 | 767 852
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Interest Income (334) (370) | (360) (250)
Dividend Income - - |- -
Income from Investments (310) (429) | (248) (195)
Provision for Doubtful Debts - 8- -
Interest paid 1,423 2,754 | 1,680 1,347
Irrecoverable Balances Written off 426 2124 14
Provision Written Back (408) -l -
Liabilities Written Back (24) (35) | (88) (58)
Provision for Employee Benefits 94 129 | o3 67
Investment Property written off - - - 15
Fixed Assets written off - 2|51 43
Gain on modification/termination of Right of use - 96) | (7) (26)
Lease Liability

(Profit)/Loss on sale of Investment Property (424) 42

(Profit)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 27 ©) |8 (699)
Income from Partnership (596) (1,062) | (1,570)

((:)hg?]r;;ng Profit before working capital 8,495 2948 (453) 1,419
Adjusted for:

Trade Receivables (297) (1,004) | 145 446
Other Financial Assets 1,701 277 | 500 212
Loans (544) - - -
Non-Financial Assets (7,681) (4,603) | (29) (1,261)
Inventories 329 (28,191) | (50,617) (9,809)
Trade Payables 231 1,232 | 208 323
Other Financial Liabilities 121 2,119 | 97 (1,626)
Customer Advances 13,963 25,603 | 42,222 22,115
Non- Financial Liabilities (132) 390 | (49) (1,626)
Cash generated from operations 16,189 770 | (7,978) 11,922
Direct Taxes paid/adjusted (1,467) (679) | (264) (143)
Cash flow before exceptional items 14,722 91 | (8,241) 11,779
Extraordinary items - - | (408) -

D) Net Cash from Operating Activities 14,722 91 | (8,649) 11,779
Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets (2,537) (2,076) | (557) (884)
Sale of Fixed Assets 2,210 292 | 146 2,153
Net change in Investments (9,090) 3,971 | (2,682) (383)
Interest Income 334 370 | 360 250
Other Income from Investments 310 429 | 248 195

(592)

E) Net Cash from Investing Activities 2,985 | (2,485) 1,331
Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net proceeds from borrowings (5,027) 2,105 | 10,944 (5,379)
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Payment of Lease Liabilities (70) (140) | (238) (268)
Interest on Lease Liabilities 10 (56) | (125) (138)
Interest paid (1,414 (2,698) | (1,555) (1,209)
Tax on Buyback (1,273) - - -
Buyback of Shares (5,500) - |- -
Buyback expenses paid (99) - - -
Dividend paid (503) (512) | (819) (307)
F) Net Cash from Financing Activities

(13,895) (1,301) | 8,208 (7,302)
Net increasein Cash and Cash Equivalents 235 1,776 | (2,927) 5,808
(A+B+0C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of 11,271 9,495 | 12,422 6,614
the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the 11,506 11,271 | 9,495 12,422
year

Auditor’s report along with the requisite schedules, footnotes, summary etc as per 3.3.10. (d) of Schedule I of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 is
set out as part of Annexure VII1.

(9) Any change in accounting policies of during the last three years and their effect on the profitsand the
reserves of the I ssuer

There have been no changes in the accounting policies of the Company in the last three years.

(h) Disclosur e requirements under the SEBI Debt Requlations
A. Issuer Information

Details related to the information of the Issuer are given on page number 22.

B. Brief Summary of the business / activities of the Issuer and its line of business at least following
information

i) Overview: Given on page number 19.

ii) Corporate Structure: Given on page number 20.

iii) Key Operationa and financial information parameters for the last three audited years: Given on page number
31.

iv) Project cost and means of financing is as follows:

Means of financing of the Project cost include contribution by the Issuer and issuance of NCDs to the Investor /
Debenture Holder. Besides, customer advances and construction financing from banks/financia ingtitutions, in
case of shortfall, if any, will be the other means of financing. Details of means of financing for the Project are as
given below:

Particulars Amount (Rs. lakhs)

Total Project cost

Land/Approval §/Stamp duty 7,008
Initial working capita 1,249
FA purchases 800

Construction cost 35,638
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Advertisement 2,973
Overheads 4,790
Others (recouping working capital and FA) (1,399)
M eans of Funding 51,059
Contribution by |ssuer 4,800
Contribution by Investor/Debenture Holder (in the form of

NCDs) 3,200
Customer Advances/Construction Financing 43,059

C. Gross Debt: Equity ratio of the Company

Particulars Debt Equity Ratio
Prior to the current Issue 0.17
Post the Issue 0.18

Notes:

a) For calculation of Gross Debt: Equity ratio for prior to the current Issue, debt and equity figures were taken as
available as on 31% December 2023

b) For calculation of Gross Debt: Equity ratio for post the current Issue, debt figures include outstanding debt and
debts obtained after 31 December 2023, accordingly:

1) Debts proposed to be obtained includes Rs. 5.60 crores for the Current Issue.
i1)  Equity figures were taken as on 315 December 2023

D. Brief history of the I ssuer sinceitsincorporation giving details of:

Brief history of the Issuer is as provided above on page no. 19.

i) Details of Share Capital ason last quarter ending 31% December 2023:

Details of share capital of the Issuer are given on page number 26.

ii) Changesin capital structureason last quarter ending 315 December 2023, and for thelast fiveyears:
Details of share capital of the Issuer are given on page number 28.

iii) Equity share capital history of the Company as on the quarter ended on 31% December 2023 and for
thelast fiveyears:

Details related to the equity share capital history of the Company as on the last quarter and for the last five
years are given on page number 28.

iv) Details of acquisition or amalgamation in the last one year: There
isno acquisition or amalgamation in the last one year.

v) Detailsof reorganization or reconstruction in thelast one year:
There is no reorganization or reconstruction in the last one year.

vi) Shar eholding Pattern of the Company as on 31" December 2023:
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Category & [No. of |[No. of fully|Total no. | Shareholding | Tota | No. of Voting | Tota | No. of | No. of
Name of the|shareh |paid-up sharesheld |% calculated || asa|Rights | asa|shares equity
Shareholders |olders |equity shares asper SCRR, | % of % of |pledged |sharesheld
held 1957 As a % | Tota Tota in
of (A+B+C2) (I no. I dematerial
of Voti ized form)
Equi ng
ty right
Shar S
es
A1) Promoter
and Promoter
Group
Al) 4 5,97,22,677 |5,97,22,677 |5,97,22,677 |59.41|5,97,22,677 |59.41|0 5,97,22,677
I ndividual
Ankur Gupta 1,99,05,123 [1,99,05,123 1,99,05123 [19.80/1,99,05,123 [19.80|0 1,99,05,123
Rachna 60,88,381 60,88,381 60,88,381 6.05 |60,88,381 6.05 |0 60,88,381
Gupta
Varun Gupta 1,99,07,040 [1,99,07,040 |2,03,06,281 [19.80/1,99,07,040 [19.80|0 1,99,07,040
Vishal Gupta 1,38,22,133 |1,38,22,133 |1,38,22,133 |13.75|1,38,22,133 |13.75|0 1,38,22,133
A2) Body |1 17,04,109 17,04,109 17,04,109 1.70 |17,04,109 170 |0 17,04,109
Corporate
OPG Realtors 17,04,109 17,04,109 17,04,109 1.70 |17,04,109 1.70 |0 17,04,109
Limited
A=A1+A2 |5 6,14,26,786 |6,14,26,786 |6,14,26,786 |61.11/6,14,26,786 [61.11|0 6,14,26,786
B1)
Ingtitutions
Mutual 3 71,25,286 71,25,286 71,25,286 7.09 |71,25,286 7.09 |0 71,25,286
Funds
SBI  Contra 67,60,746 67,60,746 67,60,746 6.72 |67,60,746 6.72 |0 67,60,746
Fund
Venture 0 0 0 0 00 |O 00 |O 0
Capital Funds
Alternate 3 2,46,086 2,46,086 2,46,086 0.24 |2,46,086 024 |0 2,46,086
Investment
Funds
Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Venture
Capital
Investors
Foreign 24 82,80,399 82,80,399 82,80,399 8.24 |82,80,399 824 |0 82,80,399
Portfolio
Investors
India Capita 74,80,400 74,80,400 74,80,400 7.44 |74,80,400 744 |0 74,80,400
Fund Limited
Financial 1 3,500 3,500 3,500 0.00 |3,500 0.00 |0 0
Institutions/
Banks
Insurance Cos. | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Provident 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fund/ Pension
Funds
Sub-Total B1 |31 1,56,55,271 |1,56,55,271 |1,56,55,271 |15.57|1,56,55,271 |[15.57|0 1,56,51,771
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Category & [No. of |[No. of fully|Total no. | Shareholding | Tota | No. of Voting | Tota | No. of | No. of
Name of the|shareh |paid-up sharesheld |% calculated || asa|Rights | asa|shares equity
Shareholders |olders |equity shares asper SCRR, | % of % of |pledged |sharesheld
held 1957 As a % | Tota Tota in
of (A+B+C2) (I no. I dematerial
of Voti ized form)
Equi ng
ty right
Shar S
es
B2) Central |0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Government/
State
Government(
s)/ President
of India
Sub Total |0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(B)(2
B3) Non-
Ingtitutions
Individual 18,441 1,37,46,327 | 1,37,46,327 1,37,46,327 13.67|1,37,46,327 |13.67|7,07,401 |1,21,23,902
share capital
upto Rs. 2
Lacs
Individual 13 25,79,862 25,79,862 25,79,862 2.57 |25,79,862 2.57 |44,000 25,79,862
share capital
in excess of
Rs. 2 Lacs
NBFC Regd. |0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
with RBI
Employment |0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Trust
Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Depository
Holdings
Any  Other
(specify)
Other Body | 140 16,73,493 16,73,493 16,73,493 1.66 |16,73,493 166 |1,14,078 |16,66,493
Corporate
Other- 1 175 175 175 0.01 |175 0.02 |0 175
Foreign Body
Corporate
Clearing 3 4,056 4,056 4,056 0.01 [4,056 0.01 |0 4,056
Members
NRI - Non-|219 4,86,381 4,86,381 4,86,381 0.48 |4,86,381 0.48 |365 4,84,631
Repat
NRI — Repat |314 9,27,808 9,27,808 9,27,808 0.92 |9,27,808 092 |0 9,23,433
HUF 388 5,55,490 5,55,490 5,55,490 0.55 |5,55,490 0.55 [1,49,912 |5,55,490
|EPF 1 34,69,208 34,69,208 34,69,208 3.45 |34,69,208 345 |0 34,69,208
Authority
Sub Total B3 19,520 (2,34,42,800 |2,34,42,800 |(2,34,42,800 |[23.32(2,34,42,800 |23.32(10,15,756 |2,18,07,250
B=B1+B2+B3 19,551 |3,90,98,071 |3,90,98,071 |3,90,98,071 |38.89|3,90,98,071 |38.89|10,15,756 |3,74,59,021
Total (A+B) |19,556 |10,05,24,857 |10,05,24,857 |10,05,24,857 |100 |10,05,24,857 |100 |10,15,756 9,88,85,807
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Category & [No. of |[No. of fully|Total no. | Shareholding | Tota | No. of Voting | Tota | No. of | No. of
Name of the|shareh |paid-up sharesheld |% calculated || asa|Rights | asa|shares equity
Shareholders |olders |equity shares asper SCRR, | % of % of |pledged |sharesheld
held 1957 As a % | Tota Tota in
of (A+B+C2) (I no. I dematerial
of Voti ized form)
Equi ng
ty right
Shar S
€s
Notel: There are no shares pledged or encumbered by the promoters of the Company.
Note2: The company bought back 18,27,242 equity shares on 14™ August 2023, @ Rs. 301/- per share.
vii) Top 10 equity shareholders (including promoters) ason 31% December 2023
The top 10 equity shareholders of our Company as on 31% December 2023 are as follows:
S Name of the Shareholder Total Number of Number of Equity Total
No. Equity Shares Sharesheld in shar eholding
dematerialised form as
per centage
(%) of Total
Number of
Equity
Shares
1. | Varun Gupta 1,99,07,040 1,99,07,040 19.80
2. | Ankur Gupta 1,99,05,123 1,99,05,123 19.80
3. | Vishal Gupta 1,38,22,133 1,38,22,133 13.75
4. | India Capital Fund Limited 74,80,400 74,80,400 7.44
5. | Rachna Gupta 60,88,381 60,88,381 6.05
6. 6.72
SBI Contra Fund 67,60,746 67,60,746
7. | Investor Education  and 34,69,208 34,69,208 3.45
Protection Fund Authority
8. OPG Realtors Limited 17,04,109 17,04,109 1.69
9. Callour Commercial Pvt Ltd 10,00,000 10,00,000 0.99
10, Satish Chandra Katyal 5,27,161 5,27,161 0.52
Total 8,06,64,301 8,06,64,301 80.24

Note: None of the Independent Directorsis holding any shares of the company.

viii) Details of Directorsand management of the Issuer (Our Management)

In terms of the Articles of Association, our Company is required to have not more than 15 Directors. As on the
date of this General Information Document, our Board comprises of 8 Directors.

Posts held by the Directorsin the company in the past:
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Name, Date of Birth, Address Date of Date of Posts held in the past

Designation, Occupation Appointment Cessation

PAN and DIN
Mr. Vishal Gupta W-177, G.K.- Il,|01% September, | Not Executive Director of the company
02.02.1974 N. Delhi-110048 | 1996 Applicable for 27 vyears i.e from 01%
49 Yearsof age September 1996.
Managing Director
DIN - 00097939
PAN-AHEPG5377M
Occupation: Business
Mr. Ankur Gupta 39 Floor, C-824"  December,| Not Executive Director of the company
17.08.1977 Maharani Bagh, 2002 Applicable for 20 vyears i.e from 24"
46 Y ears of age New Delhi- December 2002.
Joint Managing Director 110065
DIN- 00059884
PAN-AHEPG5378E
Occupation: Business
Mr. Varun Gupta N-5, 2™ Floor,| 30"June,2008 Not Executive Director of the company
14.11.1983 Panchsheel Park, Applicable for 15 years i.e. from 30" June
40 Yearsof age Delhi 110017 2008.
Whole Time Director
DIN - 01666653
PAN-AASPG6994P
Occupation: Business
Mr. Abhishek Dalmia Radha Vihar, 35-|30™" January, 2006| Not Independent  Director of the
06.05.1969 B, Prithvirgj Applicable company for 17 years i.e. w.ef.
54 Yearsof age Road, New 30th January 2006.
Independent Director Delhi-110011
DIN -00011958
PAN- AADPD6742K
Occupation: Business
Ms. Sonal M attoo 1487 Block- K,14™ March, 2003 | Not Independent  Director of the
29.01.1974 Palam Vihar, Applicable company since 20 years i.e. w.ef.
49 Years of age Gurgaon-122001, 14" March 2003.
Independent Director Haryana
DIN -00106795
PAN- ABIPM6504C
Occupation: Practicing
Advocate
Mr. Narayan Anand A-401, A Block,13" February| Not Independent  Director of the
22.11.1963 Bhaggyam 2015 Applicable company w.e.f. 13" February 2015.
60 Yearsof age Sahridaya, Old
Independent Director No. 81, New No.
DIN -02110727 78, Dr. Rangg
PAN- AADPA9195M Road, Mylapore,
Occupation: Business Chennai, ~ Tamil

Nadu - 600004
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Ms. Piyul Mukherjee 2702, Glen11t February| Not Independent  Director of the
14.06.1963 Heights, 2019 Applicable company i.e. w.ef. 11" February
60 Yearsof age Hiranandini 2019
DIN -00182034 Gardens, -Powai,
PAN- AACPM8950H Mumbai
Occupation: Consumer| Maharashtra-
Behaviour Specialist 400076
Mr. Suraj Krishna 102 Van Gogh §/08™ August 2023 | Not Independent  Director of the
Moraje Garden Applicable company w.e.f. 08" August 2023
09.01.1976 Apartments, 30,
47 Yearsof age Kasturba  Road|
DIN: 08594844 Cross, opp.
PAN_AFFPM746,OL British Council,|
Occupation: Service Library,
Bengaluru,
Karnataka -
560001

The following table sets forth details regarding our Board of Directors;

Name, Date of Address Photograph Date of Details of other directorship| Whether
Birth, Appointment Wiful

Designation, Defaulter
Occupation (Yes/No)

PAN and DIN

Mr. Vishal| W-177, G.K .- Executive OPG RedltorsLtd.; No

Gupta I, N. Delhi- Director of the | Latest Developers Advisory

02.02.1974 110048 company for 27 | Ltd.;

50 Yearsof age yearsi.e. from | Topwell Projects Consultants

Managing 01 September | Ltd.;

Director 1996. GD Enterprises (P) Ltd.

DIN - 00097939 Water  Management  and

PAN- Plumbing Skill Council

AHEPG5377M

Occupation:

Business

Mr. Ankur| 3“Floor, C-8 Executive Director| Association of Senior Living No

Gupta Maharani of the company for| Indig;

17.08.1977 Bagh, New 20 yearsi.e. from | OPG RedltorsLtd.;

46 Y ears of age | Delhi-110065 24" December | Latest Developers Advisory

Joint Managing 2002. Ltd.;

Director Topwell Projects Consultants

DIN- 00059884 ' Ltd.;

PAN- GD Enterprises (P) Ltd.

AHEPG5378E Paragon Properties (P) Ltd.

Occupation: Kairav Developers Limited

Business
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Mr. Varun|N-5, 2
Gupta Floor,
14.11.1983 Panchshed
40 Y ear s of age | Park, Delhi
Whole  Time 110017
Director

DIN - 01666653

Executive OPG RedltorsLtd.; No
Director of the | BG Estates (P) Ltd.;
company for 15 | Latest Developers Advisory
yearsi.e. from | Ltd.;
30" June 2008. | Topwell Projects Consultants
Ltd.;
Paragon Properties (P) Ltd.;

PAN- GD Enterprises (P) Ltd.
AASPG6994P Kairav Developers Limited
Occupation:
Business
Mr. Abhishek| RadhaVihar, Independent Revathi Equipment Ltd.; No
Dalmia 35-B, Director of the | Renaissance Stocks Ltd.;
06.05.1969 Prithviraj company for 17 | Rgjratan Global Wire Ltd.;
54 Y ears of age | Road, New yearsi.e.w.ef. | Renaissance Advanced
Independent Delhi-110011 30th January | Consultancy Ltd.;
Director 2006. Semac Consultants (P) Ltd:
DIN -00011958 Priyadarshany Agri Farms (P)
PAN- Ltd.;
AADPD6742K SWBI Design Informatics (P)
Occupation: Ltd,;
Business Renaissance Consultancy
Services Limited
Hari Investments (P) Ltd.
Renai ssance Corporate

Consultants Limited

Alpha Alternatives Holdings
(P) Ltd.

Aditya Infotech Limited
Satellier India Private Limited

Ms. Sonal| 1487 Block-
Mattoo K, Palam
29.01.1974 Vihar,

49 Years of age | Gurgaon-
Independent 122001,
Director Haryana
DIN -00106795
PAN-
ABIPM6504C
Occupation:
Practicing
Advocate

Independent V-Mart Retail Ltd.; No
Director of the | Poly Medicure Limited
company since 20| Azbil Telstar India Private
yearsi.e. w.ef. | Limited
14" March 2003.

Mr. Narayan| A-401, A
Anand Block,
22.11.1963 Bhaggyam
60 Years of age | Sahridaya,

Independent Redrock (India) Offshore No
Director of the | Consultants (P) Ltd.
company w.e.f. | Ujjivan Financia Services

13" February | Limited

Independent Old No. 81, 2015. Invalued Trading (P) Ltd.
Director New No. 78,
DIN -02110727 | Dr. Ranga
PAN- Road,
AADPA9195M | Mylapore,
Occupation: Chennai,
Business Tamil Nadu -
600004
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Ms. Piyul| 2702, Glen Independent Taraltec Solutions (P) Ltd. No
Mukherjee Heights, Director of the| Fleet Maritime India (P) Ltd.
14.06.1963 Hiranandini company i.e.| Quipper Research (P) Ltd.
60 Years of age | Gardens, w.ef. 11" Proact Research &
DIN -00182034 | Powai, February 2019 | Consultancy (P) Ltd.
PAN- Mumbai
AACPM8950H | Maharashtra-
Occupation: 400076
Consumer
Behaviour
Specialist
Mr. Suraj 102 Van Independent New Soul Restoration Private No
Krish_na Gogh S Director of the | Limited
Moraje Garden company w.e.f.
09.01.1976 A 08" August 2023
partments,

48 Years of age 30, Kasturba
DIN: 08594844 ’
PAN- Road Cross,
AFFPM7460L | oPp- British
Occupation: Council,
Service Library,

Bengaluru,

Karnataka -

560001

No directors of the company are appearing in the RBI defaulter list of ECGC default list except in the matter BOB 2104-
001 dated 01% November 2021, where the Bank of Baroda has reported fraud in respect of Unit No. L-301 and L-424 in
Ashiana Dwarka Project at Jodhpur. The company has filed a writ petition against the same and the matter is currently
pending before the High Court of Rajasthan.

We confirm that the Permanent Account Number, Aadhaar Number, Driving License Number, Bank Account Number(s)
and Passport Number of the Promoters and Permanent Account Number of Directors have been submitted to the stock
exchange on which the Debentures are proposed to be listed at the time of filing of this Genera Information Document.

Brief Biographies of Promoters and Directors
Mr. Vishal Gupta (Managing Director)

Mr. Visha Gupta is a graduate from Sydenham College (Mumbai) and an MBA from FORE School of
Management (Delhi). Mr. Vishal Guptaisacknowledged for hisin depth understanding of thereal estate business,
customer psychology and market behaviour. He has a great eye for detail and takes a keen interest in the
conceptualization and planning of new housing projects for the Company. He is associated with Ashianafor the
last 27 years and actively involved in project execution, designing and general administration. He has been
instrumental in growth of the company.

Mr. Ankur Gupta (Joint Managing Director)

Mr. Ankur Guptais a Bachelor in Business Administration from Fairleigh Dickinson University (USA) and an
MSin Real Estatefrom New Y ork University (USA). He focused on residential projectsfor senior citizens during
his research work at University. His experience was put to good use at Utsav and currently he leads Marketing,
and Sales of the Company. He also looks after Hotel and Facility Management segments. Heis actively associated
with Ashiana for the last 20 years.
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Mr. Varun Gupta (Whole Time Director)

Mr. Varun Gupta is a Bachelor in Science from Stern School of Business, New York University (USA). He
ma ored in inance and anagement and graduated with the high academic distinction, * agna Cum Laude’. e
then joined Citigroup in Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities where he was underwriting commercial real
estate. After ayear and ahalf of thisrich experience, he has joined Ashianawhere heislooking after Land, Legal
and Finance for the last 15 years.

Mr. Abhishek Dalmia (Independent Director)

Mr. Abhishek Dalmiaisthe non executive independent director of our Company. Mr. Abhishek Dalmiais a
Chartered Accountant and Cost Accountant. He started his career by setting up an advisory business under the
name of Renaissance Group. He has been associated with our Company since 2006.

Ms. Sonal Mattoo (Independent Director)

Ms. Sonal Mattoo is alawyer with 24 years of post-qualification work experience. She holds a bachelor of arts
and a bachelor of laws degree from National Law School of India University, Bangalore. She specialises in
workplace harassment, diversity issues, mediation matters, matrimonial issues and negotiations. She is associated
with Ashiana since 2003. Sheis a practicing advocate.

Mr. Narayan Anand (Independent Director)

Mr. Naryan Anand has spent the last 19 years working in Investment Banking where he helped midmarket and
large corporate raise equity and debt capital in India. He holds agraduated honor in Mechanical Engineering from
the National Institute of Technology, Jaipur and holds an MBA from IIM, Bangalore. He is associated with the
company since 2015.

Ms. Piyul Mukherjee (Independent Director)

Ms. Piyul Mukherjee is a consumer behavior specialist with more than 32 years of experience working in the
corporate sector. Sheis the co-founder and CEO of Quipper Research Pvt. Ltd. A boutique market research firm
that conducts qualitative research for aglobal roster of blue-chip clients, by offering adiverse range of qualitative
methodologies and hybrid research design. She has a PhD from the Indian Institute of Technology, Bombay, and
holds an MBA from the Jamnalal Bgjg) Institute of Management Studies, University of Mumbai. She has been
associated with the company since February 2019.

Mr. Krishna Suraj Moraje (Independent Director)

Mr. Krishna Suraj Moraje isagold medalist in Electrical Engineering from the National Institute of Technology
in Surat and has an MBA from the Indian Institute of Management in Ahmedabad. He is recipient of the |IM
Ahmedabad Y oung Alumni Achiever Award and a Fellow of the Aspen Global Leadership Network. He was the
former CEO of Quess Corp, a USD 2 billion publicly listed business services company with over 400,000
employees. Mr. Suraj previously spent two decades at McKinsey & Company where he played an instrumental
role in establishing the irm’s African Tech edia and Telecom practice, and in transforming the hilippines
Office as the Managing Partner for the country.

Brief profile of Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Vikash Dugar (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Vikash Dugar was appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the company in September 2014. He has
been associated with Ashiana for the last 8 years. He looks after Corporate Finance, Taxation, Accounting,

Internal Audit, Investor Relation, Corporatelawsand I T. Heisamember of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India, Institute of Company Secretaries of India and Insurance Ingtitute of India. He is also a professional
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member of All India Management Association. He has graduated from Shriram College of Commerce, Delhi and
is also a law graduate. He has around 22 years of rich experience in various verticals of Finance, Business
Partnering and Analytics, Strategy, Risk Management, Systems Implementation, Audits and Management
Assurance Services, Corporate Governance and General Management across awide spectrum of industry verticals
like Telecom, Real Estate, Power, I T, Education, Consulting and Facility Management.

Mr. Nitin Sharma (Company Secretary)

Mr. Nitin Sharma has been serving Ashiana Housing Ltd. for the last more than 16 years. He is associate member
of theICSl, and Law Graduate. Mr. Nitin Sharmawas designated as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
of the company in the year 2014. Prior to working for the Issuer he was working with Minda Industries Ltd. as

industrial trainee.

iX) Changesin the Board of Directorsduring thelast threeyears

Name, Date of Date of Cessation |Director of the Company Remarks
Designation and Appointment since (in case of
DIN resignation/cessation)
Mr. Hemant Kaul |30" May, 2013 27" August 2022 Director of the He had been associated with
Independent company since 2013 | Ashiana since 2013 and his
Director term as Independent
DIN -00551588 Director exhausted w.ef.
27th August 2022
Mr. Suraj Krishna| 08" August 2023 N.A. N.A. Appointed as Independent
Moraje Director
Independent
Director
DIN: 08594844

E) Details of directors’ remuneration, and such particulars of the nature and extent of their interests in the
issuer (duringthe current year and preceding threefinancial years):

i) Remuneration of Directorsason 31% March 2023

Rs. In lakhs
Particulars | Mr. Vishal Mr. Mr. Mr. Mr. Ms. Sonal Mr. Ms. Piyul
Gupta Ankur Varun Abhishek Hemant M attoo Narayan Mukherjee
Gupta Gupta Dalmia Kaul Anand
Designation Managing Joint Whole | Independent | Independent | Independent | Independent | Independent
Director Managing Time Director Director Director Director Director
Director | Director
Salary 164.00 164.00 164.00 8.00 03.26 18.00 08.00 08.00
Commission 33.19 33.19 33.19 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Perquisites 29.81 32.58 46.69 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sitting Fee Nil Nil Nil 0.02 0.02 0.05 0.04 0.04
Total 227.00 229.77 243.88 08.02 03.28 18.05 08.04 08.04

54




General Information Document for issue of listed unsecured non-

convertible debentures on private placement basis
For private circulation only
16 February, 2024

Remuneration of Directors ason 31% March 2022

Rs. In lakhs
Particulars Mr. Mr. Ankur Mr. Mr. Mr. Hemant Ms. Sonal [Mr. Narayan | Ms. Piyul
Vishal Gupta Varun | Abhishek Kaul M attoo Anand Mukherjee
Gupta Gupta Dalmia
Designation Managing Joint Whole | Independent | Independent | Independent | Independent |Independent
Director Managing Time Director Director Director Director Director
Director Director
Salary 120.00 120.00 120.00 08.00 08.00 18.00 08.00 08.00
Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Per quisites 35.87 27.47 35.24 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sitting Fee Nil Nil Nil 0.03 0.03 0.04 0.05 0.05
Total 155.87 147.47 155.24 08.03 08.03 18.04 08.05 08.05
Remuneration of directorsason 31% March 2021
Rs. In lakhs
Particulars Mr. Mr. Ankur Mr. Mr. Mr. Ms. Sonal Mr. Ms. Piyul
Vishal Gupta Varun Abhishek Hemant Mattoo Narayan Mukherjee
Gupta Gupta Dalmia Kaul Anand
Designation Managing Joint Whole | Independent | Independent | Independent | Executive | Independent
Director Managing Time Director Director Director Director Director
Director Director
Salary 60.00 60.00 60.00 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Perquisites 25.48 24.61 23.22 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sitting Fee Nil Nil Nil 3.00 8.00 18.00 3.00 4.00
Total 85.48 84.61 83.22 3.00 8.00 18.00 3.00 4.00

ii) Remuneration payable or paid to a director by the issuer, its subsidiary or associate company, shareholding of

the director in the companyj, its subsidiaries, and associate companies on a fully diluted basis.

Name of Director/

Kairav DevelopersLtd.

Latest Developers Advisory Ltd.

Topwell Projects Consultants Ltd.

Entity (Associate Company) (Subsidiary Company) (Subsidiary Company)
Shareholding | Remuneration | Shareholding | Remuneration Shareholding | Remuneration

Mr. Vishal Gupta 100  equity | Nil 100  equity | Nil 100  equity | Nil
shares* shares* shares*

Mr. Ankur Gupta 100  equity | Nil 100  equity | Nil 100  equity | Nil
shares* shares* shares*

Mr. Varun Gupta 100  equity | Nil 100  equity | Nil 100  equity | Nil
shares* shares* shares*

Mr. Abhishek | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Dalmia

Ms. Sonal Mattoo Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Narayan Anand | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Ms. Piyul Mukherjee | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Surg Krishna | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Moraje

* Shares are held as nominee of AshianaHousing Ltd.
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iii) Appointment of any relatives to an office or place of profit of the issuer, its subsidiary or associate
company
Thereis no appointment to office or place of profit either in the issuer or its subsidiaries or associate company.
However, Mr. Visha Gupta, Mr. Ankur Gupta and Mr. Varun Gupta are brothersin relation.

iv) Full particulars of the nature and extent of interest, if any, of every director:

A. Inthe promotion of theissuer company:
Mr. Visha Gupta, Mr. Ankur Gupta, and Mr. Varun Guptaare promoters of the company. Thereisno interest
of other directors of the company either in the promotion or formation of the company.

B. In any immoveable property acquired by the issuer company in the two years preceding the date of
theissue document or any immoveable property proposed to be acquired by it; or

There is no such interest.

C. Wheretheinterest of such adirector consistsin beinga member of afirm or company, the nature and
extent of hisinterest in thefirm or company, with a statement of all sumspaid or agreed to be paid to
him or to the firm or company in cash or shares or otherwise by any person either to induce him to
become, or to help him qualify asa director, or otherwise for servicesrendered by him or by thefirm
or company, in connection with the promotion or formation of theissuer company shall be.

There is no such interest. Details of shareholding of Directors are given in the ‘shareholding of directors’
section given on page number 48 of this document. All the shares held by executive directors are fully paid

up.

(D) Contribution being made by the directorsaspart of the offer or separately in furtherance of such
objects.
There is no such contribution.

V) The aggregate number of securities of the issuer company and its subsidiary companies purchased or
sold by the promoter group, and by the directors of the company, which is a promoter of the issuer
company, and by the director s of theissuer company and their relatives, within six monthsimmediately
preceding the date of filing the issue document with the Registrar of Companies, shall be disclosed.

The Promoters and Promoters Group sold part of their shareholding in the Buy Back offer of the Company
completed on 14" August 2023, details of which are asfollows:

Promotersand Promoters Group No. of sharessold in Buy Back
Mr. Vishal Gupta Promoter and Director 2,77,207
Mr. Ankur Gupta Promoter and Director 3,99,202
Mr. Varun Gupta Promoter and Director 3,99,241
Ms. Rachna Gupta Promoters Group 1,22,104
OPG Realtors Ltd. Promoters Group 34,176
Total | 1231930

No other directors of the Company participated in the Buyback offer of the Company as they didn’t have any
shares of the Company. Further, thereisno sale purchase of shares of either of the subsidiary company or any
associate company within six months.
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vi) Matters Rélating to:
a) Material contracts

By the very nature of its business, the Company is involved in a number of transactions involving financial
obligations and therefore it may not be possible to furnish details of all material contracts/ agreements/ documents
involving financial obligations of the Company. However, the contracts / agreements / documents listed below
which are or may be deemed to be material, have been entered into / executed by the Company:

1. Memorandum and Articles of Assaciation of the Company, as amended from time to time.

2. Annual Reports for the year ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021, of the Company.

3. Tripartite agreement between the Company, Registrar and CDSL.

4. Tripartite agreement between the Company, Registrar and NSDL.

5. Details related to Related Party Transactions are provided to the stock exchanges on half yearly basis, are aso
provided in the annual reports, investors may check the details from there a so.

b) Time and place at which the contracts together with documents will be available for inspection from the

date of issue document until the date of closing of subscription list are also required to be specifically
disclosed.

Certified true copy of the above documents is available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company
situated at 5F Everest, 46/C Chowringhee Road, Kolkata 700071, until the date of closure of the Issue.

¢) Reference to the relevant page number of the audit report which sets out the details of the related party
transactions entered during the three financial yearsimmediately preceding the issue of issue document.

Details of the related party transactions in the audit report:

F.Y. of the Audit Report Page No.
2020-21 9
2021-21 10
2022-23 10

F) Detailsregarding the auditors of the Company

M/s. B. Chhawchharia & Co. (Chartered Accountants)

(Date of appointment: 171" September 2022)

Chartered Accountants

DTJ524 & 525, DLF Towers B, Jasola District Centre, New Delhi 110025

E-mail: abhishek@bcco.co.in
Telefax: 91 (11) 4037 8600

Changein auditorsin thelast threeyears:

M/s. B. Chhawchharia & Co. (Chartered Accountants) appointed on 17" September 2022 in place of the outgoing
auditors M/s. VM SS & Associates on completion of their tenure. Apart from this thereis no change.

G) Details of Borrowings of the Company (FINANCIAL INDEBTEDNESS)

The details of other indebtedness of our Company as on the date of this document is set out below:
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Lender’s | Type of| Amount Principal Repayment | Security Credit | Asset
Name Facility Sanctioned | amount Date/ Rating, if| Classification
(Rs) Outstanding | Schedule applicable
(Rs)
Axis Bank 12.50 Nil Commitment | Collatera: N.A. NLA.
Bank Guarantee | Crores under the| Collateral However,
Limited (Current guarantee security in the| issuer
Limit used: will be| form of FDs. rating is
Rs. 3.16 honoured by CARE A;
Crores) the borrower Stable
from its own
resources.
HDFC oD 60.0 Crores | Rs. 5.65 | To be repaid| Mutual Funds | N.A. N.A.
Bank Ltd. | against (Current Crores according to However,
Mutual limit Rs. the usage of issuer
Fund for| 36.00 the facility rating s
working Crores on aongwith CARE A;
capital the  basis interest. Stable
value of
Mutual
Funds
mortgaged)
HDFC oD 30.0 Crores | Rs. 0.62| To be repaid| Fixed Deposit | N.A. N.A.
Bank Ltd. | against (Current Crores according to However,
Fixed limit Rs. the usage of issuer
Deposit 05.31 the facility rating is
for Crores on aongwith CARE A;
working the basis of interest. Stable
capital fixed
deposits
mortgaged)
ICICI Bank Rs. 3.53| Nil Commitment | Collateral: N.A. N.A.
Bank Guarantee | Crores under the| Bank However,
Limited guarantee Guarantee issuer
will be| availed against| rating  is
honoured by| security of al| CARE A;
the borrower| that piece and| Stable
from its own| parcel of
resources. licensed land
admeasuring
221 crores
situated in
village
Wizarpur, Sec-
93, Gurugram,
Haryana,
including  dl
structures, both
present and
future  aong
with al the
developmental
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potential
arising thereon,
both  present
and future.
Cash Margin
10% of BG
Amount.
Yes Bank| Drop Credit limit| Rs. 2| To be repaid| Exclusive N.A. N.A.
Limited | Down OD| of Rs. 17| Crores(OD) | according to| charge by way| However,
Facility crores the usage of| of  Equitable| issuer
and Bank| (Drop Down the facility| Mortgage on| rating is
Guarantee | OD Facility aong with| Village Mal| CARE A;
of Rs. 12 interest. (Commercial Stable
Crores, and Retaill space),
Bank Hypothecation
Guarantee of project
of Rs. 5 receivable from
Crores sold and unsold
currently units of project
utilized Phase 4 and 5
0.38375 of Ashiana
Crores) Dwarka.
ICICI Vehicle Rs. 0.90| Rs. 0.45| Monthly Loan against| N.A. N.A.
Bank Loan Crores Crores repayment in| hypothecation | However,
Limited 60 equal | of Mercedez| issuer
installments | car for which| rating is
payable by| loan facility is| CARE A;
10" of the| availed. Stable
succeeding
month
ICICI Vehicle Rs. 043| Rs. 0.33| Monthly Loan against| N.A. N.A.
Bank Loan Crores Crores repayment in| hypothecation | However,
Limited 60 equal | of Toyota| issuer
installments | Camry Hybrid| rating is
payable by 1%| car for which| CARE A;
of the| loan facility is| Stable
succeeding availed.
month.

B. Detailsof Unsecured Borrowings of the Company as of 31" December 2023.

There are no unsecured loan facilities or other unsecured borrowings availed by the Company, other than
the unsecured NCDs detailed in the following table.

C. Details of Non-Convertible Debentures as on 31% December 2023.

Sl Debenture Tenor/ |Coupon | Amount| Date of Redemption| Credit Secured/ | Security
No. Series Period of (inRs. |Allotment Date/ Rating  [Unsecured
maturity crores) Schedule
1. | AHLO8%2038 | 20 8% 18.74 2gh 28h ICRA-A  [Unsecured | Not
Years September | September applicable
2018 2038
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2. | AHL-8%-31-5-| 20 8% 97.0 31%  May| 31% May CARE-A  |[Unsecured | Non
41-PVT Years 2021 2041 applicable
3. | AHL-8%-19-7-| 20 8% 26.40 20th  July] 19th  July] CARE- Unsecured | Non
42-PVT Years 2022 2042 A/Stable applicable
Total 142.14

1. The total current outstanding Non-Convertible Debentures, as on the date of issue of this General
Information Document, are of Rs. 124.36 Crores only.

2. The above NCDs are listed on BSE.

D. Listof top 10 Debenture Holders

The top 10 Debenture Holders of our Company as on 31 December 2023, are as follows:

Sl. No. Name of the Debenture | Category Face Value | Outstanding | Holdingasa %
holder of holder of holding Amount (in of total
INR Rs. crores) | outstanding non
convertible
securities of the
issuer
1 International  Finance | Financial 10 lakhs per 0.96 0.77
Corporation (For | Institution NCD
“Ashiana Da sh” pro ect
at Jaipur)
2. International  Finance | Financial 10 lakhs per 97.0 78.0
Corporation (For | Institution NCD
“Ashiana Amara”
project at Gurugram)
3. International Finance | Financia 10 lakhs per 26.40 21.23
Corporation ( or“ WC | Ingtitution NCD
pro ect in Chennai)”
Total 124.36

E. Corporate guaranteesissued by our Company along with the name of the counter party

Nil

F.  Commercial Papers Outstanding

There are no outstanding commercia papers issued by the Company.

G. Details of the bank fund-based facilitiesrest of the borrowing from financial ingtitutions or financial

creditors:

Name of | Type of | Amount Principle | Date of | Credit | Secured | Security

Party/Nam | Facility/ Sanctioned/ | amount Repayment | Ratin | /unsecur

e of | Instrumen | issued outstandin | / g ed

Instrument |t g Schedule

HDFC- LAS 60Cr 5.65Cr To be | N.A. Secured | Mutual

LAS Sanctioned, repaid Funds

Facility I ssued 36¢r according (Value 40
to the usage Crores)
of the
facility
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alongwith
interest.

HDFC-OD

Overdraft

30Cr
Sanctioned,
Issued 5.3cr

0.62cr

To be
repaid
according
to the usage
of the
facility
alongwith
interest.

N.A.

Secured

Fixed
Deposits
(Value 7.2cr)

SBI-OD

Overdraft

0.25crore

Nil

To be
repaid
according
tothe usage
of the
facility
aongwith
interest.

N.A*

Secured

Fixed
Deposits
(Value
0.33cr)

Yes Bank-
DLOD

DLOD

12.25 Crore

2 Cr.

To be
repaid
according
to the usage
of the
facility
aongwith
interest.

N.A*

Secured

Land and
Receivables
of  Dwarka
Project(Jodh

pur)

HDFC-OD

Overdraft

0.37 Crore

Nil

To be
repaid
according
to the usage
of the
facility
alongwith
interest.

N.A*

Secured

Fixed
Deposits(Val
ue0.68Crore)

ICICI
Bank

Vehicle
Loan

0.47 Crore,
Sanctioned
0.46Crore

0.33

Monthly
repayment
in 60 equa
installment
s payable
by 10" of
the
succeeding
month

N.A*

Secured

Toyota
Camry

ICICI
Bank

Vehicle
Loan

0.90 Crore,
Sanctioned
0.75cr

0.45

Monthly
repayment
in 60 equal
installment
S payable
by 10" of
the
succeeding
month

N.A*

Secured

Mercedes

Other than as disclosed above, there are no other borrowings. We confirm there is no fund-based facilities
(including hybrid debt like Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB), Optionally Convertible

Debentures/ Preference Shares) are obtained from financial institutions or financial creditors.
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Note: * Issuer rating is CARE A stable.

H. The broad lending and borrowing policy including summary of the key terms and conditions of the
term loans such asre-scheduling, prepayment, penalty, default.

There isno such policy.

I. Provisions of clause 3.3.41. (b) of Schedule | of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (I ssue and
Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations 2021 are not applicable.

J. Details of all default/sand/or delay in payments of interest and principal of any kind of term loans, debt
securities and other financial indebtedness including corporate guarantee issued by the Company, in

the past five years.

There have been no defaults and/or delay in payments of interest and principal of any kind of term loans,
debt securities and other financial indebtedness including corporate guarantee issued by the Company, in

the past five years.

K. Any Default in Annual filing of the I ssuer under the Companies Act, 2013 or therulesmadethereunder.
There has been no default in annual filing of the Issuer under the Companies Act, 2013 or the rules made

thereunder.

L. Details of any outstanding borrowings taken/ debt securities issued where taken / issued (i) for
consideration other than cash, whether in whole or part, (ii) at a premium or discount, or (iii) in
pur suance of an option:

There have been no outstanding borrowings taken/ debt securities issued where taken / issued (i) for
consideration other than cash, whether in whole or part, (ii) a a premium or discount, or (iii) in pursuance

of an option.

H) Details of Promotersand Promoters Group holding in the Company as on thelast quarter end

Promoters’ shareholding in our Company as on 31% December 2023

Category/ Name of Nos. of No. of fully | Total nos. of | Shareholdingasa | Number of equity
shar eholder shareholders| paid-up equity % of total no. of sharesheld in
equity shares held equity shares dematerialized form
shares held (calculated as per
SCRR, 1957) Asa
% of (A+B+C2)

Al) Indian
IndividualgHindu
undivided Family
Ankur Gupta 1] 1,99,05,123| 1,99,05,123 19.80 1,99,05,123
Varun Gupta 1] 1,99,07,040| 1,99,07,040 19.80 1,99,07,040
Vishal Gupta 1] 1,38,22,133| 1,38,22,133 13.75 1,38,22,133
Rachna Gupta 1| 60,88,381 60,88,381 6.05 60,88,381
Sub Total Al 4| 597,22,677| 5,97,22,677 59.41 5,97,22,677
A2) Foreign 0 0 0 0.00 0
Any Other (Body
Corporate)
OPG Realtors Ltd. 1| 17,04,109 17,04,109 1.69 17,04,109
Sub Total A2 1| 17,04,109 17,04,109 1.69 17,04,109
A=A1+A2 5| 6,14,26,786| 6,14,26,786 61.10 6,14,26,786
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Note: No shares are pledged by promoter s of the Company

I) Abridged version of Audited Consolidated and standalone financial information (like Profit and Loss
statement, Balance Sheet, and Cash Flow statement) for thelast threeyearsand auditor qualifications,
if any.

Pleaserefer to Annexure VIII.

Thereareno remarks, qualifications, or adverse remarks by our Auditorsintheir audit reports of our Company
during the last five years.

J) Abridged version of latest audited / limited reviewed half yearly consolidated and standalone financial
information (like Profit & L oss statement, and Balance Sheet) and auditor ’s qualifications, if any.

Please refer to Annexure VIII.

K) Any material event/ development or change having implications on the financialg/credit quality (e.g.
any material regulatory proceedingsagainst the I ssuer/promoters, tax litigationsresulting in material
liabilities, corporate restructuring event etc.) at the time of issue which may affect the issue or the
investor’s decision to invest / continueto invest in the debt securities.

Thereisno such material event, development or change that may have implication on the financials or credit
quality at the time of Issue which may affect the Issue or the Investor’s decision to invest or continue to
invest in the Debentures.

xiv) Details of pending litigation involving theissuer, promoter, director, subsidiaries, group companies or
any other person, whose outcome could have material adverse effect on the financial position of the
issuer and may affect investor's decision to invest.

Details are given on page number 64.

xX) Related party transactionsentered during thelast threefinancial yearsimmediately preceding theyear
of circulation of offer letter including with regard to loans made or, guarantees given or securities
provided.

Please refer to Annexure X.

XXI) The requirement of additional disclosures under 3.3.28. of Schedule | of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations 2021 are not applicable.
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

A. Detailsof any litigation or legal action pending or taken by any Ministry or Department of the Government or
a statutory authority against the Promoter/Company during the last three yearsimmediately preceding the year
of this General I nformation Document and any direction issued by such Ministry or Department or statutory
authority upon conclusion of such litigation or legal action.

There have been no litigations or legal actions pending or taken by any Ministry or Department of the Government
or a statutory authority against the Promoter/Company during the last three years immediately preceding the year
of this General I nformation Document except in the following matter:

1. There were two FIRs and a criminal complaint against Mr. Vishal Gupta (Managing Director) and others by
Mr. K.M. Kaushal (the complainant) in Bhiwadi (Rajasthan). Matters were investigated by Police and final
closure report was submitted before the Judicial Magistrate, Bhiwadi (Rajasthan). Two matters are closed.
One FIR bearing No. 340/2014 is pending. The Complainant has died. No Chargesheet filed in this matter.

2. An FIR dated 12th February 2021 bearing number 0075/2021 has been filed by residents of Rangoli Gardens
Project commonly through Rangoli Gardens Owner’s Welfare Society against M/s. Ashiana Maintenance
ServicesLLP (AMSL) and itspartners. In the FIRRangoli Gardens Owners Welfare Society allegesthat AMSL,
and its partnersetc. are trying to misappropriate an amount of Rs. 4,50,00,000/- (Four Crores Fifty Lacs only)
collected towards capital charges. They further allege that AMSL and others have as well illegally collected
an amount of Rs. 5,00,00,000/- (Five Crores only) for disposal of untreated waste - water of STP without
proper approval. Final Report has been submitted in the matter.

3. The resident welfare society of “Ashiana Town” (one of the projects in Bhiwadi (Rajasthan) had filed a
complaint before Judicial Magistrate, District Alwar under Section 156(3) who issued directions to register
FIR with respect to non- construction of visitor parking as per approved plans, sale of visitor parking, removal
of LPG gas bank against Mr. Vishnu Chauhan, Mr. Vishal Gupta, Mr. Ankur Gupta, and Mr. Varun Gupta.
Accordingly, an FIR bearing no. 0168 has been filed under section 420, 427, 447, 506 and 120 -B of Indian
penal Code 1860. Investigation is completed and Final Report has been submitted in the Court.

4. We have received a notice under section 91 of CRPC in the name of Mr. Atma Sharan, Mr. Gongopdhay, Mr.
Ankur Gupta, Mr. Varun Gupta in their capacity as partners of Ashiana Maintenance Services and Mr. Vishal
Gupta as director of Ashiana Housing Limited. On a complaint filed by one Mr. Sunil Deewan, Secretary
Ashiana Umang Residents Welfare Society under sections 420, 406, 467, 468, 471 and 120 B of CRPC before
Police Thana, SEZ, District Jaipur-West, Jaipur. The notice does not have grounds of the matter and
accordingly we have submitted our reply and police will submit its report.

B. Details of any inquiry, inspections or investigations initiated or conducted under the Companies Act, 2013 or
Companies Act, 1956 in the last three years immediately preceding the year of this General Information
Document in the case of Company and all of its subsidiaries.
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Other than the matter as disclosed above, no other inquiry, inspections or investigations has been initiated or
conducted under the Companies Act or any previous company’s law in the last three yearsimmediately preceding
the year of this General Information Document in the case of Company and all of its subsidiaries. There are no
prosecutions filed (whether pending or not) fines imposed, compounding of offences in the last three years
immediately preceding the year of this General Information Document.

Details of prosecutionsfiled (whether pending or not) finesimposed, compounding of offencesin thelast three
years immediately preceding the year of this General Information Document against the Company and all of
itssubsidiaries.

The National Stock Exchange (NSE) and the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) had imposed fine of Rs. 4,720/- for
delay infiling of Annual Secretarial Compliance Report under regulation 24A, and BSE aso imposed fine of Rs.
28,320/- for non-filing of Debenture Trustee Certificate under regulation 52(5) of the SEBI LODR Regulations
during the financial year 2021-2022. The Company has deposited the imposed fine.

Further, the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited had levied penalty of Rs. 17,98,320/- aleging non- compliances of
regulation 57(1), 57(4), 57(5) and 60(2) of the SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015. The Company has deposited the
penalty levied under protest with request to grant opportunity of hearing to the company to explain its’ stand on
the same. Out of the above amount of INR 1,55,760/- has been waived by the stock exchange.

Apart from the above there are no prosecution, fines or compounding of offences has been filed or imposed in the
last three years immediately preceding the year of this General Information Document against the Company and
all of itssubsidiaries.

Details of acts of material frauds committed against the Company in the last three years and current financial
year, if any, and the action taken by the Company.

During the financial year 2021-2022, there was an instance of fraud involving misappropriation of funds by an
employee, the total amount involved whereof is Rs. 4.26 Crores. In view of the management, this is one off
instance, and the Company has adequate internal controls commensurate with its size and nature of operations.

Other than as stated above, there are no acts of frauds committed against the company in the last three years.
Details of pending proceedings initiated against the issuer for economic offences, if any

Thereis no such proceedings initiated/pending against the issuer.

Disclosures pertaining to wilful default.

Neither the Issuer nor any of its Promoters or directors have been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or
any other financial ingtitutions.

a. Name of the bank declaring them as awilful defaulter: Not Applicable

b. Theyear in which the entity they were declared as awilful defaulter: Not Applicable

¢. Outstanding amount when they were declared as a wilful defaulter: Not Applicable

d. Name of the entity declared as awilful defaulter: Not Applicable

e. Stepstaken, if any, for the removal from thelist of wilful defaulters: Not Applicable

f. Other disclosures, as deemed fit by the issuer in order to enable investors to take informed decisions:
Not Applicable

Any other disclosure as specified by the Board: Not Applicable
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OTHER DISCLOSURES UNDER SEBI DEBT REGULATIONS, 2021

(a) Names of all the recognised stock exchanges where the debt securities are proposed to be listed clearly
indicating the designated stock exchange.

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the wholesale debt segment of BSE Limited and BSE Limited shall
be the designated stock exchange. BSE Limited has provided an ‘in-principle’ listing approval for the listing of
the Debentures offered through this General Information Document through its letter dated 07 December 2023.

(b) Other details:

(i) DRR creation - relevant regulations and applicability.

The Issuer will create and maintain (to the extent required under Applicable Law) for so long as any obligations
under the Debenture Trust Deed and the Debenture Documents are outstanding, a debenture redemption reserve
in accordance with the below applicable regulations:

e Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013.
¢ Rule 18 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014; and
e Any other guidelinesissued by SEBI and any other applicable Law, from time to time.

(ii)Issuelinstrument specific regulations - relevant details (Companies Act, RBI guidelines, etc).

The key regulations applicable to the Issue and the Debentures are as follows, in each case, as amended from
time to time:

e SEBI Debt Regulations

e SEBI Operational Circular

o SEBI LODR Regulations,

e CompaniesAct, 2013

e Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014

e Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014

e Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993.

(iii) Default in Payment: In the event the Issuer failsto pay any amount payable by it asinterest and/or principal
redemption on the relevant due dates, interest shall accrue on the Unpaid Sum from the due date up to the
date of actual payment at a rate per annum which is the sum of 2% and the interest rate of 8% per annum.

(iv) Delayin Listing: If the Debenturesare not listed for any reason whatsoever within 15 daysfrom the relevant
Deemed Date of Allotment, the Issuer shal: (i) immediately redeem/ buy back the Debentures from the
Debenture Holders in accordance with the Applicable Law (including the RBI circular RBI1/2011-12/423
A.P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 89 dated March 1, 2012 and SEBI circular IMD/FPI& C/CIR/P/2019/124
dated November 05, 2019) by making payment of the subscription amounts of such Debentures to the
Debenture Holders together with the applicable interest.

In case of adelay in listing of the Debentures beyond 4 (four) trading days from the relevant Deemed Date
of Allotment, the Issuer will (i) pay a penal interest of at least 1% per annum over the Interest Rate from the
Deemed Date of Allotment until the listing of such Debentures, to the Debenture Holders; and (ii) be
permitted to utilize the issue proceeds of its subsequent two privately placed issuances of securities only
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after having received final listing approva from the stock exchanges(s) in respect of the listing of such
securities

(v) Delay in allotment of securities: Consequences for delay in allotment of securities shall be the same as
for delay in listing of securities.

(vi) Issuedetails; Please refer to the Summary Term Sheet

(vii) Application Process: As set out below in ‘Issue rocedure’

(viii) Disclosure prescribed under PAS-4 of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities), Rules,
2014: Plesse refer to Page No. 22.

(ix) Project details (gestation period of the project; extent of progress madein the project; deadlinesfor
completion of the project; the summary of the project appraisal report (if any), schedule of
implementation of the project): See Annexure XI

(c) Documentsto be submitted to BSE along with the listing application:
The following documents have been / shall be submitted to BSE (as may be applicable):

a. ThisGeneral Information Document

. Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association and necessary resolution(s) for the allotment of

the Debentures.

Copy of last 3 (three) years audited annual reports.

. Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties to all material contracts and agreements.

Copy of the Board/committee resolution authorizing the borrowing and list of authorized signatories.

An undertaking from the Issuer stating that the necessary documents for the creation of the charge,

including the Debenture Trust Deed would be executed within the time frame prescribed in the relevant

regulationg/acts/rules etc and the same would be uploaded on the website of BSE, where the Debentures

have been listed.

g. Any other particulars or documents that the recognized stock exchange may call for asit deemsfit.

h. An undertaking that permission/ consent from the prior creditor for second or pari passu charge being
created, where applicable, in favour of the trustees to the proposed issue has been obtained.

O

S D Qo0

(d) Documentsto be submitted to the Trustee

The following documents have been/shall be submitted to the Trustee in electronic form (soft copy) at the
time of the allotment of the Debentures (as may be applicable):

a. ThisGeneral Information Document

b. Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association and necessary resolution(s) for the allotment of
the Debentures.

Copy of last 3 (three) years audited annual reports.

Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties to all material contracts and agreements.

Copy of the Board/committee resolution authorizing the borrowing and list of authorized signatories

An undertaking from the Issuer stating that the necessary documents for the creation of the charge,
including the Debenture Trust Deed would be executed within the time frame prescribed in the relevant
regulationg/acts/rules etc and the same would be uploaded on the website of BSE, where the Debentures
have been listed.

0. Any other particulars or documents that the recognized stock exchange may call for as it deemsfit.

D Qoo
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h. An undertaking that permission/ consent from the prior creditor for second or pari passu charge being
created, where applicable, in favour of the trustees to the proposed issue has been obtained.  Not
applicable

The Trustee shall submit a due diligence certificate to the stock exchange in the format as specified in
Schedule IV of the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations. The stock exchange shall list the debt securities only
upon receipt of the aforementioned due diligence certificate form the Trustee.

(i) Details of credit rating, along with the latest press release of the Credit Rating Agency in relation to
thelssueand declaration that theratingisvalid ason the date of issuanceand listing. Such pressrelease
shall not be older than one year from the date of opening of theissue.

CARE Ratings Limited has assigned “CARE A (Stable)” rating to these Debentures through its letter dated
01% February 2024. Press release of the credit rating can be viewed at the following

ed.pdf

The Issuer declares that the credit rating assigned by CARE Ratings Limited to the Debenturesis valid as on
the date of issuance and listing. The press release (link provided above) issued by CARE Ratings Limited is
not older than one year from the date of opening of issue.

(j) If thesecurity isbacked by a guaranteeor letter of comfort or any other document / letter with similar
intent, a copy of the same shall be disclosed. In case such document does not contain detailed payment
structure (procedure of invocation of guarantee and receipt of payment by the investor along with
timelines), the same shall be disclosed in the General Information Document.

Not applicable.

ISSUE PROCEDURE

The I ssuer proposes to undertake issue of Debentures on the terms set out in this General | nformation Document.
The Issue is subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, the SEBI Debt Regulations, the SEBI Operational
Circular, the SEBI LODR Regulations, the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association, this General
Information Document, Application Form, and other terms and conditions incorporated in the Debenture Trust
Deed. This section appliesto all Applicants. Please note that al Applicants are required to make payment of the
full application amount along with the Application Form.

How to Apply/Application Process

Only Eligible Investors as given hereunder may apply for the Debentures by completing the Application Formin
the prescribed format in BLOCK LETTERS in English and in accordance with the instructions contained therein.
No application can be made for a fraction of a Debenture. Application Forms should be duly completed in all
respects. Applications not completed in the said manner are liable to be re ected. The name of the Applicant’s
bank, type of account and account number must be duly completed by the Applicant. This is required as these
detailswill be printed on the refund orders and interest. All refunds will be made to the bank account from which
such subscription money is remitted in accordance with Rule 11(2) of the Companies (Prospectus of Securities)
Rules, 2014, as amended.

An Application Form must be accompanied by either demand draft(s) or cheque(s) drawn or made payable in
favour of the Issuer as set out in the Application orm and crossed “Account ayee Only”.

Chegue(s) or demand draft(s) may be drawn on any bank including a co-operative bank, which is a member or a
sub-member of the bankers clearing house located at New Delhi. Money orders, postal orders or cash will not be
accepted. The payments can also be made by real time gross settlement (“RTGS”), the details of which are given
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below. An application once submitted cannot be withdrawn.

The Issuer assumes no responsibility for any application, cheques or demand draftslost in mail or in transit.
Application Procedure

Potential Investors will be invited to subscribe by way of Application Form as provided by the Issuer during the
period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date (both days inclusive). No application can be

made for afraction of a Debenture.

The Issuer reserves the right to close the Issue at a date earlier than the Issue Closing Date if the relevant Issueis
fully subscribed.

Application Size

Applicationsfor the Debentures are required to be for aminimum of one NCD of facevalue 1 lakh and in multiples
of 1 lakh thereof.

Who can apply?

Nothing in this General Information Document shall constitute and/or deem to constitute an offer or an invitation
to an offer, to be made to the public or any section thereof through this General Information Memorandum and its
contents should not be construed to be a prospectus under the Companies Act, as amended or the rules made
thereunder.

This General Information Document and the contents hereof or thereof are restricted for only the intended
recipients who have been addressed directly through a communication by the Issuer and only such recipients are
eligible to apply for the Debentures.

The following categories of Investors together constitute “Eligible | nvestors”:

e Foreign Portfolio Investors.

e Companies and bodies corporate including public sector undertakings.

e  Scheduled commercia banks.

e Urban/ Central / State/ District / Primary Co-operative Banks

e Regional rura banks

e Financial ingtitutions including development financial institutions.

e |nsurance companies

e Mutud funds

e Provident funds, pension funds, superannuation funds and gratuity funds

e  Other Government / Non-Government Agencies/ Boards/ Institutions

e Any other investor(s) authorized to invest in these Debentures, subject to the compliance with the relevant
regul ations/guidelines applicable to them for investing in this Issue.

Only Eligible Investors, when permitted under their congtitutional documents and specifically approached, are
eligible to apply for the Debentures.
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All Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations or guidelines applicable to them for investing
in the Debentures.

Applications may be made in single or joint names (not exceeding three). In the case of joint applications, all
payments will be made out in favour of the first Applicant. All communications will be addressed to the first
named Applicant whose name appears in the Application Form at the address mentioned therein.

Depository Arrangements

The Issuer has made necessary depository arrangementswith Central Depository Services Limited (“CDSL”) and
National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL ™) for issue and holding of Debenturesin dematerialised form.

Other than as stated above, applications cannot be made by person(s) or entity(ies) resident outside India,
including but not limited to NRIsand Over seas Cor porate Bodies (OCBs).

All Eligible Investors and subsequent Debenture Holders (who may purchase the Debentures in the secondary
market) are required to consult their own advisors prior to investing in the Debentures and comply with the
relevant rules, regulations, guidelines, or notifications applicable to them for investing in the Debentures.

Instructionsfor Application
(). Minimum application shall be for 1 Debentures and in multiples of 1 Debenture(s) thereafter.

(b). The Debentures are being issued at par to the face value (i.e. Rs.1,00,000 (Rupees One Lakh) per
Debenture).

(c). Full amount hasto be paid on application per Debenture applied for. Applications for incorrect amounts
are liable to be rejected.

(d). Payment shall be made from the bank account of the person subscribing. In case of joint holders, monies
payable shall be paid from the bank account of the person whose name appearsfirst in the application.

(e). Applicants should mention their PAN (if applicable), Depository articipant’s name, D ID and the
Client ID in the Application Form and ensure that that these details are correct, and that the Applicant’s
depository account is active. The Applicant must also ensure that the details mentioned in the Application
Form match the details available in the Depository database.

(f). The applications should be submitted during the normal banking hours at the office of the | ssuer.

Note: The Application Forms which do not have the details of the Investor’s depository account, including
DP ID, Client ID, and PAN (where applicable), shall be treated as incomplete and will be rejected.
Participation by potential Investorsin the | ssue of the Debentur esproposed to beissued under this General
Information Document may be subject to statutory and/or regulatory requirements applicable to them in
connection with subscription to I ndian securities by such categoriesof personsor entities. Applicants ought
to seek independent legal and regulatory advicein relation to the laws applicable to them.

Joint-Holders

Where 2 or more persons are holders of any Debentures, they shall be deemed to hold the same as joint tenants
with benefits of survivorship subject to other provisions contained in the Articles of Association of the Issuer.

Procedurefor applications by mutual fundsand multiple applications
In the event of applications by mutual funds and venture capital funds, a separate application must be made in

respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund or venture capital fund registered with the SEBI and such
applications will not be treated as multiple applications, provided that the application made by the asset
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management company or trustee, or custodian clearly indicates their intention as to the scheme for which the
application has been made.

The applications form duly filled shall clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for which application
is being made and must be accompanied by certified true copies of (i) SEBI registration certificate; (ii) resolution
authorizing investment and containing operating instructions; and (iii) specimen signature of authorized
signatories.

Submission of completed Application Form

All applications duly completed accompanied by transfer instructions from the respective Investor’s account to
the account of the Issuer, shall be submitted at the Registered Office of the Issuer.

Mode of Payment
Applicants are requested to write their names and application serial number on the reverse of the instruments by

which the payments are made. All Applicants are requested to tick the relevant column “Category of Investor” in
the Application Form.

All cheques or drafts must be made payable to the designated operating account and crossed “A C A EEO L ”
or through fund transfer or RTGS. The RTGS details of the Issuer are as under:

IFSC Code 1CIC0007218

Account Name; Ashiana Housing Ltd NCD Chennai
Bank Account No. 721805000277

Bank ICICI Bank Ltd.

Branch Noida (U.P.)

SWIFT Code ICICINBBCTS

The Investors will be required to remit the funds as well as submit the duly completed Application Form along
with other necessary documents to the Issuer by the Deemed Date of Allotment.

Basisof Allotment and Schedule for Allotment

The Issuer reserves the sole and absolute right to allot the Debentures to any Applicant. The Issuer reserves the
right to reject infull or partly any or all the offersreceived by them to invest in these Debentures without assigning
any reason for such rejections. In case there is over subscription in the Issue, priority will be given on the basis of
the date of application. In the event of tie with respect to the date of application, allocation will be done on a pro
rata basis. The unutilised portion of the application money will be refunded to the Applicant by electronic transfer
to the bank account from which the subscription amount was remitted. The Issuer will allot the Debenture to the
Debenture Holders on the date of receipt of the application money and record the Debenture Holder as the legal
and beneficial owner of the Debenturesin the | ssuer's register of debenture holders within 2 days of receipt of the
application money.

Borrowing Power s
Pursuant to aresolution dated November 10, 2023, passed by the Board of Directorsin accordance with provisions
of the Companies Act, the Issuer has been authorised to borrow up to Rs. 5.60 crore (Rupees Five Crores Sixty

Lakhs).

Right to Accept or Reject Applications

The Board of Directors, the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors and/or any other authorised officials
of the Issuer reservesits full, unqualified, and absolute right to accept or reject any application for subscription to
the Debentures, in part or in full, without assigning any reason thereof. Application Forms that are not complete
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in all respects may be rejected in sole discretion of the Issuer and will not be paid any interest on the application
money. Application may be liable to be rejected on one or more technical grounds, including but not restricted to:

Number of Debentures applied for is less than the minimum application size;

Bank account details not given;

Details for issue of Debenturesin electronic or dematerialised form not given;

PAN not given (where applicable);

In the event of applications under power of attorney by limited companies and other corporate bodies,
relevant documents are not submitted;

In the event, if any Debentures applied for is or are not alotted in full, the excess application monies of
such Debentures will be refunded.

Poo T

—

Force Majeure

The Issuer reserves the right to withdraw the Issue prior to the Issue Closing Date in the event of any unforeseen
development adversely affecting the economic and regulatory environment. The I ssuer reservestheright to change
the Issue schedule.

Refunds

In the event the Issuer has received money from Applicants for Debentures in excess of the aggregate of the
application money relating to the Debentures in respect of which Allotments have been made, the Registrar shall
upon receiving instructions from the Issuer repay the moneys to the extent of such excess, if any and no interest
shall be paid on such refund amount.

I ssue of Debenturesin Dematerialized Form

The Issuer has made arrangements with the Depositories for the Issue of Debentures in dematerialized form.
Debenture Holders will hold the Debentures in dematerialized form in accordance with the provisions of
Depositories Act. The Depository Participant’s name, D 1D and beneficiary account number must be stated at
the appropriate place in the Application Form. The Issuer shall take necessary steps to credit the Debentures
allotted to the Depository account of the Investor. All provisionsrelating to issue, allotment, transfer, transmission
etc. in respect of the Debentures as prescribed under the Depositories Act will be applicable to the Debentures
issued in dematerialized form.

If the Debentures issued are held in dematerialized form, then no action is required on the part of the Debenture
Holders for redemption purposes and the redemption proceeds will be paid by RTGS, ECS, NEFT or any other
mode which is permissible as per Applicable Law to those Investors whose names appear on the list of
beneficiaries provided by the Depository to the Issuer. The names will be in accordance with the Depository’s
records on the relevant Record Date fixed for the purpose of redemption. All such Debentures will be
simultaneously redeemed through appropriate debit corporate action.

The list of beneficiaries as of the relevant Record Date setting out the relevant beneficiaries’ name and account
number, address, bank details and Depositary Participant’s identification number will be given by the Depository
to the Issuer and the Registrar. Based on the information provided above, the Issuer or Registrar will dispatch the
cheque for interest or coupon payments to the beneficiaries. If permitted, the Issuer may transfer payments
required to be made in relation to any electronic transfer of funds or RTGS, to the bank account of Debenture
Holders for redemption and interest or coupon payments.

Deemed Date of Allotment
All benefitsrelating to the Debentures will be available to the Debenture Holders from the relevant Deemed Date

of Allotment of Debentures which as set out under the relevant General Information Document. The actual
Allotment of Debentures may take place on a date other than the Deemed Date of Allotment.
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Currency of Payment
All obligations under the Debentures are payable in Indian Rupees only.

Transfers

The Debentures shall be transferable freely to al classes of Eligible Investors or other Personsin accordance with
Applicable Law. The Debentures shall be transferred and/or transmitted in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act and other Applicable Laws. The Debentures held in dematerialised form shall
be transferred in accordance with the rules and procedures of NSDL, CDSL, the relevant Depositary Participants
of the transferor or transferee and any other Applicable Laws and rules notified. The seller should give delivery
instructions containing details of the buyer’s Depositary articipant’s account to his Depositary articipant. The
transferee(s) should ensure that the transfer formalities are completed prior to the Record Date, failing which, any
payments will be paid to the person, whose name appears in the register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the
Depository in the case of dematerialised Debentures. In cases where the transfer formalities have not been
completed by the transferor, claims, if any, by the transferees would need to be settled with the transferor(s) and
not with the I ssuer. Investors may note that subject to Applicable Law, the Debentures of the I ssuer will beissued
and traded in dematerialised form only.

Trusteefor the Debenture Holders

The Issuer has appointed Vistral TCL (India) Limited to act as trustee for the Debenture Holders. The Issuer and
the Debenture Trustee have entered into the Debenture Trust Deed inter alia, specifying the powers, authorities
and obligations of the Debenture Trustee and the Issuer. Subject to the provisions of the Debenture Trust Deed,
any payment made by the Issuer to the Debenture Trustee on behalf of the Debenture Holders shall discharge the
Issuer pro tanto to the Debenture Holders. The Debenture Trustee will protect the interest of the Debenture
Holders regarding timely payment of interest and repayment of principal amount of Debentures and they will take
necessary action, subject to and in accordance with the Debenture Trust Deed, at the cost of the Issuer. The
Debenture Trust Deed shall more specifically set out rights and remedies of the Debenture Holders and the manner
of enforcement thereof. The Debenture Trustee shall carry out its duties and shall perform its functions in
accordance with all Applicable Laws and regulationsincluding without limitation the SEBI Debt Regulations, the
SEBI Operational Circular, the SEBI LODR Regulations, and the SEBI (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993
as well as the Debenture Trust Deed, this General Information Document. Resignation or retirement of the
Debenture Trustee shall be in accordance with the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed entered between the | ssuer
and the Debenture Trustee and a notice in writing to the Debenture Holders shall be provided for the same. The
Debenture Trustee shall ensure disclosure of all material events on an ongoing basis.

Market Lot

The market lot will be one Debenture (“Market Lot”). Since the Debentures are being issued only in
dematerialised form, the odd lots will not arise either at the time of issuance or at the time of transfer of
Debentures.

Title

In the event of Debentures being held in dematerialised form, the person for the time being appearing in the
register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depository shall be treated as the legal and beneficial owner of
the Debentures for all purposes by the Issuer. The Debenture Trustee, the Depositories and all other persons
dealing with such person, as the holder and absolute owner thereof for all purposes (whether or not it is overdue
and regardless of any notice of ownership, trust, or any interest in the Debenture) will incur any liability for so
treating the Debenture Holders.

List of Beneficial Owners
The Issuer shall request the Depositories to provide alist of Beneficial Owners as at the end of the Record Date.

This shall be the list, which shall be considered for payment of interest or repayment of principal amount of
Debentures, as the case may be.

73



General Information Document for issue of listed unsecured non-
convertible debentures on private placement basis
For private circulation only
16 February, 2024

Applications under Power of Attorney

A certified true copy of the power of attorney or the relevant authority as the case may be along with the names
and specimen signature(s) of all the authorised signatories and the tax exemption certificate or document, if any,
must be lodged along with the submission of the completed Application Form. Further modifications or additions
in the power of attorney or authority should be notified to the Issuer or to its agents or to such other person(s) at
such other address(es) as may be specified by the I ssuer from time to time through a suitable communication.

In event of an application made by companies under apower of attorney or resolution or authority, acertified true
copy thereof along with memorandum and articles of association and/or bye-laws along with other constitutional
documents must be attached to the Application Form at the time of making the application, failing which, the
Issuer reserves the full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any application in whole or in part and
in either case without assigning any reason thereto. Names and specimen signatures of al the authorised
signatories must also be lodged along with the submission of the completed application.

L ettersof Allotment

The Debentures will be credited in dematerialised form within five days of the Deemed Date of Allotment.
Payment of Interest

The interest for each of the interest periods shall be computed on an actual/actual days and shall be computed on
the basis of the actual number of daysin the relevant year and the actual number of days elapsed. Interest Rateis
mentioned in the section entitled “Summary Term Sheet for the Debentures” of this General Information
Document.

Interest shall accrue on the principal amount of each debenture outstanding from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

Interest Rest Process

The Interest Rate may be revised in accordance with the manner described in the Debenture Trust Deed, and from
the date as may be notified in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Default Interest

In the event the I ssuer failsto pay any amount payable by it asinterest and/or principal redemption on the relevant
due dates, interest shall accrue on the Unpaid Sum from the due date up to the date of actual payment at arate per
annum which is the sum of 2% and the interest rate of 8% per annum.

Tax Deduction at Source

Debenture Holders should consult their own independent tax advisersto understand their tax positions. In addition,
Debenture Holders should be aware that tax regulations and their application by the relevant taxation authorities
change from time to time. Accordingly, it is not possible to predict the precise tax treatment which will apply at
any given time. Therefore, Debenture Holders are advised to consider the tax implications in respect of
subscription to the Debenturesin consultation with their tax advisors.
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Right of the I ssuer to Purchase and Re-sell Debentures

The Issuer may, subject to Applicable Laws, at any time and from time to time, purchase Debenturesissued under
this General Information Document at discount, at par or premium in the open market. Such Debentures, at the
option of the Issuer, be cancelled, held or resold at such a price and on such terms and conditions as the | ssuer
may deem fit and as permitted by Applicable Laws.

Redemption and Interest Payment Process

Any redemption of Debenturesissued under this General Information Document shall bein termsof the provisions
of Debenture Trust Deed.

Redemption of Debentures prior to the minimum residual maturity period prescribed by the RBI shall be subject
to the receipt of prior approval of the RBI, if required under the Applicable Law.

The payment of interest on the Debentures shall be made by the Issuer to those persons whose names appear in
the Register of Debenture Holders (or to first holder in the event of joint-holders) as the Debenture Holders.
Interest payments shall be made by the I ssuer by credit to the designated account of each Debenture Holder.

In respect of the Debentures held in dematerialised form, payment of the Redemption Price will be made by the
Issuer to the beneficiaries in accordance with the beneficiary list provided by the Depositories as on the Record
Date. Subject to Debenture Trust Deed, the Debentures shall be taken as discharged on payment of the Debenture
Payments in full, by the Issuer to the beneficiaries in accordance with the beneficiary list by making payment
electronically to the bank account notified by the beneficiary. On such payment being made, the I ssuer will inform
the Depositories and accordingly the account of the Debenture Holders with Depositories will be adjusted.

Debenture Holder not a Shareholder

The Debenture Holders will not be entitled to any of the rights and privileges available to the shareholders other
than those available to them under the Companies Act.

Register of Debenture Holders

A register of al Debenture Holders containing necessary particulars will be maintained by the Company at its
registered office.

Provisionsfor Meeting of Debenture Holders

The terms set out in the relevant provisions of the Debenture Trust Deed shall apply to the meetings of the
Debenture Holders.

Payment of outstanding amounts on the Debentures

The Issuer shall ensure that services of fund transfer or RTGS are used for payment of all outstanding amounts
on the Debentures, including the principal and interest accrued thereon.

Rights of Debenture Holders

Debenture Holders shall not be entitled to any right and privileges of shareholders other than those available to
them under the Companies Act. The Debentures shall not confer upon the holders the right to receive notice(s) or
to attend and to vote at any general meetings of the shareholders of the Issuer.

The Debentures are subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, the Memorandum and Articles of the Issuer,
the terms of this General Information Document, the Application Form and the Transaction Documents. Over and
above such terms and conditions, the Debentures shall also be subject to the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Debt
Regulations, SEBI Operational Circular, SEBI LODR Regulations, SEBI (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993,
guidelines, notifications and regulations relating to the issue and listing of securities issued from time to time by
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the Government of India and/or other authorities and other documents that may be executed in respect of the
Debentures.

A register of Debenture Holders will be maintained in accordance with Section 88(1) of the Companies Act, and
all interest and principal sumsbecoming due and payablein respect of the Debentureswill be paid to the registered
holder thereof for the time being or in the case of joint-holders, to the person whose name stands first in the
Register of Debenture Holders.

Compliance with laws

The Issue is being made in compliance of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013), the Securities
Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (42 of 1956) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (15 of
1992) and the rules and regulations made thereunder and nothing in the issue document is contrary to the above
mentioned provisions.

Thelssueisbeing made in accordance with Section 42 and 71 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Shares
and Debentures) Rules, 2014 as amended, the Companies (Prospectus of Securities) Rules, 2014, PAS-4, the SEBI
Debt Regulations, SEBI Operational Circular, SEBI LODR Regulations, SEBI (Debenture Trustees) Regulations,
1993, Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, in each case, as amended from timeto time and other Applicable
Laws in this regard. The Issuer, the Debentures and Issuer’s obligations under the Debentures shall, at all times,
be subject to the directions of the RBI and the SEBI.

SUMMARY TERM SHEET FOR THE DEBENTURES

The following isasummary of the terms of the Debentures.

Security Name Ashiana Housing Limited, 8%, unsecured, listed, rated, redeemable, non-
convertible debentures.

Typeof Instruments Unsecured, listed, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures

Nature of the I nstrument Unsecured

Sponsors/ Promoters Mr. Visha Gupta, Mr. Ankur Gupta, Mr. Varun Gupta, Mrs. Rachna Gupta

and OPG Readltors Limited.

Seniority Unsecured and Senior

Eligible Investors The following categories of investors, who have been specificaly
approached by the Company and have been identified upfront, are eligibleto
apply for this private placement of Debentures subject to fulfilling their
respective investment norms/rules and compliance with laws applicable to
them by submitting al the relevant documents aong with the Application
Form:

e Foreign Portfalio Investors

e Companies and bodies corporate including public sector
undertakings
Scheduled commercial banks
Urban / Central / State / District / Primary Co-operative Banks
Regional rura banks
Financial ingtitutions including development financial institutions
Insurance companies
Mutual funds
Provident funds, pension funds, superannuation funds and gratuity
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funds
e  Other Government / Non-Government Agencies/ Boards/
Institutions

e Any other investor(s) authorized to invest in these Debentures.

Nature and form of the|Each Debentureconstitutesdirect and unconditional obligationsof the lssuer

Debentures without any preference inter se whatsoever on account of date of issue or
allotment or otherwise. Each Debenture shall inter se rank pari passu in
relation to the rights and benefits attached to it without any preference or
privilege whatsoever.

| ssuer Ashiana Housing Limited

Objects of the | ssue/ Pur pose of
the Issue/ Utilization of |ssue
Proceeds

The Issuer shall use the proceeds from the Issue towards the construction,
development, and sale of Project pursuant to the Debenture Trust Deed dated
08 February, 2024 in accordance with applicable law and the Transaction
Documents.

Coupon Rate

Eight percent 8% per annum subject to availability of Distributable Surplus
(as defined in the Debenture Trust Deed) provided that the interest rate may
be varied in accordance with the reset process set out in the Debenture Trust
Deed.

Step Up/ Step Down Coupon
Rate

As provided under the heading ‘Coupon Rate’ above.

Coupon Payment Frequency

Quarterly, in accordance with the Debenture Trust Deed.

Coupon Payment Dates

Date faling 60 days from the end of each financia quarter in accordance
with the Debenture Trust Deed.

Coupon Reset Process

Coupon Reset Process shall be as set forth in the Debenture Trust Deed and
as reproduced here:

The Interest Rate may be revised by the Distributions Committee in
accordance with the Investor Rights Agreement including the Distribution
Mechanism. Such revised Interest Rate shall be deemed to be applicable to
the Debentures from such date as may be notified by the Distributions
Committee.

Interest on Application Money

N.A.

Redemption Premium/
Discount

Debentures shall be redeemed at a premium calculated by the Distributions
Committee in accordance with the provisions of the Debenture Trust Deed.

Face value per Debenture and
IssuePrice

INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakhs) per Debenture at par.

Price at which the Security is
being Offered including the
Premium, if any, along with
Justification of Price

INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakhs) per Debenture at par.

Details of | ssue Size

The aggregate size of the entire Issue is up to INR 5,60,00,000 (Indian
Rupees Five Crores Sixty Lakhs).
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M ode of Issue

Private placement to Eligible Investors in terms of of SEBI Operational

Circular w.r.t. issue and listing of Non-Convertible Securities.

Bid Opening Date

19 February 2024

Bid Closing Date

23 February 2024

Minimum Bid Lot/ Minimum
Subscription

1 Debenture of INR 1,00,000/-each aggregating INR 5,60,00,000/- (Indian
Rupees Five Crores Sixty Lakhs).

Manner of Bidding

N.A.

Issue Timing:
I ssue Opening Date

I ssue Closing Date

19 February 2024
23 February 2024

The Company reserves the right to change the I ssue Schedule including the
Deemed Date of Allotment at its sole discretion, without giving any reasons
or prior notice. The Issue shall be open for subscription during the banking
hours on each day during the period covered by the I ssue Schedule.

Date of Earliest Closing

23 February 2024

Pay in Date

On or before 23 February 2024

Deemed Date of Allotment

On or before 23 February 2024

Manner of Allotment

Uniform Yield Allotment

Proposed Time Schedule for
which the Offer Letter isValid

Allotment of Debentures can be made prior to Issue Closing Date i.e. 23

February 2024, if full subscription is received from the investors earlier.

Debenture Trustee

Vistral TCL (India) Limited

Debenture Trust Deed

Means the debenture trust deed dated 08 February 2024 for the

Debentures.

Tenor

20 years (240 months) from the relevant Deemed Date of Allotment of the
Debentures.

Record Date

In relation to any date on which a payment is required to be made by the
Issuer in respect of the Debentures, the date that is 15 (fifteen) days prior to
that payment date.

Redemption of the Debentures

Unless redeemed earlier in accordance with the Debenture Trust Deed, the
Issuer shall redeem all the Debentures then outstanding in full on Final
Redemption Date (as defined under the Debenture Trust Deed).
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Subject to any early redemption, the Issuer shall, on the Final Redemption
Date, credit to the Designated Account (as defined in the Debenture Trust
Deed) of each Debenture Holder on the relevant Record Date in immediately
available funds an amount in Indian Rupees that is equal to the aggregate
Debenture Payments for the Debentures held by that Debenture Holder.

Redemption Date

The Final Redemption Date (as defined under the Debenture Trust Deed) i.e.
20 (twenty) years from the relevant Deemed Date of Allotment in relation
Debentures or any other date on which the debentures are redeemed in
accordance with the Debenture Trust Deed.

Redemption Price/ Amount

Means the price at which Debentures are required to be redeemed by the
Issuer as specified in the Debenture Trust Deed and shall include any
redemption premium payable on Debentures.

Early of

Debentures

Redemption

The Issuer may redeem al the Debentures on the occurrence of Mandatory
Redemption Event (as defined in the Debenture Trust Deed) in accordance
with the Investor Rights Agreement.

Listing and Timelinefor Listing

The Debentures shall be listed in the whole sale debt segment of the BSE
Limited.

The Issuer shall promptly after allotment of the Debentures but in any event
within 3 (three) trading days from the Issue Closing Date procure that the
Debentures are listed on the wholesale debt market segment of the BSE
Limited in compliance with Applicable Law and the Debenture Trust Deed.

Delay in Listing

If the Debentures are not listed for any reason whatsoever within 15 days
from the relevant Deemed Date of Allotment, the Issuer shal: (i)
immediately redeem/ buy back the Debentures from the Debenture Holders
in accordance with the Applicable Law (including the RBI circular
RBI1/2011-12/423 A.P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 89 dated March 1, 2012
and SEBI circular IMD/FPI& C/CIR/P/2019/124 dated November 05, 2019)
by making payment of the subscription amounts of such Debentures to the
Debenture Holders together with the applicable interest.

In case of adelay in listing of the Debentures beyond 3 (three) trading days
from the relevant Deemed Date of Allotment, the Issuer will (i) pay a pena
interest of at least 1% per annum over the Interest Rate from the Deemed
Date of Allotment until the listing of such Debentures, to the Debenture
Holders; and (ii) be permitted to utilize the issue proceeds of its subsequent
two privately placed issuances of securities only after having received final
listing approval from the stock exchanges(s) in respect of the listing of such
securities.

Coupon Type

Fixed, subject to reset as specified in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Call Option

Not Applicable.

Computation of Interest and
Other Charges

Interest (including interest at the Default Rate) and all other charges shall
accrue from day to day and shall be computed on the basis of the actual
number of daysin the relevant year and the actual number of days elapsed.
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Computation of interest and
other charges/ Day Count Basis

Actual/Actual.

| ssuance M ode The issuance of al Debentures will be in dematerialized form.

Trading mode  of the| The trading mode of all Debentures will be in dematerialized form.

Instrument

Settlement Cycle T+2 day

Settlement mode of the|RTGS/NEFT/ fund transfer.

Instrument

Business Day | When a date on which the Issuer isrequired to make any paymentstowards

Adjustment/Business Date| Interest on the Debentures, is not a Payment Business Day, then such date

Convention shall be automatically changed to the next Payment Business Day.
When the day (including the Redemption Date) on or by which a payment
(other than a payment of Interest) is due to be made is not a Payment
Business Day, that payment shall be made on the preceding Payment
Business Day.

Security The Debentures are unsecured.

Depository NDSL and CDSL

Disclosure of Interest/Dividend
/ redemption dates

As specified in this General Information Document

Rating The Debenturesarerated ‘CARE A (Stable)’ by CARE Ratings Limited vide
their letter dated 01% February, 2024.
DRR In terms of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules amended by

Ministry Corporate Affairs vide Notification dated 16" August 2019 the
company is now exempted from creating Debenture Redemption Reserve
(“DRR”), being a listed company. In the event that such exemption is not
extended in future, the Issuer shall comply with Applicable Law in relation
to DRR.

Recovery Expense Fund

The Issuer will create a recovery expense fund (“Recovery Expense Fund”)
and deposit an amount of INR 5,600/- (Indian Rupees Five Thousand and
Six Hundred) with the designated stock exchange i.e., BSE Limited. The
Recovery Expense Fund shall be utilized in accordance with applicable law
and the balance amount from the Recovery Expense Fund shall be refundable
to the Issuer upon occurrence of the Final Settlement Date, for which a no-
objection certificate shall be issued by the Trustee(s) to the designated stock
exchange.

Contribution being made by the
Promoter or Directors either as
part of the Offer or Separately
in Furtherance of such Objects

Nil.

Default Interest Rate

With respect to Debentures, rate per annum which is the sum of 2% (two
percent) and the Interest Rate of 8% (the Default Rate).
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Provided however that, this provision shall not be deemed to apply on any
amount which is not paid due to adecision of the Distribution Committeein
accordance with the Transaction Documents.

Option to retain
over subscription (Amount)

Not Applicable.

Consent Received by Debenture
Trustee

The Debenture Trustee has given its consent for his appointment under
Regulation 8 of SEBI Debt Regulations and to act asthe trustee for the I ssue
vide consent letter dated 29" November 2023ddressed to the Issuer by the
Debenture Trustee.

Events of Default (EoD)
((including manner of voting
/conditions of joining Inter
Creditor Agreement))

It shall be an Event of Default if:
a) Payment Default:

The Issuer fails to pay when due any Debenture Payment on any Debenture
or any other amount payable under any Transaction Document or fails to
redeem the Debentures in accordance with the terms of the Debenture Trust
Deed and other Debenture Documents.

b) Misrepresentation:

Any representation or warranty made under Clause 11 (Representations and
Warranties) and Schedule |1l (Representations and Warranties) of the
Debenture Trust Deed is found to be incorrect or misleading in any material

respect.

c) Failureto list Debentures:

In the event the Issuer failsto list Debentures with BSE within 4 (four) days
of the relevant Deemed Date of Allotment in relation to such Debentures for
any reason;

d) Delisting or suspension from trading of the Debentures:

The listing of the Debentures ceases or is suspended at any point of time
prior to the discharge of al Obligations (as defined in the Debenture Trust
Deed) and the Issuer failsto relist the Debentures with BSE within 4 (four)
days from such cessation or suspension or the trading of the Debentures on
BSE is suspended for a consecutive period of 10 (ten) dayson which BSE is
open for trading;

€) Event of Default under the Investor Rights Agreement

Occurrence of an ‘Event of Default’ as provided under Section 4.07 of the
Investor Rights Agreement.

(f) Other Events

(i) The Issuer without the consent of Debenture Holders ceases to carry on
its business or gives notice of itsintention to do so; (ii) any order for winding
up, insolvency or liquidation of the I ssuer ispassed by any relevant Authority
(iii) initiation of any proceedings under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 against the Issuer, (iv) the Issuer passes a special resolution for
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winding up /insolvency of the Issuer; and/or (v) occurrence of any breach of
the terms of this General Information Document.

Consequences of Events of Default: As per Part B of Annexure VII
(Covenants and Consequences of Events of Default).

Schedule | of the Debenture Trust Deed contains the provisions for the
meetings of the Debenture Holders and manner of voting. In terms of the
SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/CRADT/CIR/P/2020/203 dated
October 13, 2020 (“SEBI EOD Circular™) and subject to Applicable Law
and regulatory guidelines, a meeting of the Debenture Holders may consider
the proposal for joining the inter creditor agreement, if applicable, and the
conditions for joining such inter creditor agreement will be made part of the
meeting agenda and the Debenture Trustee will follow the processlaid down
vide the SEBI EOD Circular.

Discount at which Security is|N.A.
Issued and the Effective Yield as

a Result of such Discount

Put Date N.A.
Put Price N.A.
Call Date N.A.
Call Price N.A.
Put Notification Time N.A.
Call Notification Time N.A.

Minimum  Application and

Multiples Ther eafter

1 Debenture and in multiples of 1 Debentures thereafter.

Provisions related to Cross
Default Clause

N.A.

Conditions Precedent to| Asprovided in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Disbur sement

Conditions Subsequent As provided in the Debenture Trust Deed.

All covenants of the Issue| As set out in Part A of Annexure VII (Covenants and Consegquences of
(including side letters, | Events of Default).

accelerated payment clause,

etc.) The Company has also executed an Investor Rights Agreement under which

the Debenture Holders, amongst other rights, have the right to require early
redemption of the Debentures in the manner set out under such agreement,
and upon occurrence of an event of default, the Debenture Holders have the
right to require the Company to redeem the Debentures. In the event the
Company is unable to redeem the Debentures in accordance with the
Investor Rights Agreement on account of an event of default, the Debenture
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Holders have the right to require the Sponsors to either purchase the
Debentures themselves or procure a third party to purchase the Debentures.
The obligation of Sponsorsto either purchase the Debentures themselves or
procure a third party to purchase the Debentures (in case of an event of
default) isalso covered in a separate sponsor |etter agreement dated June 22,
2022 (“Sponsor Letter Agreement”) executed between the Sponsors,
Issuer and the Debenture Holders.

Conditions for breach of

Covenants

As provided under the heading ‘Events of Default (including manner of
voting /conditions of joining Inter Creditor Agreement)’ above.

Description regarding Security
(where applicable) including
type of security
(movable/immovable/tangible
etc.), type of charge (pledge/
hypothecation/ mortgage etc.),
date of creation of security/
likely date of creation of
security, minimum  security
cover, revaluation, replacement
of security, interest to the
debenture holder over and
above the coupon rate as
specified in the Trust Deed and
disclosed in the General
I nfor mation Document

N.A.

Transaction Documents

Means:

- Debenture Trust Deed

- Debenture Trustee Agreement

- Accounts Agreement

- Investor Rights Agreement

- Sponsor Letter Agreement

- General Information Document

- Consent letters issued by the Trustee, Registrar and Credit Rating
Agency for inclusion of their respective details in the Genera
Information Document.

- Rating letter from the Credit Rating Agency

- Letters appointing the Registrar with respect to the issuance of the
Debentures

- Tripartite agreement entered among the Issuer, its Registrar and the
Depository with respect to the issuance of the Debentures

- Listing agreement between the Issuer and BSE for listing the
Debentures

- All other documentsin relation to the issuance of the Debentures

- In-principle listing approval from BSE for the Debentures

- Any other document designated as a Transaction Document by the
I ssuer and the Trustee (or the Debenture Holders, as the case may be).

Roles and Responsibilities of
Debenture Trustee

To oversee and monitor the overall transaction for and on behalf of the
Debenture Holder as customary for transaction of asimilar nature and size
and as provided under the appropriate Transaction Documents and
applicable law
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Risk Factors pertaining to the| As specified on page no. 8of this General Information Document.

Issue

GO\'/:rd ning Law and | The |ssue shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the Indian
Jurisdiction law and exclusive jurisdiction of courts of New Delhi.

Rating of theinstrument The Debentures are rated ‘CARE A (Stable)’ by CARE Ratings Limited

vide their letter dated 01st February, 2024.

in case of dividend

Cumulative / non-cumulative, | Not applicable.

Cash flow from Debentures

As per SEBI Operational Circular, illustrative cash flow for Debenturesis as under:

Name of the | ssuer

XYZ Ltd.

Face Vaue (per security)

Rs. 1,00,000 for each Debentures

Tranche I ssue Date/Date of Allotment

19th February 2024 / 23rd February 2024.

20 years (240 months) from the relevant Deemed Date of

Redemption Allotment of the Debentures.
8% subject to availability of Distributable Surplus (as defined
in the Debenture Trust Deed) and interest reset in accordance
Coupon Rate with the Debenture Trust Deed.

Coupon payment date (after
Financial the Financia Quarter End
Quarter End | Date and prior to the
Sr. No Date following dates)
1 31-Mar 30-May
Frequency of the Interest Payment with | -2 30-Jun 29-Aug
specified dates 3 30-Sep 29-Nov

Date falling 60 days from the end of each financial quarter, in
accordance with the Debenture Trust Deed, as per the
following for each financia year:

Day Count Convention

Actual / Actud
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No. of days in Coupon

accordance with the Debenture
Trust Deed which shall be within
60 days from the end of each
quarter unless extended by the
Distributions Committee in
accordance with the Debenture
Trust Deed.

Cash Flows | Date Period Amount (in Rupees)
Coupon On a date determined by the| 90 (or 91/92 daysdepending | As determined by
Distributions ~ Committee  in | on the quarter) Distribution Committee in

accordance  with  the
Debenture Trust Deed.

Applicants are requested to note that the above cash flow is only illustrative in nature. The Date of Allotment,
Coupon Rate, Redemption Date and Frequency of the Interest Payment shall vary in actual.
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Conflict:

The terms and conditions mentioned in this General Information Document as to be read and understood in
conjunction with the terms contained in other Transaction Documents executed or to be executed by the Company.

Notwithstanding any contained herein, in case of any conflict between this General Information Document on one
hand and the Debenture Trust Deed or any other Transaction Documents on the other hand, the Debenture Trust
Deed or such other Transaction Documents (as the case may be) shall prevail in all respects. Nothing contained
in this General Information Document shall impair, dilute or adversely affect the rights and remedies of the
Debenture Holders under the Debenture Trust Deed or any other Transaction Document.

Please note that:
a) The Debenture Trustee has given his consent to for appointment as trustee to thisissue;

b) No guarantee or LoC or any other document/letter with similar intent is backing the securities issued through
this General Information Document;
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ANNEXURE |
APPLICATION FORM

ASHIANA HOUSING LIMITED
Our Company was incorporated on 25"June, 1986 as a private limited company under the Companies Act,
1956.
Registered Office and Cor porate Office: 5F Everest, 46/C, Chowringhee Road, Kolkata-700 071
Compliance Officer: Mr. Nitin Sharma; CIN: L70109WB1986PL C040864
mailto:Tel: +91 11 4265 4265 Fax: +91 11 4265 4200. E-mail: investorrel ations@ashianahousing.com, Website:
www.ashianahousing.com

| DEBENTURE SERIESAPPLICATION FORM SERIAL NO. loJoJoJo[o[o]o]o]1]

ISSUE OF 560 UN-SECURED, LISTED, RATED, REDEEMABLE, NON-CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES OF INR 100,000 (INDIAN RUPEES ONE LAKH) FACE VALUE EACH (THE
“DEBENTURES”) AGGREGATING INR 5,60,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES FIVE CRORES AND
SIXTY LAKHS)

DEBENTURE SERIESAPPLIED FOR:

Number of Debentures: [e] In words: [e]
Amount Rs. in words Rupees

DETAILSOF PAYMENT:

RTGS

No. Drawn on
unds transferred to

Dated

Total Amount Enclosed

(In Figures) (In words)

APPLICANT’S NAME IN FULL (CAPITALS) SPECIMEN SIGNATURE

APPLCANT’S FATHER’S NAME

APPLICANT’S ADDRESS
ADDRESS
(INCLUDING
FLAT
NO./HOUSE
NO.)
STREET
CITY

PIN [PHONE | [FAX |
EMAIL
ID

A LICA T'S A IR O.
IT CIRCLE/WARD/DISTRICT
WE ARE () COMPANY () OTHERS () SPECIFY

We wish to apply for the Debentures as per the terms and conditions of the Issue. We request you to please place
our name(s) on the Register of Debenture Holders.

Name of the Authorised | Designation Signature
Signatory(ies)
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Applicant’s Signature

We the undersigned are agreeable to holding the Debentures of the Issuer in dematerialised form. Details of

my/our Beneficial Owner Account are given below:

DEPOSITORY NSDL (X) CDSL (X)

DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT NAME

DP-ID

BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER

NAME OF THE APPLICANT(S)

Applicant Bank Account: Beneficiary Bank Name:
(Settlement by way of Cheque / Demand Draft / Pay
Order / Direct Credit / ECS / NEFT/RTGS/other
permitted mechanisms)

Account No:
IFSC Code:
Branch:

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note: Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)

Applicant’s
Signature

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note: Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)
(TEAR HERE)

ACKNOWLEDGMENT SLIP

[ (To befilled in by Applicant) SERIAL NO. [ T T T T T T T 17

Received from

Address

Cheque/Draft/UTR # Drawnon for Rs.
on account of application of Debentures
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ANNEXURE II a cﬂEl‘Ilnﬂl‘]é

you are in safe hands
CERTIFIED TEUS COPY OF THE RESOLUTECN PASSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

ASITIANA HOUSING LT, N THEIR FOURTH MEETMG FOR THE F.¥, 2023-24 HELD ON FRIDAY,
S0 MW EMEBER 2023 AT 10:30 & M. THROUGH VIDED CONSERENCE ANL OTHER, AUDID -VISUAL
MEANS (VCL

RESOLUTIOMN FOR INSUE OF NON-CONYERTIELE DEBENTURES! BONDS OM PEIVATE FLACEMEML
BARIS

"RESOLYER THAY in rerms ofthe provisions of section 42, pead with rule 14 ofthe Companiss [Prospectus
and Allooment of Scecukitios) Foles. 3004, seetior 71, and ofwer applicable provissoms, of any. of the
Companies Act, 2013 {ehe "Companies Act™ and Rules made thersunder, eo the exrent nagified and in offee,
as amended from time to wime. and the Bules. Fegulahions, Gaidelines, Matificaicns apd Cireulars, if any,
weumd by the Ministry of Corporate Affaire. the Secarinet and Exchange Board of lndia ("SEBL") {including
the STEI (lssuc and Listing of Mor Corvertible Secunines) Regulations, 3021, SEBI (Listing ObFgations and
Pselasues Requirements) Begelations, 2615, and ather SEB] ragolations and gludelines, Foreign Exchange
hanagement Act, 1999 (FEM A) and applcable FEMA gridelines and regu ations as amended from tme to
rime, and any other competent autharity, from time cetime, 1o che extent apphcable. including the coabhog
provisions of the Listing agreements enrered imto with the stock sxchanges on which the Campanys
securites are listed, the Memorendum of Association and Aoicles of Associapon of Company and
subject to approvvals, consenrs, pormissions and sapcriongaz mighe be required, and subject to such condinons
apd madifications 25 might be preseribed while granting sach approvals, consents, pormissions and sancbions
anc which may b2 agreed o by the 3oard of Divecrors of the Company (heremmafrer referred o as the
“Board". which tesm shall Lo Jecued woieelude any wagoicbeeds] oonscrebedd w be conemitated by che
Eaard, to exercize itz powers including the powers conferred by this Reso.unon), aparoval of the Goard ot
rthe Company. be and is hereby, glanted under section 172(34c) of che Companes Act. 2003, to oTfer, issue
ané allot, by way of private placowon: such nuoaber of wn-socored, rated, redzemable, leved, non-
convertible debenlures 1n the denomananon of IVK LODO00 {Incan Rupees Une Lakhs only ) #ach, in terms
of Debencure Trust Dead to be executed by the Company wich the debenzure trustes, ,m the aggregate
principal amoune of up o [MR 560,00 000 Jndian Rupees Five Cyores and Sixny Lakhs) (the "NCDs™), 1o be
listed on the whilesale debt sagment of BSE Limited, vo all eiigible invesears [including £ nancial institetions
anc. forergn poreolio investors) as the Toard may deem fic in demarecalized form. inone or mare tranches,
within the overall bovrowing limits of the Company, during the paricd of one yezy from che data of passing
af thiz resalwmico, 3nd on sach grher relevant fectors wherever necessary, at the Boarc's discretion including
the discretion to ¢eterming che category of investors o whom the offer, ;ssue and allotment of securitizz
ghall ba mads to the axclusion of athers, it such manper, if any, exarcised by the Company.”

"RESOLVEDEFURTHER THAT for che purpose of giving effece to che tesalutions descnibad above, tha Board,
be and 15 hereby, actharized on bebalf of the Jompany to do all such acts, deede, maiters and thinge
inciuding but now limibed w0 finalization, approwa; and iszoance of Lhe preliminary as well as Noal placemear
memgrandym / eneral Infermaton Document in retms of the requirements set cut i the SEBT (Tssus and
Licrimg of Mon-Converoble Sacuricsies) Regolarinne, 2021 satticg out the 1arms and conditioms of the istoznes

f tllﬁn]":[lﬂf}s fﬂ:ﬁ_“ﬂau:ment Memorandum™, d=termaning the forne and maaner of the gsee of HCDs,
ilad

Anhlana &g

304, Southubrn Pk, Saburt epericr Canee,

St biger Cekni 190 017 T 0071 4268 4255 £.011 4268 4200 For ASHIANA HOUSING LTD,

B mabepfnshisnatasteg con, WY acheslaasing.com [ /1 y Ak [
Frepa Ofce S5F Dnserd. A6 C Claineran gnas Food, K nkace, Waps Bengad - JTODO7 s
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ynoluding the clas of mvestois 1o whom the BCTs are o be ssoed and allotred, number of NS re be
allonresl, bssud price face walug, discounts pormrned urder applicable law (row o vraaleert. Premue:
AMPURE oh rsue, Jf any, m@ie of interest apphoable e eha NCDs, exeeulion of vatious agreerients, deeds,
ingrsamneneg and ather documents, ncluding ehe Genseal infermation Document, Key Jalormation
Documsztt (F requaredy and the puvate placemein offis leer in socordance witl: the piovizions ol Uwe
CrMpanes Actin ceepect of MCDE 25 may be recuired.”

"RESOLYED FURTHER THAT the tarms of the General Infermation Pecument ! Koy [nformarion
Macuren: GF required) snd all ether agreemernts, instrumeats, deeds, declarations. 4iwess, weitings and
cther decuiments 35 reguited by Lhe Debenrurs Trostee, or the holders of the MCDs in velalion, at pertaining,
to the transacoons contemplaved, shall be ag stated in the Debentuie Trust Deed va be exacuted hy tha
Company "

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vishal Gupas (Managing Dhieectord, M. Ankur Gaopra (oint Managing
Tricectaw), Mr. Warun Gupta (Whele time Director), Mr. Vikash Dugar (CTO), and My, Nitin Shanma
(Company Secuzianyh authozised Direcrors ¢ officers of the Company {the “Autkonsed Director £ Officers™),
be and are hereby, saverally audhorised eo:

tiy negotiase amd imelize the tecms and conditlons of, accent and exécute the Transaction Decuments, iz any
required, and ta gave imstructions ot directions and to setrle all questians, difficnicss or donbts that may
ariee in regard to the iszue, offer or allotmeant of My, wtikzaticn of the imsue poceeds and to acoeps and w
give effect 1o such modificarions, chaepges, variations, alierations, deletions, additions as regards the termns
and conditicns of jssuance of MCDs a= concained ik the Transacton Dwooments andfor the Transaction
Docimenns 2 may ba vequiced by the Debanture Toustee, holders of NCD3, SEBL e Registrar of Corypames
CRERC™M, er other authotities o agencle involved in or comcerned with the issue of MCDe,

{ii} make neceesary appointments, including bec not limized to bankects), atrangstis) 1o the sue, Regisnar to
the issue. vounsel(s), Debenmure Trostee, Intermedsapyies), Agentish. Artortey(ies) and =suck other
aurhorinies,

(i:ihsign aml execute all che agreementis), declarations{s) and other agresment(s), etcrow agreementis),
nndercakingis), declarationis) and other agreementis), deed(s), letten(s). power of actsrrey(ies), information
memotandum, requrn of silotment, povate placement offer leteer, and vecotd for privare placement offer,
WhEnEs 2 iRy be necessy ot teyuiced for chis purpoze.

fivd desl with tegulztory authorities inclading bur nat limated to the SEBL, RO, Mingstry of Corporaze & fFanrs,
stonck enchabnge, Reserve Bank of Todia (RBI}, apd swch other acthooties &= may be recuired in thas regacd
and genarally te make application fac lsting 1o stock exehangets) or amy othet statutery aotheorias, w do
all zych acas dewds and things a8 may be necessary, praper., expedient, and incidental. and

(vt ez sign and'or dispatch all ferms, Hlings, documents, and notices in connection with the RCDs as well ag o
aoceprl and execurs soy amendinenrs to the Transaction Dacuments and do all ages, matters, deeds, and

For ASHIAMA HOUSING LTD.

;ﬁhu‘j = .{-- ’
AT SRR,
Compay Sacrmiary



things recessary in oonnection with the abrve resnlaticns and to execute on behall of the Covipany such

deeds, documens, agreemens, and wiinngs in tns regurd,”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT congent o she Baard, be and i heteby, accorded 1o dalegate 1o Fxecurive
¢ vnmninze, the powwrs relaved oo the Bnalizazion of teme peice and ot torms and sondigons of e MO,
apporataene oF itecmedtarees apd debonture trostees, whercvay requared, finalization and istunce of the
{;enetal Infovmauon Uocumer / Kay Infarmancn Docviment {if requived}, Bling and séching rlearances,
prewiding clarification to any statutcsy authoritees os ey be Tequired and ro make alfotraent of NCDys and
calier matiers incidenta! and anciitary thersta and 10 #ngage ! appoing 1he lead managers. underarzars,
guarantcl s, depasiories, custedians, registrars. hankers, adviscrs and 8!] such agencies as may be involved
or cancetned im such offerings of securiiies and 1o 1emunerate them by way of comitission, brokerage, faeg
or the |ike and also ta enrer pato and cxecute all such artangements, agreemenrs, memoranda and atber
documenes wizth such agencies and ro seek the lizting of such secuvicies onore o more steck exchangeis).”

“RESCLVED FURTHER THAT sach Authorised Dicecror, be ard is hereby. severally aurharised ta decida,
finalize, alter, vary, tevise and modify from ime to e, the 1erms and conditions of she afuresaid issueds)
incloding witheut limitaton w, the class of investors 10 whom MCLE are to be jsued, time, nomenclature
o WDk or in any combiaation thetsaf o be offered, numbear of MCDs, eranchas, nominal valua! issue price,
tenot/penod, interest and things and desl wich all such markers and teke all such steps as may be Leressary
and Lo sign aad eecuce any doeds, docwments, undertakings, atraniements, agTeements. pIpers, Wrilings a3
tuay be regqubied in chis tegatd,”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, if necessary, the comumon sea. of the company be ftized ko aay transerion
ducument 1 wecordance with the acticles of associatian of the company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT 1 pursiance of ihe aboressid reselutions the NCDS 10 be so affersd, issued
atel allowed shall be subjest £o the provisions of the memondum an:d arbocles of associazien of the

COMPAny,

CERTIFIED TRUE COFY
FOR ASHIANA HOUSING LTD.

f‘:?;"‘ o
HITO SHARBLA.
LOMEANY SECRETARY)
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RATINGS y

No. CARE/NRO/RL/2023-24/2920

Shri Vikash Dugar

Chief Financial Officer

Ashiana Housing Limited

3RD AND 4TH FLOOR,, UNIT NO 402 AND 304, SOUTHERN,
PARK, SAKET DISTRICT CENTRE, SAKET, South Delhi,

New Delhi

Delhi 110017

February 01, 2024
Confidential
Dear Sir,

Credit rating for Non-Convertible Debenture issue

On the basis of recent developments including operational and financial performance of your Company for FY23

(Audited), H1FY24 (Unaudited) our Rating Committee has reviewed the following ratings:

Amount - -
Sr. No. Instrument (Rs. crore) Rating Action
26.40 ASingle s
1. Non Convertible Debentures (Reduced from g t Reaffirmed
35.00) Outlook:
Stable)
CARE A; Stable
. (Single A; "
2, Non Convertible Debentures 5.60 Outlook: Reaffirmed
Stable)
32.00
Total Instruments (Rs. Thirty-Two
Crore Only)
2. The NCDs have tenure of 20 years from the date of allotment with coupon rate of 8% p.a subject to availability

of distributable surplus. The NCD’s have a ‘payable when able’ kind of structure meaning thereby that NCDs

will have to be served only when the project is generating cash flows.

3. Please inform us the below-mentioned details of issue immediately, but not later than 7 days from the date of

placing the instrument:

IComplete definitions of the ratings assigned are available at www.careedge.in and in other CARE Ratings Ltd.’s publications.
/

."lll
\r\'ﬂ L ll.

CARE Ratings Limited 93

Corporate Office :4th Floor, Godrej Coliseum,
Somaiya Hospital Road, Off Eastern Express
Highway, Sion (E), Mumbai - 400 022

Phone: +91-22-6754 3456 « www.careedge.in

CIN-L67190MH1993PLCO71691
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Name and

contact Details
details of of top 10
Debenture investors
Trustee

Issue

Instrument Size Coupon ST

Payment Terms of Redemption

Redemption date

type (Rs Rate

4, The rationale for the rating will be communicated to you separately. A write-up (press release) on the above
rating is proposed to be issued to the press shortly, a draft of which is enclosed for your perusal as Annexure
2. We request you to peruse the annexed document and offer your comments if any. We are doing this as a
matter of courtesy to our clients and with a view to ensure that no factual inaccuracies have inadvertently
crept in. Kindly revert as early as possible. In any case, if we do not hear from you by Feb 05, 2024, we will
proceed on the basis that you have no any comments to offer.

5. CARE Ratings Ltd. reserves the right to undertake a surveillance/review of the rating from time to time, based

on circumstances warranting such review, subject to at least one such review/surveillance every year.

6. CARE Ratings Ltd. reserves the right to revise/reaffirm/withdraw the rating assigned as also revise the outlook,
as a result of periodic review/surveillance, based on any event or information which in the opinion of CARE
Ratings Ltd. warrants such an action. In the event of failure on the part of the entity to furnish such
information, material or clarifications as may be required by CARE Ratings Ltd. so as to enable it to carry out
continuous monitoring of the rating of the bank facilities, CARE Ratings Ltd. shall carry out the review on the
basis of best available information throughout the life time of such bank facilities. In such cases the credit
rating symbol shall be accompanied by “"ISSUER NOT COOPERATING”. CARE Ratings Ltd. shall also be entitled
to publicize/disseminate all the afore-mentioned rating actions in any manner considered appropriate by it,

without reference to you.

7. Our ratings do not factor in any rating related trigger clauses as per the terms of the facility/instrument, which
may involve acceleration of payments in case of rating downgrades. However, if any such clauses are

introduced and if triggered, the ratings may see volatility and sharp downgrades.
8. Users of this rating may kindly refer our website www.careedge.in for latest update on the outstanding rating.
9. CARE Ratings Ltd. ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell, or hold any securities.

If you need any clarification, you are welcome to approach us in this regard.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

|

A\
\r\" il ll‘

CARE Ratings Limited

Corporate Office :4th Floor, Godrej Coliseum,
Somaiya Hospital Road, Off Eastern Express
Highway, Sion (E), Mumbai - 400 022

Phone: +91-22-6754 3456 « www.careedge.in

CIN-L67190MH1993PLCO71691
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Shabnam Goyal Amit Jindal
Lead Analyst Associate Director
shabnam.goyal@careedge.in amit.jindal@careedge.in

Encl.: As above

Disclaimer

The ratings issued by CARE Ratings Limited are opinions on the likelihood of timely payment of the obligations under the rated instrument and are not
recommendations to sanction, renew, disburse or recall the concerned bank facilities or to buy, sell or hold any security. These ratings do not convey
suitability or price for the investor. The agency does not constitute an audit on the rated entity. CARE Ratings Limited has based its ratings/outlooks
based on information obtained from reliable and credible sources. CARE Ratings Limited does not, however, guarantee the accuracy, adequacy or
completeness of any information and is not responsible for any errors or omissions and the results obtained from the use of such information. Most
entities whose bank facilities/instruments are rated by CARE Ratings Limited have paid a credit rating fee, based on the amount and type of bank
facilities/instruments. CARE Ratings Limited or its subsidiaries/associates may also be involved with other commercial transactions with the entity. In
case of partnership/proprietary concerns, the rating /outlook assigned by CARE Ratings Limited is, inter-alia, based on the capital deployed by the
partners/proprietor and the current financial strength of the firm. The rating/outlook may undergo a change in case of withdrawal of capital or the
unsecured loans brought in by the partners/proprietor in addition to the financial performance and other relevant factors. CARE Ratings Limited is not
responsible for any errors and states that it has no financial liability whatsoever to the users of CARE Ratings Limited’s rating.

Our ratings do not factor in any rating related trigger clauses as per the terms of the facility/instrument, which may involve acceleration of payments in
case of rating downgrades. However, if any such clauses are introduced and if triggered, the ratings may see volatility and sharp downgrades.

Credit rating rationale is given on the following link: https://www.careratings.com/upload/
CompanyFiles/PR/202402130214_Ashiana_Housing_Limited.pdf
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ANNEXURE IV Vl STR A V
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BEETAL

ANNEXURE V 02.12.2023

The Company Secretary

Ashiana Housing Limited

Unit 4 & 5, 3" Floor, Plont No. D-2,
Southern Park, Saket Dist Centre,
New Delhi

Dear Sir,

Subject: Proposal to act as Reqgistrar & Transfer Adgents for the
Proposed Issue of NCDs (Unsecured, Rated., Listed) of Rs. 5.60
Crores:-

We are pleased to receive your email dated 02.12.2023 where you have
confirmed our charges to act as Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA) for your
proposed issue of NCDs (Unsecured, Rated, Listed) of Rs.5.60 Crores.

We hereby give our consent to act as Registrars & Transfer Agent to the above
captioned issue.

Kindly acknowledge receipt of the same.
Thanking you,

For BEETAL
Financial & Computer Services Pvt. Ltd.

P .
. R,

(Punit Mittal)
General Manager
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EXURE VI
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT LAND

Leasehold land admeasuring approximately 17.9 (seventeen point nine) acres, situated at Mahindra
World City (Residential Sector of Township), Paranur Village, Chengalpattu Taluk, Chengalpattu
Digtrict, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, within the registration district of Chengalpattu and Sub Registration
Digtrict of Joint 1| Chengalpattu, bearing the survey numbers set out bel ow:

Sl.No | Village Name Survey Nos Ex;\eg:gln
1 Paranur 34/3 0.15
2 Paranur 35/3 0.035
3 Paranur 36/1 1.08
4 Paranur 36/2 0.96
5 Paranur 37 0.38
6 Paranur 38 1.50
7 Paranur 39/1 0.25
8 Paranur 39/2 0.26
9 Paranur 39/3 0.60

10 Paranur 40 0.61
11 Paranur 41 0.49
12 Paranur 511 0.02
13 Paranur 51/2 0.06
14 Paranur 52/3 0.145
15 Paranur 53/2 0.15
16 Paranur 164 0.32
17 Paranur 196 0.25
18 Paranur 197 0.40
19 Paranur 202/1 161
20 Paranur 203/1 0.36
21 Paranur 203/2 0.33
22 Paranur 203/3 0.30
23 Paranur 204/1 0.32
24 Paranur 204/2 0.22
25 Paranur 204/3 0.21
26 Paranur 204/4 0.25
27 Paranur 204/5 0.24
28 Paranur 205 0.56
29 Paranur 206/1 1.22
30 Paranur 206/2 121
31 Paranur 206/3 1.19
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32 Paranur 207/1 0.46
33 Paranur 207/2 0.41
34 Paranur 221 0.08
35 Paranur 223/1 0.57
36 Paranur 223/2 0.70

Note: Out of thetotal project land measuring 17.90 acres, lease deed for 15.64 acres have been executed
in favour of the Issuer on September 30, 2021, land admeasuring 2.01 acres of land has been acquired
through lease deed dated 17 October 2022, and land admeasuring 0.25 acres is a Paramboke land.
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ANNEXURE VII
COVENANTSAND CONSEQUENCESOF EVENTS OF DEFAULT
PART A
ISSUER’S AFFIRMATIVE AND NGATIVE COVENANTS
ISSUER’S AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS

Unlessthe Trustee otherwise consentsin writing (acting in accordance with Relevant Instructions), until such time
that any Debenture is outstanding, the Issuer shall:

1. Corporate Existence; Conduct of Business; Compliance with Laws; Taxes

(i) Maintain its corporate existence and comply with its Charter documents; (ii) conduct the Project
Operations with due diligence and efficiency; (iii) conduct its business in relation to the Project in
compliance, in al material respects, with al applicable requirements of Law and in accordance with
sound business practices; and (iv) file by the date due, all returns, reports and filings in respect of Taxes
required to be filed by it and pay, when due, all Taxes due and payable by it.

2. Authorizations

Obtain, renew and maintain in force, and comply with, all Authorizations, including without limitation
the Authorizations which are necessary for the carrying out its business and operations generally and for
the Project in particular (including al Authorizations for acquisition of leasehold rights of the Project
Land from Current Land Owner) and the compliance by the Issuer with al its obligations under the
Debenture Trust Deed and any other Transaction Document.

3. Investor Rights Agreement Covenants

Comply with al the covenants set out in Article 11 (Covenants) of the Investor Rights Agreement.

4, Utilization of Proceeds of the Debentures

Utilize the moneys received towards subscription of the Debentures solely for the purpose mentioned in
Clause 14.4 (Purpose) of the Debenture Trust Deed. The Issuer shall, on Debentureholders’ or the
Debenture Trustee’s request, procure and furnish to the Debenturholders and the Debenture Trustee a
certificate from its statutory auditorsin respect of the utilization of the proceeds from the subscription of
the Debenture.

Forthwith upon the Common Retention Bank Account (as defined in the Accounts Agreement) being
opened and becoming operational, without any delay, deposit the moneys received towards subscription
of the Debentures into the Common Retention Bank Account, and shall not utilize such moneystill the
same are deposited in the Common Retention Bank Account as aforesaid.

5. Furnish Information to Trustee

0] Furnish a quarterly report to the Trustee (or as may be required in accordance with SEBI
Regulations and Debenture Trustee Regulations) containing the following particulars:

(A) periodical status/ performance reports of the Issuer within the timeline prescribed in
the Debenture Trustee Regulations;

(B) an updated list of the names and addresses of the Debentureholders;
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(© details of the interest, principal amount and any other amounts that may be due in
respect of the Debentures, but unpaid and reasons thereof;

(D) the number and nature of grievances received from the Debentureholders and resolved
by the Issuer and those grievances not yet resolved to the satisfaction of the
Debentureholders and the reasons for the same; and

(E) astatement that the assets of the Issuer are sufficient to discharge the Obligations under
the Debenture Trust Deed.

Promptly and expeditiously attend to and redress the grievances, if any, of the
Debentureholders. The Issuer further undertakes that it shall promptly consider the suggestions
and directions that may be given in this regard, from time to time, by the Trustee and shall
advise the Trustee periodically of the compliance.

Promptly inform the Trustee in writing of any material change in the nature and conduct of
business of the I ssuer.

Promptly inform the Debenture Trustee about any change in the composition of the Board of
the Issuer.

Maintain register of Debentureholders including address of the Debentureholders, record of
subsequent transfers and changes of ownership.

Promptly inform the Trustee in writing of any merger, amalgamation or reconstruction scheme
proposed by the Issuer.

Promptly forward to the Trustee the documents and intimations required under Regulation 56
of the SEBI LODR Regulations a half-yearly certificate regarding maintenance of 100% asset
cover and compliance with all the covenants, in respect of the Debentures, by the statutory
auditor, along with the half-yearly financial results.

Provide al relevant documents and information to the Trustee to enable the Trustee to conduct
periodical monitoring and submit such reports and certifications to the stock exchange as are
required pursuant to the SE I circular dated ovember 12, 2020 on “ onitoring and
Disclosures by Debenture Trustee(s)” with circularno. SE T O IRSD CRADT CIR
2020/230.

In case of initiation of forensic audit (by whatever name called) in respect of the Issuer, the
Issuer shall inform the Trustee and the stock exchange of the fact of initiation of forensic audit
along-with name of entity initiating the audit and reasons for the same, if available.

Promptly inform the Trustee of any default in timely payment of interest or redemption or both
in respect of the non-convertible debt securities.

Further Acts

So far as permitted by applicable Law and regulations, do such further things and execute all such further
documents as may be necessary in the opinion of the Trustee to give effect to the Debenture Trust Deed
and the Debenture Documents.

Filing, registration and reporting

Duly and punctually comply with or procure that there is compliance with al filing, registration,
reporting and similar requirements required in accordance with applicable Law and regulationsfrom
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time to time relating in any manner whatsoever to the Debenture Trust Deed and the Debentures.

e TheIssuer shall within 15 (fifteen) days from the end of every half year (i.e. April 15 and October
15), submit a statement, to the Stock Exchange, as well as to the Depository containing all
information in the format as prescribed in paragraph 10 of Chapter V111 of the Operational Circular.

Further Assurances

0] Execute and/or do, at its own expense, al such deeds, assurances, documents, instruments, acts,
matters and things, in such form and otherwise as the Trustee may under the Debenture Trust
Deed or by Law require in relation to enforcing or exercising any of the rights and authorities
of the Trustee.

(i) Obtain, comply with the terms of and do all that is necessary to maintainin full force and effect,
and supply certified copies to the Trustee (on behaf of the Debentureholders) of, al
Authorizations necessary to enable it lawfully to enter into and perform its obligations under
the Debenture Documents or to ensure the legdlity, validity, enforceability or admissibility in
evidence in the Country of the Debenture Documents and to carry on its current business.

(iii) Comply with:
(A) all requirements under Law applicable to listed companies.

(B) all Laws, rules, regulations and guidelines (including taxation related Laws), including
but not limited to (i) the SEBI Regulations, as may be in force from time to time during
the currency of the Debentures; (ii) the provisions of the listing agreement entered into
by the Issuer with the stock exchange in relation to the Debentures including but not
limited to the requirement of obtaining the prior approval of the stock exchange in the
event of any material modification to the structure of the Debentures; and (iii) SEBI
LODR Regulations; and SEBI Operational Circular.

© the Debenture Trustee Regulations or any successor regulation thereto asin force from
time to time, and furnish to the Trustee such data, information, statements and reports
as may be deemed necessary by the Trustee in order to enable them to comply with the
provisions of Regulation 15 thereof in performance of their duties in accordance
therewith to the extent applicable to the Debentures.

(D) the provisions of the Act in relation to the issue of the Debentures; and

(E) the regulations, advice, guidelines, and listing requirements, if any, from time to time
issued by SEBI and RBI and any other applicable Authority.

(iv) Procure that the Debentures are rated, and therating is continued until the Final Settlement Date.

(v) Ensure that, at the time of making any payment of interest or repayment of the principal amount
of the Debenturesin full or in part, the Issuer shall do so in the manner that is most tax efficient
for the Debentureholders (including withholding tax benefit) but without, in any way, requiring
the Issuer to incur any additional costs, expenses or Taxes and the Issuer shall avail of al the
benefits available under any treaty applicable to the Issuer and/or the Debenturehol ders.

(vi) Maintain asset cover sufficient to discharge the outstanding amount of the Debentures in
accordance with the requirements of the listing agreement entered into with the stock exchange.

Comply with Provisions of Section 125 of the Act
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) Comply with the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Investor Education
and Protection Fund) relating to the transfer of unclaimed or unpaid amounts of interest on
Debentures and the redemption of Debentures to the "Investor Education and Protection Fund",
if applicabletoit.

(i) Hereby further agrees and undertakes that during the currency of the Debenture Trust Deed, it
shall abide by the regulations, advice, guidelines, and listing requirements if any, issued from
time to time by the SEBI and any other Authority (to the extent applicable).

Notice of Events of Default

Notify the Trustee in writing immediately on becoming aware of any failure to comply with the terms of
the Debenture Trust Deed or the occurrence of any Event of Default without waiting for the Trustee to
take any action in respect thereof. The Trustee shall not be required to take any steps to ascertain if an
Event of Default has occurred or is continuing or if any event which could lead to an Event of Default
has occurred and the Trustee shall be entitled to assume that no such events or potential events have
occurred until it has received written notice to the contrary.

Distribution Mechanism and Investor Rights Agreement

At all times comply with the Distribution Mechanism and the Investor Rights Agreement.

Eligibility Criteria

Ensure that the Project meets and continues to meet all the Eligibility Criteria, at all times.

FATCA Compliance

The Issuer hereby declares that, to the extent applicable, the Issuer isin compliance with the provisions
of the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act ("FATCA") and the Issuer hereby undertakesto ensure the
compliance of the provisions of the FATCA (to the extent applicable) at al times until the Final
Settlement Date. The Issuer agrees to provide the relevant authorities with any documentation or
information requested relating to self or beneficiary or related tax entity to the extent required by the
Debenture Trustee and/or the Debentureholder(s) for meeting its compliances. Further, the Issuer shall
indemnify the Debenture Trustee and/or the Debenturehol der(s) for any penal consequence arising due
to non-compliance of the aforesaid provision by the Issuer. The Issuer agrees that they will provide a
copy of the documents provided to the tax authorities to the Debenture Trustee and/or the
Debentureholder(s) for their records.

Nominee Directors

The Debentureholders / Debenture Trustee shall have the right to appoint a nominee on the Board of
Directors ("Nominee Dir ector") in accordance with the provisions of the Debenture Trustee Regul ations
in the event of:

0] two consecutive defaults in payment of Interest to the Debentureholders; and/or

(i) default in redemption of the Debentures.

The Nominee Director so appointed shall hold office until the payment of the Interest due to the
Debenturehol ders or redemption of Debentures (as the case may be). The Nominee Director so appointed
shall not be liable to retire by rotation nor shall be required to hold any qualification shares. The I ssuer
shall take steps to amend its Charter for this purpose, if necessary.

Project land and I nspection
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) The Issuer shall have leasehold interest in respect of the Project Land (free from any Lien), and
the Issuer shall not, without the prior consent of the Trustee, sell, assign, sub-lease, license or
dispose in any other manner any part or portion of Project Land, other than pursuant to sale of
apartments and sale of other built-up space (where sale of built space is in accordance with
regulationg/circularg/notifications issued by the Department of Town & Country Planning,
Chengelepatu) in the Project in the ordinary course of business.

(i) Allow the representatives and/or nominees of the Debenture Trustee during business hours and
with reasonable notice to visit and inspect from time to time the Issuer’s premises and other
property/assets books of accounts and all other relevant accounts, documents, and records. The
Issuer shall extend full cooperation to such representatives and/or nominees during such
inspection. The costs and expenses of such visits and/or inspections shall be paid and borne by
the I'ssuer.

16. Information to Debentureholders

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Debt Regulations, the SEBI Operational Circular
and SEBI LODR Regulations, the Issuer shall provide the following to the Debentureholders in the
manner prescribed therein:

(i) physical copiesof full annual reports to those Debentureholders who request for such copies.

(ii) notice of al meetings of the Debentureholders specifically stating that the provisions for
appointment of proxy in accordance with Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be applicable
in respect of such meetings; and

(iii) proxy forms for the Debentureholders clearly providing the Debentureholders to vote for each
resolution in such a manner that they may vote either for or against each resolution.

17. Accounts

The Issuer shall open and maintain the Designated Account and the bank account mentioned in Clause
14.5(b) at al times until the Final Settlement Date, in accordance with the provisions of the Accounts
Agreement and the RBI Account Circular.

ISSUER’S NEGATIVE COVENANTS

Unlessthe Trustee otherwise consentsin writing (acting in accordance with Relevant Instructions), until such time
that any Debenture is outstanding, the Issuer shall not:

1.  Useof Proceeds
Use the proceeds of the Debentures for any purposes other than as specified in the Debenture Trust Deed.
2. Ddlist the Debenture
Voluntarily delist the Debentures or permit or suffer the Debentures to be delisted at any time until the
Final Redemption Date.
3. Investor Rights Agreement Covenants
Take any action or step contrary to its obligations as set out in the Investor Rights Agreement.

4. Declaration of dividend
Declare dividend to the shareholders in any Financia Y ear, in
case it makes default in payment of instalment of principal and interest due on the Debentures or has not
made provision for making such payment.
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REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

The Issuer shall submit to the Trustee and the Trustee shall, immediately on receipt of all information and
documents submitted by the Issuer pursuant to this Annexure VIl (Covenants and Consequences of Events of
Default) and the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed, forward all such information and documents to each of the
Debenturehol ders:

1. Investor Rights Agreement Covenants

The Issuer shall at al times comply with the reporting regquirements, covenants and undertakings applicable
to it as set forth in Section 3.01 and 3.02 of the Investor Rights Agreement.

2. Reporting under applicable Law

(i) File such supplements or documents as may be necessary to record any variation in the terms of the
Debentures including any changesin Interest Rate.

(ii) Filewith the stock exchange for dissemination, along with the quarterly financial results, acommunication,
noted by the Trustee, as required by the SEBI LODR Regulations, as amended containing inter-alia the
following information:

(A)
(B)
(C)
(D)
(E)
(F)

(©)
(H)
(1)

)

(K)
(L)

(M)
(N)
(O)
(P)

Q)
(R)

3. Ligting

debt-equity ratio;

debt service coverage ratio;

interest service coverage ratio;

outstanding redeemabl e preference shares (quantity and value);
capital redemption reserve/debenture redemption reserve;
net worth;

net profit after tax;

earnings per share;

current ratio;

long term debt to working capital;

bad debts to account receivable ratio;

current liability ratio;

total debtsto total assets;

debtors turnover;

inventory turnover,;

operating margin (%);

net profit margin (%);and

sector specific equivalent ratios, as applicable.

(i) promptly upon failure of the Issuer to list the Debentures on the stock exchange in accordance with the
Debenture Trust Deed, reasons for such failure; and

(i) such certificate and information as required pursuant to Regulation 52 of the SEBI LODR Regulations and
Regulation 15(1)(c) of the SEBI (Debenture Trustee) Regulations, 1993.

4, |Information

So far as permitted by applicable Law, give the Trustee such information as it reasonably requires to perform
itsfunctionsand/or to exerciseits powers, rights and discretions under the Debenture Trust Deed and any other
Transaction Document.

105



General Information Document for issue of listed unsecured non-
convertible debentures on private placement basis
For private circulation only
16 February, 2024

PART B

CONSEQUENCESOF EVENTSOF DEFAULT

Upon occurrence of an Event of Defaullt:

(8 the Trustee may take such actions and seek such remedies as may be available to it under applicable
Law, including the guidelines prescribed by SEBI pursuant to the SEBI EOD Circular; or/and

(b) enforce the rights contemplated under the Debenture Trust Deed and the Debenture Documents,
including the right to enter into an inter-creditor agreement (in accordance with the directions and
procedure issued by the R I and to be followed by debenture trustees in case of ‘Default’ by issuers
of listed debt securities) with other creditors of the Issuer, if any and/or take such actions as per

Relevant Instructions as may be taken by the Debentureholders as specified in Section 4.08 of the
Investor Rights Agreement.

In the event of the Issuer committing default in the repayment of any Debentures or payment of interest
on the respective due dates, the relevant Debentureholders and Trustee shall have the right to disclose
the name of the Issuer and its directors to the RBI or any other statutory or regulatory Authority in
accordance with any mandatory requirement under applicable Law.

Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalised termsin this Annexure V11 (Covenants and Consequences of Events
of Default) shall have the meanings given to them in the Debenture Trust Deed.
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ANNEXURE VI

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Ashiana Housing Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements
of Ashiana Housing Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and
Notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian
Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the
Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, and profit (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
[SAs] specified under section 143(10]) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are

relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context

We have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled
the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements section of our
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Revenue recognition (refer note 8.1 to the standalone financial statements)

Key Audit Matter
Revenue from sale of residential units represents 98.55% of the
total revenue from operations of the Company.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of residential units to
customers for an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those units. The trigger
for revenue recognition is normally upon satisfaction of performance
obligation and the control thereof is transferred from the company
to the buyer upon possession or upon issuance of letter for offer of
possession [“deemed date of possession”).

Revenue recognition prior to completion of the project

Due to the Company’s projects being spread across different regions
within the country and the competitive business environment, there
is a risk that revenue could be overstated (for example, through
premature revenue recognition i.e. recording revenue without receipt
of approval from authorities or its intimation to the customers) or
understated (for example, through improperly shifting revenues to
a later period] in order to present consistent financial results. Since
revenue recognition has direct impact on the Company’s profitability,
the element of management bias is likely to be involved.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures on Revenue recognition included the following:

¢ Evaluating that the Company’s revenue recognition accounting
policies are in line with the applicable accounting standards
and their application to the key customer contracts including
consistent application;

* Sales cut-off procedures for determination of revenue in the
correct reporting period;

e Scrutinising all the revenue journal entries raised throughout
the reporting period and comparing details of a sample of these
journals, which met certain risk-based criteria, with relevant
underlying documentation;

* Conducting site visits during the year for selected projects to
understand the scope and nature of the projects and to assess
the progress of the projects; and

* Considered the adequacy of the disclosures in note 2.24 to the
standalone financial statements in respect of the judgments
taken in recognising revenue for residential units.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

In addition, we have the performed the following procedures:

¢ Discussing and challenging key management judgments in
interpreting contractual terms including obtaining in house legal
interpretations;

* Testing sample sales of units for projects with the underlying
contracts, completion status and proceeds received from
customers; and

¢ Identified and tested operating effectiveness of key controls
around approvals of contracts, milestone billing, intimation
of possession letters / intimation of receipt of occupation
certificate and controls over collection from customers;

Deferred Tax Assets (refer note 3.7 to the standalone financial statements)

Key Audit Matter
The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets represents 0.77% of
the Company’s total assets.

Recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets

The Company has deferred tax assets in respect of brought forward
losses and other temporary differences, as set out in note 3.7.

The recognition of deferred tax assets involves judgment regarding
the likelihood of the reasonable certainty of realisation of these
assets, in particular whether there will be taxable profits in future
periods that support recognition of these assets.

Management records deferred tax assets in respect of carried
forward business losses in cases where it is reasonably certain based
on the projected profitability determined on the basis of approved
business plans that sufficient taxable income will be available to
absorb the carried forward business loss.

Information other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not coverthe other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in section 134(5]) of the Act with respect to the preparation of

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures included:

¢ Through discussions with management, we understood the
Company’s process for recording deferred tax assets;

* We have obtained the approved business plans, projected
profitability statements for the existing projects and the future
projects which are confirmed through definitive agreements;

* We have performed sensitivity analysis and inquired into the
basis of the projections for the reasonable certainty of utilisation
of the brought forward business losses and therefore recognition
of deferred tax assets; and

* We tested the underlying data for the key deferred tax and tax
provision calculations.

these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3])(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

¢  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However.,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable

that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016
("the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section [11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the
paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

(c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of
change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act;

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from
the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2] of the Act;

() with respectto the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such contraols, refer to our separate report
in “Annexure B”;



(9]

(h]

With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act

with respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

the Company has, to the extent ascertainable, disclosed
the impact of pending litigations on its financial position

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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in its financial statements - Refer clause (d), (e), and (f)

of Note 12 to the financial statements;

i. the Company does not have any material foreseeable
losses on long term contracts including derivative

contracts which would impact its financial position;

ii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 328952E

Mahendra Jain
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 26" June, 2021 Membership No. 413904
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021, we report that:

U]

(ii)

(i)

(V)

v

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, all the assets have not been physically verified by the management during
the year but there is a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment to cover all the items of property,
plant and equipment in a phased manner, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its property, plant and equipment. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(] According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title
deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company, except the below property:

D inti f — Gross carrying Net carrying Remarks (if Any)
escription of prope
3 ey value (% in Crores) value (% in Crores)

Office Space at Saket, New Delhi 3.46 3.08
According to the information and explanations given to us, the the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013
management has conducted physical verification of inventory Act and the Companies [Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
at reasonable intervals during the year which, in our opinion, is (as amended).

reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature

. . - . . (vi) As certified by a Cost Accountant, the company has maintained
of its business. No material discrepancies were naticed on such

cost records for the year under review, as prescribed under

verification. . . .

sub-section (1) of Section 148 to the extent applicable to the
The Company has not granted secured/unsecured loans to company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties such records.

covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the

Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). (vi) (a) According to the records of the company, the company is

generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of employees’ state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Service
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect Tax, duty of customs, Cess and other material statutory
of loans, investments, guarantees and securities made by the dues, as applicable, and no such statutory dues were
company. outstanding as at the last day of the financial year under

. . . . . review for a period of more than six months from the date
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations

given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits within they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, duty of customs
and cess, as applicable, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, except the following:

Particulars Amount (% in lacs) Relating to the year Forum where dispute pending
Income Tax Act, 1961 4012 2015-16 Commissioner [Appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 68.37 2016-17 Commissioner [Appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 1025.72 2017-18 Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax
Tamil Nadu VAT Act, 2006 9.34 201617 Assistant Commissioner
Tamil Nadu VAT Act, 2006 21.61 201516 Deputy Commissioner [Appeals
Commercial Tax
Rajasthan Tax on Entry of Goods into 10.23 2017-18 Appellate Authority

Local Area Act, 1999



(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(i)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans
or borrowing to financial institution, bank, Government or dues to
debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation
given to us, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year under review. Further term loans have been
applied for the purposes for which those were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees have been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations give to us and
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company.

According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act and the details of such

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26™ June, 2021
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transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as

required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
on an overall examination of Balance Sheet of Company, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements
under clause 3(xiv] are not applicable to the company and not
commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 328952E

Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No. 413904
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

\We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of Ashiana Housing Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2021
in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial

Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’'s palicies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10] of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those paolicies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3] provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 328952E

Mahendra Jain
Place: New Delhi
Date: 26™ June, 2021

Partner
Membership No. 413904
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Ashiana Housing Limited (“the Company”) having CIN
L70109WB1986PLC0O40864 is a public limited company
domiciled and incorporated in India and its shares are publicly
traded on the National Stock Exchange (“NSE”) and the Bombay
Stock Exchange (“BSE”), India. The registered office of the
company is situated at 5F Everest, 46,/C, Chowringhee Road,
Kolkata - 700071 and the head office is situated at 304,
Southern Park, Saket District Centre, Saket, New Delhi-110017.

The principal business activity of the company is Real Estate
Development. The company has its presence in the states of
Rajasthan, Jharkhand, Maharashtra, Haryana, West Bengal,
Gujarat and Tamil Nadu.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance
with a resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 26thJune,
2021.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

The financial statements (Separate financial statements)have
been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) natified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities which have
been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees [“INR”
or "3

Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments
and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions
effect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting
estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the
use of assumptions in these financial statements have been
disclosed in Note 2.24. Accounting estimates could change from
period to period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management
becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the
estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

2.3
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Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet
based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

¢  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed
in normal operating cycle

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading

. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the
reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

o It is due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period, or

¢  Thereis no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities.

The normal operating cycle in respect of real estate operations
of the company is the time between the acquisition of land/
development rights for a real estate project and its realisation
into cash and cash equivalents by way of sale of developed units.
Accordingly, project related assets and liabilities have been
classified into current and non-current based on operating cycle
of the respective projects. All other assets and liabilities have
been classified into current and non-current based on a period of
twelve months.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold land and capital work-in-progress is carried at cost,
including transaction costs and borrowing costs. All other items of
property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
of its purchase price, any costs directly attributable to its
acquisition and an initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located,
the obligation for which the company incurs when the item is
acquired. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item
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2.5

can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives. The useful lives
estimated for the major classes of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

Class of property, plant and equipment  Useful life (in years)

Buildings 60
Plant & Machinery 5-15
Furniture & Fixtures 8-10
Vehicles 5-10
Electrical Installations 10
Equipment’s and facilities 5
Computer Hardware 3

The useful lives have been determined based on technical
evaluation done by the management, which in few cases
are different than the lives as specified by Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013. The residual values are not more than
5% of the original cost of the asset. The asset’ residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment is carried
out in a phased manner. Certain Plant and Machinery including
Shuttering and Scaffoldings is verified on completion of a Project
due to nature of such assets.

Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs and borrowing costs, wherever applicable.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's
carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

The building component of the investment properties are
depreciated using the straightline method over 60 years from the
date of original purchase, being their useful life as estimated by the
management. The estimated useful life of the building is same as
that prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

The company discloses the fair value of investment properties
as at the end of the year, which is determined by registered
accredited independent valuers.

2.6
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Investment properties are derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of investment
properties are included in profit and loss in the period of de-
recognition.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment loss.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite
or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight-
line method over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period and adjusted, if appropriate.
The useful economic lives estimated for various classes of
intangible assets are as follows:

Useful life (in years)

Trademark and Logo 10
Software 3

Class of intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised,
but are tested for impairment annually.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and their related
liabilities are presented separately in the balance sheet. Non-
current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are
classified as held for sale.

Inventories

Construction material and hotel and club consumables are valued
at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and
other items are not written down below cost if the constructed
units/food and beverages in which they are used are expected to
be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on first in, first out
(FIFQ] basis.

Land/Development Rights are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Completed units and project development forming part of work
in progress are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost includes direct materials, labour, project specific direct and
indirect expenses, borrowing costs and pro-rata unrealised cost
from EWS/LIG units.



Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash

at banks and on hand and shortterm deposits maturing within

twelve months from the date of balance sheet, which are subject

to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are

shown under borrowings in the balance sheet.

Other Bank Balances includes Balances with Bank to the extent

secured against the borrowings, Bank Balances for unclaimed

dividend, and Balances in Bank Accounts designated as RERA

Account wherein 70% of amount collected from allottees is

deposited.

2.10 Financial Instruments

A.

B.1.

Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the company’'s statement of financial position when the
company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. The company determines the classification
of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in
the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial assets -Subsequent measurement

The Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification which is as follows:

a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
include financial assets held for sale in the near term
and those designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss.

b. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Trade receivables do not carry any
interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced
by appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable
amounts based on the ageing of the receivables balance
and historical experience. Additionally, a large number of
minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups
and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual
trade receivables are written off when management
deems them not to be collectible.

c. Financial assets at fair value through OCI

All  equity investments, except investments in

subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, falling

B.2.

D.1.

D.2.
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within the scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair
value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).
The company makes an irrevocable election on an
instrument by instrument basis to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair
value. The classification is made on initial recognition
and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to designate an equity
instrument at fair value through OCI , then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCI.

Financial assets -Derecognition

The company derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire
or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

Upon derecognition of equity instruments designated at
fair value through OCI, the associated fair value changes of
that equity instrument is transferred from OCI to Retained
Earnings.

Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Investments made by the company in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are measured at cost in the
separate financial statements of the company.

Financial liabilities -Subsequent measurement

The Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification which is as follows:

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading, if any.

b. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Interest bearing loans and borrowings including
debentures issued by the company are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method (EIR). Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fee or costs that are integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortised is included in finance costs

in the statement of profit and loss.
Financial liabilities —-Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or expires.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the statement of financial position,
if and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to



®
doshiena

you are in safe hands

settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

F. Fair value measurement

The company measures certain financial instruments at fair
value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

a) Inthe principal market for the assets or liability or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible to the company.

The company uses valuation technique that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

2.11 EWS/LIG units

In terms of the building bye laws of various states in which the
company operates, it is required to develop certain units for
Economically Weaker Section (EWS) and Lower Income Group
(LIG) people alongwith the development of the main group
housing project.

EWS/LIG units in the balance sheet comprise of amounts
deployed by the company towards land, development and/or
purchase of EWS/LIG units, as reduced by amounts received
from the allottees and unrealised cost from such units.

2.12 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised
product or services to customer in an amount that reflects
the consideration the company expects to receive in exchange
for those product or service, regardless of when the payment
is received. Revenue is measured at the Transaction price,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of the third parties.

The specific recognition criteria for the various types of the
company's activities are described below:

Real estate projects

In accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115,revenue in
respect of real estate project is recognised on satisfaction of
Performance obligation at a point in timeby transferring a
promised good or services (i.e. an asset) to a customer and the
customer obtains control of that asset.

To determine the point in time at which a customer obtains
control of a promised asset and the entity satisfies a performance

obligation, the company considers following indicators of the
transfer of control to customers:

(a) the company has a present right to payment for the asset;

(b) the company has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the real estate;

(c) the company retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership
nor effective control over the real estate sold;

(d) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(e} the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably;

(f) the customer has accepted the asset.

The satisfaction of performance obligation and the control
thereof is transferred from the company to the buyer upon
possession or upon issuance of letter for offer of possession
("deemed date of possession”], whichever is earlier, subject to
certainty of realisation.

Hotel and club services

Revenue from rooms, food and beverages, club and other allied
services, is recognised upon rendering of the services.

Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments (including Fixed Deposits)
is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The
effective interest rate is that rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. \While
calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms
of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) but does not consider the expected
credit losses.

Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the
payment is established.

Rental Income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment
properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Delayed payment charges

Delayed payment charges claimed to expedite recoveries are
accounted for on realisation.

Other Income

Other Income is accounted for on accrual basis except, where
the receipt of income is uncertain.



2.13 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Indian
rupee using the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of these transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.

2.14 Employee benefits

Short Term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages, salaries and other employee benefits that
are expected to be settled within twelve months of rendering the
service by the employees are classified as short term employee
benefits. Such short term employee benefits are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Post employment benefits
(a) Defined contribution plans

The company pays provident fund contribution to publicly
administered provident funds as per the local regulations.
The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution
plans and are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due.

(b) Defined benefit plans

The liabilities recognised in the balance sheet in respect
of defined benefit plan, namely gratuity and leave pay, are
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the year less the fair value of plan assets, if any. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated by actuaries using
the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and
fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in
other comprehensive income. They are included in the
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and
in the balance sheet.

2.15 Leases

A. Company as a Lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease
at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
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asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the
contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset through the period of the lease and (i) the Company has
the right to direct the use of the asset.

The company applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for leasehold land, short-
term leases and leases of low-value. For shortterm and
leases of low value, the Company recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease. Leasehold land is carried at the
acquisition cost i.e. one-time lease premium paid at the
time of acquisition of leasehold rights. For all other leases,
the Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement
date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straightline basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

The lease liahility is initially measured at amortized cost at
the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Right-of-use assets are included in the Leased Assets and
lease liabilities are included in other current and non-current
financial liabilities in the balance sheet. Lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Leasehold Land under
Leased assets represents land allotted by Government of
Rajasthan for 99 years on leasehold basis and is recognised
at cost. Leased building improvements under Leased assets
are initially recognised at cost and subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation. The depreciation is
calculated on a straight line basis based on the lease period.

Company as a Lessor
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Leases for which the company is a lessor is classified as
finance or operating leases. Leases in which the Company
does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on
a straight-ine basis over the lease term, unless the receipts
are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation.

2.16 Finance Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to ongoingprojects of the
company are charged to work in progress as a part of the cost
of such project.

Other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.17 Selling Costs

Selling expenses related to specific projects/units are being
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the
revenue thereof is accounted and till such time these costs are
carried forward as Unaccrued Selling Expenses under the head
Other Current Assets.

Project-wise unaccrued selling expenses carried forward are
reviewed by the management annually after commencement
of revenue recognition of such projects and abnormal selling
expenses in excess of standard costs as estimated by the
management minus selling costs estimated to be incurred
thereof in future are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.18 Taxes

Current Tax

The current tax expense for the period is determined as the
amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period,
based on the applicable income tax rates.

Current tax relating to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or equity is recognised in other comprehensive income
or equity, respectively.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or equity is recognised in other comprehensive income
or equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities.

2.19 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised when the company has present
determined obligations as a result of past events and an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligations. Provisions are recognised at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. VWhere discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as a finance cost.

A Contingent liability is not recognised but disclosed in the notes
to the accounts, unless the probability of an outflow of resources
is remote.

A contingent asset is generally neither recognised nor disclosed.

2.20 Earnings per share

The Basic earnings per share (EPS] is calculated by dividing
the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating Diluted earnings per share, the net
profit or loss for the year attributable to the equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

2.21 Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the
company, on or before the end of the reporting period but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.

2.22 Exceptional items

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within
statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities which are
non-recurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that
their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the
performance of the company.



2.23 Impairment of assets

The company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there
is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annualimpairment testing for an asset is required,
the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU]) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment
on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.24 Critical accounting estimates

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion
of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of
periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate
of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual
value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of
company’s assets are determined by management at the time
the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience
with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which
may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

Intangible assets

The company tests whether intangible assets have suffered
any impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount
of a cash generating unit is determined based on value in use
calculations which require the use of assumptions.

Investment property

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation on investment
properties is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s
expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its
life. The useful lives and residual values of company’s investment
properties are determined by management at the time the asset
is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial
year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar
assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact
their life, such as changes in technology.
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Revenue Recognition

Determination of revenue under the satisfaction of performance
obligation at a point in time method necessarily involves making
estimates, some of which are of a technical nature, concerning where
relevant, the timing of satisfaction of performance aobligations, costs
to completion, the expected revenues from the project or activity
and the foreseeable losses to completion. The company recognises
revenue when the company satisfies its performance obligations.

Selling costs

Project wise unaccrued selling expenses carried forward are
reviewed by the management annually and compared with
the standard costs. The standard selling costs and selling
costs expected to be incurred in future are estimated by the
management annually project-wise keeping in mind various
factors such as location of the project, market scenario, sales
volume, pricing, etc.

Inventories

Inventories comprising of land/development rights, completed
units and project development forming part of work-in-progress
are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Net Realisable
value is based upon the estimates of the management. The
effect of changes, if any, to the estimates is recognised in the
standalone financial statements for the period in which such
changes are determined.

Trade Receivable

As per Ind AS 109, the company is required to apply expected
credit losses model for recognizing the provision for doubtful
debts. The expected credit losses are determined based on the
past trends & assumptions.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligations arising from defined benefit plan is determined
on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions
include discount rate, trends in salary escalation and attrition
rate. The discount rate is determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government securities,
the period to maturity of the underlying securities correspond to
the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligation.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Asset

The deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed losses is
recognised based on reasonable certainty of the projected
profitability, determined on the basis of approved business plans,
to the extent that sufficient taxable income will be available to
absorb the unabsorbed losses.

Provisions and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based
on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources,
and on past experience and circumstances known at the Balance
sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may
therefore vary from the amount included in other provisions.
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Standalone Balance Sheet

as at 31st March, 2021

Particulars

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Property,Plant and Equipment
Investment Property
Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets under Development
Leased Assets

Financial Assets

- Investment in Subsidiaries
- Investments Others

- Deposits with Banks

- Other Financial Assets
Deferred Tax Assets [Net)

Current assets

Inventories

Financial Assets

- Investment in Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures
- Investments Others

- Trade Receivables

- Cash and Cash Equivalents

- Other Bank Balances

- Other Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets [Net)

Other Current Assets

- Trade Advance and Deposits
- EWS/LIG Units

- Others

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share Capital

Other Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

- Borrowings

- Other Financial Liabilities
Non - Current Provisions

Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

- Borrowings

- Trade Payables
a) Dues of Micro and Small Enterprises
b) Dues of Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises

- Other Financial Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities

- Advance from Customers

- Others

Current Provisions

Total Equity and Liabilities
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies
Accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date attached herewith
For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 328952E Vishal Gupta

(Managing Director)

DIN 00097839

Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No: 4133804

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26" June, 2021

(Company Secretary)

Tin Lakhs
Not As at As at
oLes 31% March, 2021 31 March, 2020
3.1 4,146 5,354
32 3953 6,123
33 79 57
34 - 33
35 1372 1,352
36
36.1 273 182
36.2 4 4
36.3 2204 3216
36.4 550 426
37 983 965
13,562 17,712
4.1 74,058 61,961
42
421 3,133 3699
422 3120 1.143
423 1.308 1768
424 7.179 4787
425 5.043 1.827
4206 5144 5,480
43 473 329
44
441 8637 7494
442 2002 1.959
443 3,407 3,352
113,723 93,799
1,27.286 1,911,511
5.1 2047 2047
5.2 73,546 73.378
75,593 75,425
6.1
6.1.1 4,659 10377
612 1,049 1.188
6.2 349 305
6,257 11,890
7.1
7.1.1 357 19
712
96 196
2,176 1,880
713 2810 4393
72
721 39,315 17,200
7002 548 444
73 135 134
45,435 24,196
1,27.286 1,911,511
182
1 to 23

Varun Gupta

(Whole-time Director)
DIN 01666653

Vikash Dugar

(CFO)

Hemant Kaul

(Independent Director)
DIN 00551588
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Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss

for the year ended 31st March, 2021

¥in Lakhs
Particulars Notes 2020-21 2019-20
Income
Revenue from Operations 8.1 18,152 25,808
Income from Partnership 8.2 1,001 422
Other Income 8.3 1,558 1,143
Total Revenue 21,711 27,373
Expenses
Direct Costs:
Purchases 9.1 6.801 4,343
Project Expenses 9.2 16,631 13,889
Changes in Inventories 9.3 (9,798) 728
Hotel & Club Expenses 94 241 748
13,876 19,709
Employee Benefits Expense 9.5 2,260 2,478
Selling Expenses 1,740 2,870
Finance Costs 96 890 1,349
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 9.7 852 905
Other Expenses 98 1,785 1,968
Total Expenses 21,402 29,279
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional item and tax 308 (1,906)
Less : Exceptional ltem 99 - 1,739
Profit/(Loss) before tax 308 (3,646)
Tax Expense: 10
Current Tax - 396
Deferred Tax (55) (1,223)
(55) (827)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 363 (2,819)
Other comprehensive income
A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Changes in fair value of Equity Instruments 106 97
Tax Expense relating to above (27) (24)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liabilities 43 (47)
Tax Expense relating to above items 1M 12
B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year 112 37
Total comprehensive income for the year 475 (2,782)
Earnings per equity share
Basic & Diluted 1M1 046 (2.72)
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies 182
Accompanying notes to the Financial Statements 1to23
In terms of our report of even date attached herewith
For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants _
Firm Registration No: 328952E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta Hemant Kaul
[Managing Director) [Wholetime Director) (Independent Director)
DIN 00087939 DIN 01666653 DIN 00551588
Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No: 413904 Nitin Sharma Vikash Dugar

(Company Secretary) (CFO)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26 June, 2021
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement

For the Year ended 31st March, 2021

Tin Lakhs
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax and exceptional items 308 (1,908)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation 852 905
Interest Income (250) (301)
Income from Investments (1995) (369)
Provision for Doubtful Debts - (5)
Interest Paid 1,347 1,696
Irrecoverable Balances Written off 14 18
Liabilities Written Back (58) (102)
Provision for Employee Benefits 67 17
Investment Property written off 115 -
Fixed Assets written off 43 28
Gain on madification/ termination of Right of use Lease Liability (26) -
(Profit) / Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (699) 3
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 1,419 (16)
Adjusted for:
Trade Receivables 446 (708)
Other Financial Assets 212 (29)
Non Financial Assets (1,261) 1,500
Inventories (9,809) 511
Trade Payables 323 970
Other Financial Liabilities (1,626) 759
Customer Advances 22,115 1,999
Non Financial Liabilities 103 255
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 11,922 5,242
Direct Taxes paid / adjusted (143) (109)
Cash flow before exceptional items 11,779 5,133
Exceptional ltems. - (1,739)
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) 11,779 3,394
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Fixed Assets (884) (523)
Sale of Fixed Assets 2,153 143
Net change in Investments (383) 5,436
Interest Income 250 301
Other Income from Investments 195 369
Net Cash from Investing Activities (B) 1,331 5,726
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Net Proceeds from borrowings (5,379) (3,902)
Payment of Lease Liabilities (268) (127)
Interest on Lease Liabilities (138) (154)
Interest Paid (1,209) (1.541)
Dividend paid (307) (308)
Net Cash from Financing activities (C) (7,302) (6,033)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+ B+ C) 5,808 3,087
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 6,614 3,527
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 12,422 6,614
01. Proceeds from long term and other borrowings are shown net of repayment.
02. Cash and Cash equivalents includes other bank balances.
In terms of our report of even date attached herewith:
For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 328952E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta Hemant Kaul
(Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director)
DIN 000897939 DIN 01666653 DIN 00551588
Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No: 413904 Nitin Sharma Vikash Dugar

(Company Secretary) (CFQ)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26" June, 2021
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st March, 2021

Equity Share Capital Zin Lakhs
. As at Changes during As at
Particulars NOteS  34e March, 2020 20202021  31%March, 2021
10,23,52,099 Equity shares of ¥ 2/- each fully paid up 5.1 2,047 2,047
2,047 - 2,047
Other Equity %in Lakhs
Notes Reserves and Surplus Equity
Retained Earnings Investment
Reserve
Particulars Securities Debentltlr-e Surplus in the (upon fair value Total
5.2 Premium Redemption General S through other
Reserve Reserve Profit and Loss comprehensive
income)
Balance as at 31.03.2019 19,958 1,112 51,500 3418 480 76,469
Profit/ (Loss) for the year (2,819) (2,819)
Other comprehensive income for - - - (39) 72 37
the year
Total comprehensive income - - - (2,854) 72 (2,782)
for the year
Dividends - - (256) - (256)
Tax on Dividend - - - (53) - (53)
Transfer from General Reserve - (1,500) 1,500 - -
Transfer from Debenture (1.112) - 1,112
Redemption Reserve
Realised gains transferred to - - - 448 (448) -
Retained Earnings
Balance as at 31.03.2020 19,958 - 50,000 3,316 105 73,378
Profit for the year - - - 363 - 363
Other comprehensive income for - - - 32 80 112
the year
Total comprehensive income for - - - 395 80 475
the year
Dividends - - - (307) - (307)
Balance as at 31.03.2021 19,958 - 50,000 3,404 184 73,546
In terms of our report of even date attached herewith
For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 328952E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta Hemant Kaul
(Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director)
DIN 00097939 DIN 01666653 DIN 00551588

Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No: 413904 Vikash Dugar

(CFO)

Nitin Sharma
(Company Secretary)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26 June, 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Ashiana Housing Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

\We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements
of Ashiana Housing Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiaries and joint ventures (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries and joint ventures together referred
to as “the Group”), which comprises the consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31st March, 2021, the consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss(including Other Comprehensive Income]), Statement of Changes
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements.”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under
section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the
Group and its joint ventures as at March 31, 2021, and consolidated
loss(financial performance including other comprehensive income),
its consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India [ICAI') together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financialstatements as
a whale, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context

We have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report. \We have fulfilled
the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements section of our
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Revenue recognition (refer note 8.1 to the consolidated financial statements)

Key Audit Matter
Revenue from sale of residential units represents 81.10% of the
total revenue from operations of the Group.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of residential units to
customers for an amount that reflectsthe consideration which the
Group expects to receive in exchange for those units. The trigger
for revenue recognitionis normally upon satisfaction of performance
obligation and the control there of is transferred from the company
to the buyer upon possession or upon issuance of letter for offer of
possession (“deemed date of possession”).

Revenue recognition prior to completion of the project

Due to the Group’s projects being spread across different regions
within the country and the competitive business environment, there
is a risk that revenue could be overstated (for example, through
premature revenue recognition i.e.recording revenue without receipt
of approval from authoritiesor its intimation to the customers) or

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures on Revenue recognition included the following:

e Evaluating that the Group’s revenue recognition accounting
policies are in line with the applicable accounting standards
and their application to the key customer contracts including
consistent application;

¢ Sales cut-off procedures for determination of revenue in the
correct reporting period;

e Scrutinising all the revenue journal entries raised throughout
the reporting period and comparing details of a sample of these
journals, which met certain risk-based criteria, with relevant
underlying documentation;

* Conducting site visits during the year for selected projects to

understand the scope and nature of the projects and to assess
the progress of the projects; and
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Key Audit Matter

understated (for example, through improperly shifting revenues to
a later period) inorder to present consistent financial results. Since
revenue recognition has direct impact on the Group’s profitability, the
element of management bias is likely to be involved.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

» Considered the adequacy of the disclosures in note 2.25 to the
consalidated financial statements in respect of the judgments
taken in recognising revenue for residential units.

In addition, we have the performed the following procedures:

e Discussing and challenging key management judgmentsin
interpreting contractual terms including obtaining inhouse legal
interpretations;

* Testing sample sales of units for projects with the underlying
contracts, completion status and proceeds received from
customers; and

* Identified and tested operating effectiveness of keycontrols
around approvals of contracts, milestone billing, intimation
of possession letters / intimation of receipt of occupation
certificate and controls over collection from customers;

Deferred Tax Assets (refer note 3.7 to the consolidated financial statements)

Key Audit Matter
The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets represents 0.81% of
the Company’s total consolidated assets.

Recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets

The Group has deferred tax assets in respect of brought forward
losses and other temporary differences, as set out in note 3.7.

The recognition of deferred tax assets involves judgment regarding
the likelihood of the reasonable certainty of realisation of these
assets, in particular whether there will be taxable profits in future
periods that support recognition of these assets.

Management records deferred tax assets in respect of carried
forward business losses in cases where it is reasonably certain based
on the projected profitability determined on the basisof approved
business plans that sufficient taxable income will be available to
absorb the carried forward business loss.

Information other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures included:

e Through discussions with management, we understood the
Group’s process for recording deferred tax assets;

* We have obtained the approved business plans,projected
profitability statements for the existing projects and the future
projects which are confirmed through definitive agreements;

*  We have performed sensitivity analysis and inquired intothe basis
of the projections for the reasonable certainty of utilisation of the
brought forward business losses and therefore recognition of
deferred tax assets; and

* We tested the underlying data for the key deferred tax and tax
provision calculations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs (consolidated financial position), consolidated
profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive
income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows
of the Group including its Joint ventures in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind
AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of




the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
consolidated financial statements by the management of the holding
company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the group and its
joint venture entities are responsible for assessing the ability of the
group and its joint ventures to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
group and of its joint ventures are also responsible for overseeing
financial reporting process of the group and its joint ventures.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3](i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

¢  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ability of Group and its Joint venture to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the group and
its joint venture to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the group and its joint venture to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. \We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.
For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit carried out by them. We solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

\We communicate with those charged with governance of the holding
company and such other entities included in consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. \We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.



®
doshiena

you are in safe hands

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of joint venture firms.
The financial statements of these joint venture firms have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us
by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the joint ventures and our report in terms of
sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid joint ventures is based solely on the reports
of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified
in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial
statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and the reports of other
auditors;

(c) the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of

preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial
statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act;

(e) on the basis of written representations received from the
directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2021,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its
subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group
Companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2021, from

being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section (2] of
section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(f)  with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Group and the operating
effectiveness of such contrals, refer to our separate report
in “Annexure A”; and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16)] of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Holding Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the
Act

(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

The consolidated financial statements, to the extent

ascertainable, disclose the impact of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the
Group - Refer clause (d), (e), and (f] of Note 12 to the

consolidated financial statements;

i.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses
on long term contracts including derivative contracts
which would impact its financial position;

ii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company.

For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 328952E

Mahendra Jain
Place: New Delhi
Date: 26™ June, 2021

Partner
Membership No. 413904
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31st March, 2021

Particulars

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment Property
Intangible Assets

- Goodwill

- Other Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets under Development
Leased Assets

Financial Assets

- Investments

- Deposits with Banks

- Other Financial Assets
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Current assets

Inventories

Financial Assets

- Investment in Joint Ventures
- Investments Others

- Trade Receivables

- Cash and Cash Equivalents

- Other Bank Balances

- Other Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets [Net)

Other Current Assets

- Trade Advance and Deposits
- EWS/LIG units

- Others

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share capital

Other Equity

Equity attributable to owners of parent
Non-Controlling Interests
Total Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

- Borrowings

- Other Financial Liabilities
Non - Current Provisions
Other Non-Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

- Borrowings

- Trade Payables
Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
Dues of Creditors other than micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

- Other Financial Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities

- Advance from Customers

- Others

Current Provisions

Total Equity and Liabilities
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies
Accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date attached herewith

For VMSS & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 328952E Vishal Gupta

(Managing Director)
DIN 00097939

Mahendra Jain

Partner

Membership No: 4133904

Nitin Sharma

Tin Lakhs
Notes As at As at
31 March, 2021 31%* March, 2020
3.1 4,201 5414
3.2 3,971 6,183

3.3
3.3.1 0 0
3.3.2 79 57
34 - 33
3.5 1,530 1,352

3.6
38.1 4 4
38.2 2,204 3,216
38.3 625 470
3.7 1,087 1,025
13,702 17,755
4.1 74,081 61,984

4.2
421 3,127 3,694
422 5,475 2,892
423 2,712 3,199
424 10,126 7,465
425 5,243 1,827
426 5,202 5,531
4.3 557 380

44
441 8,265 7211
442 2,022 1,958
443 3,407 3,352
1,20,217 99,494
1,33,919 1,17,249

5
5.1 2,047 2,047
52 73,032 72,930
75,079 74,977
2 2
75,080 74,978

6.1
6.1.1 4,659 10,377
6.1.2 4,064 3,674
6.2 491 452
6.3 748 583
9,962 15,086

71
711 431 19

712

114 139
2,471 2,186
7.1.3 3,094 4,594

7.2
7.2.1 39,815 17,663
722 2,813 2,448
7.3 137 137
48,876 27,185
1,33,919 1,17,249

182
1 to 26
Varun Gupta Hemant Kaul

(Whole-time Director)
DIN 01666653

(Company Secretary]

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26* June, 2021

Vikash Dugar

(CFO)

(Independent Director)
DIN 00551588
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Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss

For the Year ended 31 March, 2021

¥in Lakhs
Particulars Notes 2020-21 2019-20
Income
Revenue from Operations 8.1 23,273 29,827
Income from Partnership 8.2 925 532
Other Income 8.3 1,733 1,373
Total Revenue 25,931 31,732
Expenses
Direct Costs:
Purchases 9.1 6,801 4,085
Project Expenses 9.2 16,631 14,148
Changes in Inventories 9.3 (9,798) 728
Hotel & Club Expenses 9.4 199 748
Real Estate Support Operations Expenses 9.5 3,151 3,122
16,985 22,831
Employee Benefits Expense 9.6 3,467 3,648
Selling Expenses 1,740 2,828
Finance Costs 9.7 901 1,356
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 9.8 889 915
Other Expenses 99 1,920 2,353
Total Expenses 25,901 33,931
Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional ltems and Tax 30 (2,200)
Less : Exceptional Item 9.10 - 1,739
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 30 (3,939)
Tax Expense: 10
Current Tax 14 396
Deferred Tax (156) (1,310)
(142) (915)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 172 (3.024)
Other Comprehensive Income
A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Change in fair value of equity instruments 260 244
- tax expense relating to above (75) (70)
- Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability 71 (61)
- tax expense relating to above (19) 16
B) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss -
Comprehensive income for the year 408 (2,896)
Less : Non-Controlling interests 0 (0)
Total comprehensive income for the year 408 (2,895)
Earnings per equity share
Basic & Diluted 11 0.40 (2.83)
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies 1&2
Accompanying notes to the financial statements 1to 26
In terms of our report of even date attached herewith
For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 328952E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta Hemant Kaul
(Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director)
DIN 00087939 DIN 01666653 DIN 00551588
Mahendra Jain
Partner _
Membership No: 413904 Nitin Sharma Vikash Dugar

(Company Secretary) (CFO)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26" June, 2021
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the Year ended 31st March, 2021

Tin Lakhs
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Net Profit/(loss) before tax and exceptional items 30 (2,200)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation 889 915
Interest Income (other than from customers) (421) (473)
Income from Investments (244) 417)
Irrecoverable Balances Written Off 40 53
Provision for Doubtful Debts 18 29
Liabilities Written Back (59) (102)
Interest Paid 1,358 1,703
Investment Property written off 15 -
Fixed Assets Written Off 43 28
Gain on modification/ termination of Right of use Lease Liability (26) -
Minority Interest 0 (0)
(Profit) / Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (699) 3
Provision for Employee Benefits (incl. remeasurement through OClI) 110 51
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 1,056 (410)
Adjusted for:
Trade Receivables 428 (1,003)
Other Financial Assets 174 (42)
Non Financial Assets (1,109) 1,330
EWS/LIG Units (B3) 245
Inventories (9,808) 506
Other Financial Liabilities (1,375) 968
Customer Advances 22,317 1,891
Non Financial Liabilities 366 285
Trade Payables 319 1,033
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 12,304 4,803
Direct Taxes paid / adjusted (191) (224)
Cash flow before exceptional items 12,113 4579
Exceptional ltems - (1,739)
Net cash from Operating activities (A) 12,113 2,840
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Fixed Assets (888) (802)
Sale of Fixed Assets 2,193 143
Net Purchase/ sale of Investments (745) 5,955
Interest Income 421 473
Other Income from Long Term Investments 244 417
Net Cash from investing activities (B) 1,224 6,386
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from long term and other borrowings (5,305) (4,177)
Payment of Lease Liabilities (291) (127)
Interest on Lease Liabilities (144) (154)
Interest Paid (1,214) (1,549)
Dividend paid (307) (308)
Change in Minority Interest (0) (0)
Net Cash used in Financing activities (C) (7,261) (6,316)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+ B+ C) 6,076 2,910
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 9,292 6,382
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 15,368 9,292
01. Proceeds from long term and other borrowings are shown net of repayment.
02. Cash and Cash equivalents includes other bank balances..
In terms of our report of even date attached herewith
For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 328952E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta Hemant Kaul
(Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director)
DIN 00097939 DIN 01666653 DIN 00551588
Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No: 413904 Nitin Sharma Vikash Dugar

(Company Secretary) (CFQ)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26" June, 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Equity share capital

Particulars

10,23,52,099 Equity shares of ¥ 2/- each fully paid up

Other Equity

Particulars

Balance as at 31.03.2019

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividends

Tax on Dividend

Transfer from General Reserve

Transfer from Debenture Redemption Reserve
Realised gains transferred to Retained Earnings
Balance as at 31.03.2020

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividends

Balance as at 31.03.2021

In terms of our report of even date attached herewith

For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 328952E

Tin Lakhs

Notes As at Changes during As at

31°* March, 2020 2020-2021 31 March, 2021

5.1 2,047 - 2,047

2,047 - 2,047
Tin Lakhs

Notes Reserves and Surplus Equity
Retained earnings Investment
> | el [NECENE R
52 Pic;umni‘:;s Redemption  General " the through other
Reserve Reserve Statement 4 )
of PSL comprehensive
income)

19,958 1,112 51,500 2,922 642 76,134
- - (3,024) - (3,024)
(45) 173 129
- - - (3,069) 173 (2,895)
(256) - (256)
- (53] (53)
- (1,500) 1,500 -
(1,112) - 1,112 - -
- - - 448 (448) -
19,958 - 50,000 2,605 367 72,930

172 - 172

51 185 236

223 185 408
- - - (307) - (307)

19,958 - 50,000 2,521 552 73,032

Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta Hemant Kaul
(Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director)
DIN 00097939 DIN 01666653 DIN 00551588

Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No: 413904

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26% June, 2021

Nitin Sharma
(Company Secretary)

Vikash Dugar
(CFO)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Ashiana Housing Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements
of Ashiana Housing Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and
Notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian
Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’] specified under section 133 of the
Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, and loss (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

\We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are

relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled
the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements section of our
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Revenue recognition (refer note 8.1 to the standalone financial statements)

Key Audit Matter

Revenue from sale of residential units represents 96.65% of the total
revenue from operations of the Company.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of residential units to
customers for an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those units. The trigger
for revenue recognition is normally upon satisfaction of performance
obligation and the control thereof is transferred from the company
to the buyer upon possession or upon issuance of letter for offer of
possession (“deemed date of possession”).

Revenue recognition prior to completion of the project

Due to the Company’s projects being spread across different regions
within the country and the competitive business environment, there
is a risk that revenue could be overstated (for example, through pre-
mature revenue recognition i.e. recording revenue without receipt of
approval from autharities or its intimation to the customers) or under-
stated (for example, through improperly shifting revenues to a later
period) in order to present consistent financial results. Since revenue
recognition has direct impact on the Company’s profitability, the ele-
ment of management bias is likely to be involved.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures on Revenue recognition included the following:

* Evaluating that the Company’s revenue recognition accounting
palicies are in line with the applicable accounting standards and
their application to the key customer contracts including con-
sistent application;

* Sales cut-off procedures for determination of revenue in the cor-
rect reporting period;

e Scrutinising all the revenue journal entries raised throughout
the reporting period and comparing details of a sample of these
journals, which met certain risk-based criteria, with relevant un-
derlying documentation;

* Conducting site visits during the year for selected projects to
understand the scope and nature of the projects and to assess
the progress of the projects; and

* Considered the adequacy of the disclosures in note 2.24 to the
standalone financial statements in respect of the judgments tak-
en in recognising revenue for residential units.
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Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In addition, we have the performed the following procedures:

* Discussing and challenging key management judgments in in-
terpreting contractual terms including obtaining inhouse legal
interpretations;

* Testing sample sales of units for projects with the underlying
contracts, completion status and proceeds received from cus-
tomers; and

* Identified and tested operating effectiveness of key controls
around approvals of contracts, milestone billing, intimation of
possession letters / intimation of receipt of occupation certif-
icate and controls over collection from customers;

Deferred Tax Assets (refer note 3.6 to the standalone financial statements)

Key Audit Matter

The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets represents 0.94% of
the Company’s total assets.

Recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets

The Company has deferred tax assets in respect of brought forward
losses and other temporary differences, as set out in note 3.6.

The recognition of deferred tax assets involves judgment regarding
the likelihood of the reasonable certainty of realisation of these assets,
in particular whether there will be taxable profits in future periods that
support recognition of these assets.

Management records deferred tax assets in respect of carried for-
ward business losses in cases where it is reasonably certain based on
the projected profitability determined on the basis of approved busi-
ness plans that sufficient taxable income will be available to absorb the
carried forward business loss.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures included:

* Through discussions with management, we understood the
Company’s process for recording deferred tax assets;

* We have obtained the approved business plans, projected prof-
itability statements for the existing projects and the future pro-
jects which are confirmed through definitive agreements;

*  We have performed sensitivity analysis and inquired into the ba-
sis of the projections for the reasonable certainty of utilisation of
the brought forward business losses and therefore recognition
of deferred tax assets; and

* We tested the underlying data for the key deferred tax and tax
provision calculations.

Information other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in section 134(5]) of the Act with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state

of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance
of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

*  (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3](i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
praobable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable

user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the
Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the
Order to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3] of the Act, we report that:

a)] We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income], Statement of
change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act;

e] On the basis of the written representations received from
the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and the



operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses
an unmadified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the

best of our information and according to the explanations given

to us:

The Company has, to the extent ascertainable, disclosed
the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer clause (d), (e), and (f) of
Note 12 to the financial statements;

The Company does not have any material foreseeable
losses on long term contracts including derivative contracts
which would impact its financial position;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required
to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the
best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Annual Report 2021-2022

(b) The management has represented, that, to the
best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c] Based on the audit procedures that have been
considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and [b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v. The Company has complied with section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect to declaration and
payment of dividend during the year.

(C) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16)
of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act

For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 328952E

Mahendra Jain
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 27™ May, 2022 Membership No. 413904
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022, we report that:

(il

(ii)

(a)

and Equipment.

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b])

According to the information and explanations given to us, all the assets have not been physically verified by the management during

the year but there is a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment to cover all the items of property,

plant and equipment in a phased manner, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature

of its property, plant and equipment. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were

noticed on such verification.

(]

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title

deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly

executed in favour of the lessee] are held in the name of the Company as at Balance sheet date, except the below property:

Gross carrying

Description of Held in the
value (Amount

property . name of
in Crores)

Office Space at 3.46 The Unit is held

Saket, New Delhi by Ashiana Hous-
ing Limited vide
agreement to
sell dated 11th

February, 2005

W

director or their rel-

Period held

hether Promoter, -
- indicate

Reason for not being
held in name of com-

k range, where
ative or employee i pany)
appropriate

No since 13th

January 2007

Due to pending dues,

of ground rent by the
Developer (Ridge View
Construction Pvt. Ltd.)
to Delhi Development
Authority, Delhi,
execution of conveyance
deed is taking time

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and intangible

assets during the year.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to
us, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or
are pending against the company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,

1988 (45 of 1988] and rules made thereunder.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to
us, the management has conducted physical verification
of inventory at various intervals during the year using
such procedures which, in our opinion, is reasonable and
appropriate having regard to the size of the company and
nature of its business. No material discrepancies were

noticed on such verification.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the company is not required to submit any
quarterly returns or statements to the Banks or financial

institutions.

(i) The company has made investments in the companies, firms,

Limited Liability Partnerships during the year under review.

(iv)

(vi)

(a) The company has not provided loans or provided advances
in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided

security to any other entity during the year under review.

(b) The investments made by the company is not prejudicial to
the company’s interest and the company has not provided
or given guarantees, security, loans and advances in the
nature of loans and guarantees except loans given to the
employees in the ordinary course of the business of the
company in accordance with its employee policies during
the year under review, hence reporting on sub clauses (c),

(d), (e), (f] of clause [iii) of the Order is not applicable;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of loans, investments, guarantees and securities made by the
company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits within
the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013
Act and the Companies [Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
(as amended].

As certified by a Cost Accountant, the company has maintained
cost records for the year under review, as prescribed under



sub-section (1) of Section 148 to the extent applicable to the

company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination

of such records.

(vii) (a)

According to the records of the company, the company is
generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Service

Tax, duty of customs, Cess and other material statutory

(b)
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dues, as applicable, and no such statutory dues were
outstanding as at the last day of the financial year under
review for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, there are no dues of income-tax, Goods and Service
Tax, duty of customs and cess, as applicable, which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute, except the
following:

Name of the Statute

Amount (Rs. in lacs)

Income Tax Act, 1961 40.13
Income Tax Act, 1961 60.37
Income Tax Act, 1961 48.92
Tamil Nadu VAT Act, 2006 21.61
Rajasthan Tax on Entry of Goods into 8.45
Local Area Act, 1999

Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax) 346.60
Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax) 24.85
Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax) 9.10
Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax) 317
Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax) 7.86
Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax) 575
GST Act, 2017 B61.55
GST Act, 2017 943
GST Act, 2017 7.18

Relating to the year Forum where dispute pending

2015-16 Commissioner (Appeals)

2016-17 Commissioner (Appeals)

2018-19  Central Processing Centre,
Income Tax

2015-16  Deputy Commissioner (Appeals)
Commercial Tax

2018-19  Appellate Authority

2016-17 & 2017-18
2016-17 & 2017-18
2015-16 to 2016-17

Audit Commissionerate
Asst. Commissioner
Commissioner (Appeal)

2017-18 Commissioner (Appeal)
2016-17 Commissioner (Appeal)
2014-15 to 2016-17 Commissioner (Appeal)
2017-18 Deputy/Asst. commissioner
2017-18  Deputy/Asst. commissioner
2017-18  Deputy/Asst. commissioner

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and

(ix]

on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,

there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded

income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income

during the year by the company in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act,1961.

(a)

(b)

(]

(d)

(f]

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to any lender, financial institution, bank,
government, or dues to debenture holder.

According to the information and explanations given to us,
the company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or any other lender.

On the basis of the examination of the books of accounts
of the Company and according to information and
explanations given to us, in our opinion, the term loans have
been applied for the purpose for which such loans were

obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, funds raised on short term basis have, prima
facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

The company has not taken any funds from any entity
or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

The company has not pledged securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies for any
loans raised during the year.

]

(a)

(b)

() (a)

(b)

(c]

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the company did not raise moneys
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year under review.

According to the information and explanations give to
us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during
the year under review.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, a fraud by an employee on the Company has been
discovered during the year under review, amount where of
involved is Rs. 4.08 crores (refer Note 20 to the financial
statements).

No report has been filed by us under sub-section (12) of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us,
no whistle-bower complaints have been received during the
year by the company.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations

given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence

reporting on clauses 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us

and based on our examination of the records of the Company,

transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act and the details of such



(xiv) (a)

(xvi) (8]
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transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us,
the company has an internal audit system, which in our
opinion, is commensurate with the size of the company and
the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audits reports for the
year under audit, issued to the Company in determining the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv] According to the information and explanations given to us and

based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of the examination of the records of
the company, the Company has not conducted any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.

(c) In our opinion, the company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us,
the Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group.

(xvii) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the

Company, the Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 4.44
Crores in the financial year under review, and company has
not incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial
year.

(xvii)There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors

during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(xviii) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xix) On the basis of overall examination of the financial ratios, ageing

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May, 2022

and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and according to the information and
explanations given to us, in our opinion, prima facie, no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report regarding
the company’s capability to meet its liabilities existing as on the
date of the balance sheet, as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. \We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations
given to us, there is no unspent amount towards company’s
Corporate Social Responsibility obligations in terms of Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence, reporting on
clauses 3(xx](a) and 3(xx](b) of the Order is not applicable.

For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 328952E

Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No. 413904
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial
reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Ashiana Housing Limited (‘the Company”) as of 31
March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial

Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI'. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10] of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3] provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 328952E

Mahendra Jain
Place: New Delhi
Date: 27th May, 2022

Partner
Membership No. 413904
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

R in lakhs])
Particul Not As at As at
artieuars oves 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3.1 3,970 4,146
Investment property 3.2 3,942 3,953
Intangible Assets 3.3 86 79
Leased Assets 34 1,137 1,372
Financial assets 3.5
- Investment in subsidiaries/ joint ventures 3.5.1 2,050 273
- Investments others 3.5.2 3 3
- Other financial assets 3.5.3 2,055 2,754
Deferred tax Assets (Net) 36 1,682 983
14,925 13,562
Current assets
Inventories 4.1 124,675 74,058
Financial assets 4.2
- Investment in subsidiaries / joint ventures 421 4,345 3,133
- Investments others 422 5,118 3,120
- Trade receivables 423 1,139 1,308
- Cash and cash equivalents 424 4,581 7179
- Other Bank Balances 425 4914 5,243
- Other financial assets 42.6 4,664 5,144
Current tax assets (Net) 4.3 736 473
Other current assets 44
- Trade advance and deposits 441 7,332 8,637
- EWS/LIG units 442 2,439 2,022
- Others 443 4,324 3,407
164,267 113,723
Total Assets 179,193 127,286
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 5.1 2,047 2,047
Other Equity 52 72,072 73,548
74,119 75,593
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 6.1
- Borrowings 6.1.1 15,588 4,659
- Lease Liabilities 911 1,047
- Other financial liabilities 6.1.2 200 202
Non - Current Provisions 6.2 608 349
17,307 6,257
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 7.1
- Borrowings 711 512 496
- Lease Liabilities 225 334
- Trade payables 7.1.2
a) Dues of micro and small enterprises 141 96
b) Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 2,250 2,176
- Other financial liabilities 7.1.3 2,435 2,337
Other current liabilities 7.2
- Advance from customers 7.2.1 81,537 39,315
- Others 722 499 548
Current Provisions 7.3 168 135
87,766 45,435
Total Equity and Liabilities 179,193 127,286
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies 182
Accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 1 to 26
In terms of our report of even date attached herewith
For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 328952E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta Hemant Kaul
(Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director)
DIN 00087938 DIN 01666653 DIN 00551588
Mahendra Jain
Partner —
Membership No: 413904 Nitin Sharma Vikash Dugar

(Company Secretary) (CFO)
Place: New Delhi
Date: 27" May 2022
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

(R in lakhs)
Particulars Notes 2021-22 2020-21
Income
Revenue from Operations 8.1 15,630 19,152
Income from Partnership 8.2 1,570 1,001
Other Income 8.3 993 1,558
Total Income 18,193 21,711
Expenses
Direct Costs:
Purchases 9.1 33,594 6,801
Project Expenses 92 26,316 16,631
Changes in Inventories 9.3 (49,177) (9,798)
Hotel & Club Expenses 94 375 241
11,108 13,876
Employee Benefits Expense 9.5 2,854 2,260
Selling Expenses 1,729 1,740
Finance Costs 9.6 467 890
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 9.7 767 852
Other Expenses 9.8 2,071 1,785
Total Expenses 18,996 21,402
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional item and tax (803) 308
Less : Exceptional ltem 9.9 408 -
Profit/(Loss) before tax (1,211) 308
Tax Expense: 10
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax (618) (559)
(618) (55)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (593) 363
Other comprehensive income
A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Changes in fair value of Equity Instruments 57 106
- Tax Expense relating to above 31 (27)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liabilities (200) 43
Tax Expense relating to above items 50 11)
B) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year (62) 112
Total comprehensive income for the year (655) 475
Earnings per equity share
Basic & Diluted 11 (0.64) 0.46
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies 182
Accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 1to 26
In terms of our report of even date attached herewith
For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 328952E Varun Gupta Hemant Kaul
[Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director)
DIN 00097939 DIN 01666653 DIN 00551588

Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No: 413904

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27th May 2022

Nitin Sharma
(Company Secretary)

Vikash Dugar
(CFO)
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

(R in lakhs)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax and exceptional items (803) 308
Adjusted for :
Depreciation 767 852
Interest Income (360) (250)
Income from Investments (248) (195)
Interest Paid 1,680 1,347
Irrecoverable Balances Written off 24 14
Liabilities Written Back (88) (58)
Provision for Employee Benefits 93 67
Investment Property written off - 15
Property, plant & equipment written off 51 43
Gain on madification/ termination of Right of use Lease Liability (7] (26)
(Profit) / Loss on sale of Property,plant & equipment 8 (699)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 1,117 1,419
Adjusted for:
Trade Receivables 145 4486
Other Financial Assets 1,179 212
Non Financial Assets (29) (1,261)
Inventories (50,617) (9,809)
Trade Payables 208 323
Other Financial Liabilities 97 (1,626)
Customer Advances 42,222 22,115
Non Financial Liabilities (49) 103
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (5,729) 11,922
Direct Taxes paid / adjusted (264) (143)
Cash flow before exceptional items (5,993) 11,779
Exceptional items (408) -
Net cash from Operating activities (A) (6,401) 11,779
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Property,plant & equipment (557) (884)
Sale of Property, plant & equipment 146 2,153
Net change in Investments (4,930) (383)
Interest Income 360 250
Other Income from Investments 248 185
Net Cash from Investing activities (B) (4,734) 1,331
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Net Proceeds from borrowings 10,944 (5,379)
Payment of Lease Liabilities (238]) (268])
Interest on Lease Liabilities (125) (138)
Interest Paid (1,555) (1,209)
Dividend paid (819) (307)
Net Cash from Financing activities (C) 8,208 (7,302)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+ B+ C) (2,927) 5,808
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 12,422 6,614
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 9,495 12,422

01. Proceeds from long term and other borrowings are shown net of repayment.
02. Cash and Cash equivalents includes other bank balances (Refer Note 4.2.4 & 4.2.5).

In terms of our report of even date attached herewith

For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 328952E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta
[Managing Director) (Whole-time Director)
DIN 00097939 DIN 01666653
Mahendra Jain
Partner B —
Membership No: 4133804 Nitin Sharma
(Company Secretary)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2022

(CFO)

Hemant Kaul
(Independent Director)
DIN 00551588

Vikash Dugar
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
Equity share capital

R in lakhs)
As at Changes As at Changes As at
Particulars Notes 31st March during2020-  31st March during 2021- 31st March
2020 2021 2021 2022 2022
10,23,52,099 Equity shares of ¥ 2/- each 5.1 2,047 - 2,047 - 2,047
fully paid up
2,047 - 2,047 - 2,047
Other Equity
R in lakhs)
Notes Reserves and Surplus Equity Investment
Retained Earnings Reserve (upon fair Total
Particulars Securities Surplus inthe  value through other
5.2 i General .
Premium statement of comprehensive
Reserve . .
Profit and Loss income)
Balance as at 31.03.2020 19,958 50,000 3,315 105 73,378
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - - 363 - 363
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 32 80 112
Dividends - - (307) - (307)
Realised gains transferred to Retained - - - -
Earnings
Balance as at 31.03.2021 19,958 50,000 3,404 184 73,546
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - - (593) - (593)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (149) 88 (62)
Dividends - - (819) - (819)
Realised gains transferred to Retained - - 1 m -
Earnings
Balance as at 31.03.2022 19,958 50,000 1,843 271 72,072
In terms of our report of even date attached herewith
For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 328952E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta Hemant Kaul
(Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director)
DIN 00097939 DIN 01666653 DIN 00551588
Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No: 413904 Nitin Sharma Vikash Dugar

(Company Secretary) (CFO)
Place: New Delhi
Date: 27% May 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Ashiana Housing Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements
of Ashiana Housing Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiaries and joint ventures (the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries and joint ventures together referred to as “the
Group”), which comprises the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st
March, 2022, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss(including
Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) specified under
section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the
Group and its joint ventures as at March 31, 2022, and consolidated
loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
its consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI') together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of maost significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report. Wehave fulfilled
the responsibilities described in the Auditor’sresponsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated Ind AS financialstatements section of our
report, including in relation to thesematters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performanceof procedures designed to respond to our
assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the mattersbelow,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Revenue recognition (refer note 8.1 to the consolidated financial statements)

Key Audit Matter

Revenue from sale of residential units represents 74.10% of the total
revenue from operations of the Group.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of residential units to
customers for an amount that reflectsthe consideration which the
Group expects to receive in exchange for those units. The trigger for
revenue recognition is normally upon satisfaction of performance obli-
gation and the control there of is transferred from the company to the
buyer upon possession or upon issuance of letter for offer of posses-
sion (“deemed date of possession”).

Revenue recognition prior to completion of the project

Due to the Group’s projects being spread across different regions
within the country and the competitive business environment, there
is a risk that revenue could be overstated (for example, through pre-
mature revenue recognition i.e. recording revenue without receipt of
approval from authorities or its intimation to the customers) or under-
stated (for example, through improperly shifting revenues to a later
period) in order to present consistent financial results. Since revenue
recognition has direct impact on the Group’s profitability, the element
of management bias is likely to be involved.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures on Revenue recognition included the following:

¢ Evaluating that the Group’s revenue recognition accounting pol-
icies are in line with the applicable accounting standards and
their application to the key customer contracts including con-
sistent application;

¢ Sales cut-off procedures for determination of revenue in the cor-
rect reporting period;

¢ Scrutinising all the revenue journal entries raised throughout
the reporting period and comparing details of a sample of these
journals, which met certain risk-based criteria, with relevant un-
derlying documentation;

* Conducting site visits during the year for selected projects to
understand the scope and nature of the projects and to assess
the progress of the projects; and

* Considered the adequacy of the disclosures in note 2.25 to the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the judgments
taken in recognising revenue for residential units.
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Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In addition, we have the performed the following procedures:

* Discussing and challenging key management judgmentsin in-
terpreting contractual terms including obtaining inhouse legal
interpretations;

* Testing sample sales of units for projects with the underlying
contracts, completion status and proceeds received from cus-
tomers; and

* Identified and tested operating effectiveness of key controls
around approvals of contracts, milestone billing, intimation of
possession letters / intimation of receipt of occupation certif-
icate and controls over collection from customers;

Deferred Tax Assets (refer note 3.6 to the consolidated financial statements)

Key Audit Matter

The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets represents 1.01% of
the Company’s total consolidated assets.

Recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets

The Group has deferred tax assets in respect of brought forward loss-
es and other temporary differences, as set out in note 3.6.

The recognition of deferred tax assets involves judgment regarding
the likelihood of the reasonable certainty ofrealisation of these assets,
in particular whether there will betaxable profits in future periods that
support recognition of these assets.

Management records deferred tax assets in respect of carried for-
ward business losses in cases where it is reasonably certainbased on
the projected profitability determined on the basis of approved busi-
ness plans that sufficient taxable income will be available to absorb the
carried forward business loss.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures included:

e Through discussions with management, we understood the
Group’s process for recording deferred tax assets;

* We have obtained the approved business plans,projected prof-
itability statements for the existing projectsand the future pro-
jects which are confirmed through definitive agreements;

* We have performed sensitivity analysis and inquired into the ba-
sis of the projections for the reasonable certainty of utilisation of
the brought forward business losses and therefore recognition
of deferred tax assets; and

* We tested the underlying data for the key deferred tax and tax
provision calculations.

Information other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5] of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and

fair view of the state of affairs (consolidated financial position),
consolidated profit or loss (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group including its Joint ventures
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting palicies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of consolidated financial statements

by the management of the holding company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the group and its
joint venture entities are responsible for assessing the ability of
the group and its joint ventures to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using



the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
group and of its joint ventures are also responsible for overseeing
financial reporting process of the group and its joint ventures.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3](i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the ability of Group and its Joint venture to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the group and its joint venture to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Annual Report 2021-2022

e (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the group and its joint venture to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.
For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit carried out by them. \We solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
praobable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i] planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and [ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the holding
company and such other entities included in consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of joint venture firms.
The financial statements of these joint venture firms have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us
by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the joint ventures and our report in terms of
sub-sections (3] and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid joint ventures is based solely on the reports
of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report
on Cther Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified
in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial
statements.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report
that:

a)] we have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and the reports of other
auditors;

c] the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial
statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act;

e) on the basis of written representations received from the
directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2022,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors
of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the
Group Companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2022,
from being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section
(2] of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013;

f)  with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Group and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure A”; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements, to the extent
ascertainable, disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer
clause (d), (e}, and (f] of Note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements;

i. ~ The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on
long term contracts including derivative contracts which
would impact its financial position;

ii. ~ There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required
to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company.

iv. (@) The management has represented that, to the
best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27% May, 2022

or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the
best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
orindirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been
considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v. The Company has complied with section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect to declaration and
payment of dividend during the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16)
of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Holding Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act

With respect to the the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi)
and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the
“Order”/”"CARQ") issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(ll) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report,
accordingly to the information and explanation given to us, and
based on the CARO reports issued by us for the company and
its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements
of the Company to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we
report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in
these CARO reports.

For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 328952E

Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No. 4133904
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Ashiana Housing Limited [“the Holding Company”)
and its subsidiaries and joint ventures as of 31 March 2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial

Controls

The Holding Company’s management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to group’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10] of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Group’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3] provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 328952E

Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No. 413904

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27% May, 2022
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CONSOLIDATED BALANGE SHEET

AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

R in lakhs])
. As at As at
Particulars Notes 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3.1 4,021 4,201
Investment property 3.2 3,942 3,971
Intangible assets 3.3
- Goodwill 3.3.1 0 0
- Otherintangible assets 3.3.2 86 79
Leased Assets 34 1,234 1,530
Financial assets 3.5
- Investments 3.5.1 2,326 4
- Other financial assets 3.5.2 2,177 2,829
Deferred tax Assets (Net) 36 1,889 1,087
15,676 13,702
Current assets
Inventories 4.1 124,700 74,081
Financial assets 4.2
- Investment in Joint ventures 421 4,339 3,127
- Investments others 4.2.2 7,162 5475
- Trade receivables 423 2,482 2,712
- Cash and cash equivalents 424 7,798 10,126
- Other Bank Balances 425 4914 5,243
- Other financial assets 426 4,709 5,202
Current tax assets (Net) 4.3 817 557
Other current assets 4.4
- Trade advance and deposits 441 7,037 8,265
- EWS/LIG units 442 2,439 2,022
- Others 443 4,324 3,407
170,719 120,217
Total Assets 186,394 133,919
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 5
Equity Share capital 5.1 2,047 2,047
Other Equity 52 71,557 73,032
Equity attributable to owners of parent 73,604 75,079
Non-Controlling Interests - 2
Total Equity 73,604 75,080
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 6.1
- Borrowings 6.1.1 15,588 4,659
- Lease Liabilities 951 1,152
- Other financial liabilities 6.1.2 3,142 2,913
Non - Current Provisions 6.2 694 491
Other non-current liabilities 6.3 729 748
21,105 9,962
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 7.1
- Borrowings 711 577 571
- Lease Liabilities 289 391
- Trade payables 712
a) Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 151 114
b) Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,585 2,471
- Other financial liabilities 713 2,815 2,563
Other current liabilities 7.2
- Advance from customers 7.2.1 82,030 39,815
- Others 722 3,063 2,813
Current Provisions 7.3 176 137
91,686 48,876
Total Equity and Liabilities 186,394 133,919
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies 182
Accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 1to 29
In terms of our report of even date attached herewith
For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 328952E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta Hemant Kaul
(Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director)
DIN 00087939 DIN 01666653 DIN 00551588
Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No: 413904 Nitin Sharma Vikash Dugar

(Company Secretary) (CFO)
Place: New Delhi
Date: 27th May 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

(% in lakhs)
Particulars Notes 2021-22 2020-21
Income
Revenue from Operations 8.1 20,385 23,273
Income from Partnership 8.2 1,789 925
Other Income 8.3 1,185 1,733
Total Income 23,359 25,931
Expenses
Direct Costs:
Purchases 9.1 33,594 6,801
Project Expenses 9.2 26,316 16,631
Changes in Inventories 9.3 (49,177) (9,798)
Hotel & Club Expenses 9.4 375 199
Real Estate Support Operations Expenses 9.5 3,565 3,151
14,674 16,985
Employee Benefits Expense 9.6 4137 3467
Selling Expenses 1,727 1,740
Finance Costs 9.7 488 901
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 9.8 838 889
Other Expenses 99 2,533 1,920
Total Expenses 24,397 25,901
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (1,038) 30
Less : Exceptional ltem 9.10 426 -
Profit/(Loss) before tax (1,463) 30
Tax Expense: 10
Current Tax - 14
Deferred Tax (759) (156)
(759) (142)
Profit for the year (704) 172
Other comprehensive income
A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Change in fair value of equity instruments 138 260
tax expense relating to above 14 (79)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (132) 71
tax expense relating to above 29 (19)
B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Comprehensive income for the year (655) 409
Add: Profit/ (loss) from Joint Venture m -
Less : Non-Controlling interests (0) 0
Total comprehensive income for the year (656) 408
Earnings per equity share
Basic & Diluted 11 (0.64) 0.40
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Palicies 182
Accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 1to29
In terms of our report of even date attached herewith
For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 328952E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta Hemant Kaul
[Managing Director) [Whole-time Director) (Independent Director)
DIN 00087939 DIN 01666653 DIN 00551588

Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No: 413904

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27th May 2022

Nitin Sharma
(Company Secretary)

Vikash Dugar
(CFO)



®
d sshiona

you are in safe hands

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

(% in lakhs)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Net Profit/(loss) before tax and exceptional items (1,037) 30
Adjusted for:
Depreciation 838 889
Interest Income (other than from customers) (515) (421)
Income from Investments (335) (244)
Irrecoverable Balances Written Off 53 40
Provision for Doubtful Debts 229 18
Liabilities Written Back (89) (59)
Interest Paid 1,701 1,358
Investment Property written off 24 15
Property, plant & equipment written off 51 43
Gain on modification/ termination of Right of use Lease Liability (7] (26)
Minority Interest (0) 0
(Profit) / Loss on sale of Property,plant & equipment 8 (699)
Provision for Employee Benefits (incl. remeasurement through OCI) 110 110
Profit/ (loss) from Joint Venture (1) -
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 1,028 1,056
Adjusted for :
Trade Receivables (51) 428
Other Financial Assets 1,146 174
Non Financial Assets 311 (1,109)
EWS/LIG Units (417) (B3)
Inventories (50,620) (9,808)
Other Financial Liabilities 481 (1,375)
Customer Advances 42,196 22,317
Non Financial Liabilities 250 366
Trade Payables 239 319
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (5,436) 12,304
Direct Taxes paid / adjusted (260) (191)
Cash flow before exceptional items (5,696) 12,113
Exceptional ltems (428) -
Net cash from Operating activities (A) (6,122) 12,113
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Property,plant & equipment (545) (888)
Sale of Property, plant & equipment 121 2,193
Net Purchase/ sale of Investments (5,083) (745)
Interest Income 515 421
Other Income from Long Term Investments 335 244
Net Cash from investing activities (B) (4,657) 1,224
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from long term and other borrowings 10,935 (5,305)
Payment of Lease Liabilities (295) (291)
Interest on Lease Liabilities (140) (144)
Interest Paid (1,562) (1.214)
Dividend paid (819) (307)
Change in Minority Interest 2 (0)
Net Cash used in Financing activities (C) 8,122 (7,261)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+ B+ C) (2,657) 6,076
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 15,368 9,292
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 12,711 15,368

01. Proceeds from long term and other borrowings are shown net of repayment.
02. Cash and Cash equivalents includes other bank balances (Refer Note 4.2.4 & 4.2.5).

In terms of our report of even date attached herewith

For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 328952E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta
[Managing Director) (Whole-time Director)
DIN 00097939 DIN 01666653
Mahendra Jain
Partner
Membership No: 413904 Nitin Sharma
(Company Secretary)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27th May 2022

(CFO)

Hemant Kaul
(Independent Director)
DIN 00551588

Vikash Dugar
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
Equity share capital

R in lakhs)
. As at Changes As at
. As at 31st  Changes during ~
Particulars Notes 31st March during 31st March
March 2020 2020-2021
2021 2021-2022 2022
10,23,52,099 Equity shares of X 2/- 5.1 2,047 - 2,047 - 2,047
each fully paid up
2,047 - 2,047 - 2,047
Other Equity
R in lakhs)
Notes Reserves and Surplus Equity Investment
. Retained Earnings Reserve {upon fair Total
. Securities
Particulars . § value through other
5.2 Premium General Retained i
. comprehensive
Reserve Reserve Earnings i
income)
Balance as at 31.03.2020 19,958 50,000 2,605 367 72,930
Praofit/ (Loss) for the year - - 172 - 172
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 51 185 236
Dividends - - (307) - (307)
Realised gains transferred to Retained Earnings - - - - -
Balance as at 31.03.2021 19,958 50,000 2,521 552 73,032
Profit/(Loss]) for the year - - (708) - (705)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (103) 152 50
Dividends - - (819) - (819)
Realised gains transferred to Retained Earnings - - 1 m -
Balance as at 31.03.2022 19,958 50,000 896 704 71,557
In terms of our report of even date attached herewith
For VMSS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 328952E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta Hemant Kaul
(Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director)
DIN 00097939 DIN 01666653 DIN 00551588
Mahendra Jain
Partner -
Membership No: 413904 Nitin Sharma Vikash Dugar
(Company Secretary) (CFO)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27th May 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Ashiana Housing Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements
of Ashiana Housing Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and
Notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 [‘Act’] in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the
Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, and profit (financial performance including other
comprehensive income]), its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

\We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs]) specified under section 143(10]) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are

relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled
the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements section of our
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance

of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Revenue recognition (refer note 8.1 to the standalone financial statements)

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue from sale of residential units represents 96.65%
of the total revenue from operations of the Company.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of
residential units to customers for an amount that reflects
the consideration which the Company expects to receive
in exchange for those units. The trigger for revenue
recognition is normally upon satisfaction of performance
obligation and the contral thereof is transferred from
the company to the buyer upon possession or upon
issuance of letter for offer of possession (“deemed date
of possession”).

Revenue recognition prior to completion of the project
Due to the Company’'s projects being spread across
different regions within the country and the competitive
business environment, there is a risk that revenue could
be overstated (for example, through premature revenue

Our audit procedures on Revenue recognition included the following:

* Evaluating that the Company’s revenue recognition accounting policies are in
line with the applicable accounting standards and their application to the key
customer contracts including consistent application;

* Sales cut-off procedures for determination of revenue in the correct reporting
period;

e Scrutinising all the revenue journal entries raised throughout the reporting
period and comparing details of a sample of these journals, which met certain
risk-based criteria, with relevant underlying documentation;

* Conducting site visits during the year for selected projects to understand the
scope and nature of the projects and to assess the progress of the projects;
and

» Considered the adequacy of the disclosures in note 2.24 to the standalone
financial statements in respect of the judgments taken in recognising revenue
for residential units.



Financial Statements
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Standalone Financial Statements

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

recognition i.e. recording revenue without receipt
of approval from authorities or its intimation to the .
customers) or understated (for example, through
improperly shifting revenues to a later period] in order
to present consistent financial results. Since revenue
recognition has direct impact on the Company's
profitability, the element of management bias is likely to

be involved.

In addition, we have the performed the following procedures:

Discussing and challenging key management judgments in interpreting
contractual terms including obtaining inhouse legal interpretations;

* Testing sample sales of units for projects with the underlying contracts,
completion status and proceeds received from customers; and

* |dentified and tested operating effectiveness of key controls around approvals
of contracts, milestone billing, intimation of possession letters / intimation of

receipt of occupation certificate and controls over collection from customers;

Information other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs (financial position), profit orloss (financial performance including
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contraol.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3](i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
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Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

¢  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies [Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the
Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section [11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the
Order to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3] of the Act, we report that:

a)] We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

(B]

c] The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of
change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from
the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

i. ~ The Company has, to the extent ascertainable, disclosed
the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer clause (d), (e), and (f] of
Note 12 to the financial statements;

i. ~ The Company does not have any material foreseeable losses
on long term contracts including derivative contracts which
would impact its financial position;

ii. there has been a delay of 3 days in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) The management has represented that, to the best of
its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds] by the company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (‘Intermediaries”),

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing

or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of

the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best
of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or



Vi.

(c]

otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have been
considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our natice that
has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

The Company has complied with section 123 of the

Companies Act, 2013 in respect to declaration and

payment of dividend during the year.

As Proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014 is applicable for the company w.ef. April, 2023,

reporting under this clause is not applicable.

Financial Statements a
Standalone Financial Statements 1

(C) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16)
of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act

For B.CHHAWCHHARIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 305123E

Abhishek Gupta

Partner

Membership No. 529082

UDIN- 23529082BGVOMQA3044

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30th May, 2023
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of the Company on the standalone financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2023, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing
full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing
full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given
to us, all the assets have not been physically verified by
the management during the year but there is a regular
program of physical verification of its property, plant and

equipment to cover all the items of property, plant and
equipment in a phased manner, which in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its property, plant and equipment. According
to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were naticed on such verification.

(e] According to the information and explanations given to us
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties
(other than properties where the company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee] are held in the name of the Company as at Balance
sheet date, except the below property:

Gross Whether Period held
Description of carrying value Held in the Promoter, director - indicate Reason for not being held in name of
property (Amount in name of or their relative or  range, where company)
Crores) employee appropriate
Office Space 3.46 Ridge View No since 13th Due to pending dues, of ground
at Saket, New Construction January rent by the Developer (Ridge View
Delhi Pvt. Ltd. 2007 Construction Pvt. Ltd) to Delhi

Development Authority, Delhi, execution
of conveyance deed is pending

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and intangible
assets during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to
us, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or
are pending against the company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988] and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) According to the information and explanations given to
us, the management has conducted physical verification
of inventory at various intervals during the year using
such procedures which, in our opinion, is reasonable and
appropriate having regard to the size of the company and
nature of its business. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the company is not required to submit any
guarterly returns or statements to the Banks or financial
institutions.

(i) The company has made investments in the companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships during the year under review.

(a) The company has not provided loans or provided advances
in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided
security to any other entity during the year under review.

(iv)

U

(vi)

(vii)

(b) The investments made by the company is not prejudicial to
the company’s interest and the company has not provided
or given guarantees, security, loans and advances in the
nature of loans and guarantees except loans given to the
employees in the ordinary course of the business of the
company in accordance with its employee policies during
the year under review, hence reporting on sub clauses [c),
(d), (e), (f] of clause [iii) of the Order is not applicable;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of loans, investments, guarantees and securities made by the
company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits within
the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
(as amended).

As certified by a Cost Accountant, the company has maintained
cost records for the year under review, as prescribed under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 to the extent applicable to the
company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination
of such records.

(a) According to the records of the company, the company is
generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,



employees’ state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Service
Tax, duty of customs, Cess and other material statutory
dues, as applicable, and no such statutory dues were
outstanding as at the last day of the financial year under
review for a period of maore than six months from the date
they became payable.

Financial Statements
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to
us, there are no dues of income-tax, Goods and Service
Tax, duty of customs and cess, as applicable, which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute, except the

following:

Name of the Statute Am;ull:;(:] Relating to the year Forum where dispute pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 48.92 2018-19 Central Processing Centre, Income Tax

Tamil Nadu VAT Act, 2006 21.61 201516 Deputy Commissioner (Appeals)

Commercial Tax

Rajasthan Value Added Tax Act, 2003 8.45 2018-189 Appellate Authority

Rajasthan Value Added Tax Act, 2003 8.50 2019-20 Appellate Authority

Rajasthan Value Added Tax Act, 2003 1.02 2020-21 Appellate Authority

Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax) 346.60 2016-17 & 2017-18 Deputy/ Asst. comminsioner

Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax) 9.10 2015-16 to 2016-2017 Commissioner [Appeal)

Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax) 317 2017-2018 Commissioner [Appeal)

Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax) 764 2016-17 CESTAT

Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax) 575 2014-15to 2016-17 Commissioner [Appeal)

GST Act, 2017 158.91 SCN- Tran1 (30.06.2017) Deputy/ Asst. commissioner

GST Act, 2017 64.57 SCN- Tran1 (30.06.2017)/ Writ to be filed on 17.04.2023 againt
00 30.12.22 order

GST Act, 2017 943 SCN- Tran1 (30.06.2017) Commissioner [Appeal)

GST Act, 2017 7.18 SCN- Tran1 (30.06.2017) Deputy/ Asst. commissioner

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and

(ix]

on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded
income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year by the company in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act,1961.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to any lender, financial institution, bank,

government, or dues to debenture holder.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us,
the company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any

bank or financial institution or any other lender.

(c] On the basis of the examination of the books of accounts of
the Company and according to information and explanations
given to us, in our opinion, the term loans have been applied

for the purpose for which such loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the

Company, funds raised on short term basis have, prima
facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity
or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its

subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f] The company has not pledged securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies for any

loans raised during the year.

(a)

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the company did not raise moneys

(xi)

(i)

(i)

(xiv)

by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year under review..

(b) According to the information and explanations give to
us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible] during

the year under review.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has

been noticed during the year .

(b]

No report has been filed by us under sub-section [12) of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(c] According to the information and explanations given to us,
no whistle-bower complaints have been received during the

year by the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence
reporting on clauses 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act and the details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us,
the company has an internal audit system, which in our
opinion, is commensurate with the size of the company and
the nature of its business.
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(b) We have considered, the internal audits reports for the year
under audit, issued to the Company in determining the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

[xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him.

(xvi) (@) Inour opinion, the Company is not required to be registered

under section 45-A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us
and on the basis of the examination of the records of the
company, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities.

(c] In our opinion, the company is not a Core Investment
Company [CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us,
the Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group.

(xvii) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, company has not incurred cash losses during the year
under review, however company has incurred cash losses of ¥
4.44 Crores in the immediately preceding financial year.

[xvii)There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors
during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(xviii] of the
Order is not applicable.

(xix) On the basis of overall examination of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment

of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and according to the information and
explanations given to us, in our opinion, prima facie, no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report regarding
the company’s capability to meet its liabilities existing as on the
date of the balance sheet, as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to information and explanations
given to us, there is no unspent amount towards company’s
Corporate Social Responsibility obligations in terms of Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence, reporting on
clauses 3(xx](a) and 3(xx](b) of the Order is not applicable.

For B.CHHAWCHHARIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 305123E

Abhishek Gupta

Partner

Membership No. 529082

UDIN- 23529082BGVOMQA3044

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30th May, 2023
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial
reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of Ashiana Housing Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial

Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
[ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10]) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B.CHHAWCHHARIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 305123E
Abhishek Gupta

Partner

Membership No. 529082

UDIN- 23529082BGVOMQA3044

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30th May, 2023
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Standalone Balance Sheet

AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

Particulars

Notes As at
31st March 2023

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Investment property
Intangible Assets

Leased Assets

Financial assets

- Investment in subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures
- Investments others

- Other financial assets
Deferred tax Assets (Net)

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets

- Investment in subsidiaries / joint ventures
- Investments others

- Trade receivables

- Cash and cash equivalents
- Other Bank Balances

- Other financial assets
Current tax assets (Net)

Other current assets

- Trade advance and deposits
-  EWS/LIG units

- Others

Non-Current assets held for sale

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share capital
Other Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings

- Lease Liabilities

- Other financial liabilities
Non - Current Provisions

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

- Borrowings

- Lease Liabilities

- Trade payables

a) Dues of micro and small enterprises
b) Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
- Other financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

- Advance from customers

- Others

Current Provisions

Total Equity and Liabilities
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies
Accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

4.1
4.2
3.6.1
36.2
421
422
423
36.3
4.3

441
442
443

4.5

5.1
5.2

6.1
6.1.1

6.1.2
6.2

71
6.1.1

711

6.1.2
7.2
7.2.1
722
6.2

182

1to25

R in lakhs)

As at
31st March 2022

4,532.43 3,970.13
262.77 -
2,457.67 3,941.77
55.68 86.21
234.13 1,137.02
45.93 2,049.90

3.24 3.20
2,177.74 2,054.87
1,758.68 1,682.03
11,528.27 14,925.12
152,865.89 124,674.94
3,405.70 4,344.65
4,575.83 5,118.32
2,132.75 1,138.94
7,185.24 4,581.50
4,085.72 4,913.56
4412.52 4,664.22
808.60 736.23
8,958.80 7,331.89
1,786.41 2,439.18
7.952.95 4,324.04
198,170.40 164,267.46
2,317.24 -
2,317.24 -
212,015.90 179,192.57
2,047.04 2,047.04
74,342.21 72,072.43
76,389.25 74,119.47
16,512.77 15,588.01
53.80 910.93
198.32 200.07
766.16 607.91
17,531.05 17,306.93
1,691.73 51168
94.24 225.30
602.31 140.74
2,985.98 2,250.28
4,555.19 2,434.91
107,139.11 81,536.51
888.54 488.57
138.51 168.18
118,095.60 87,766.17
212,015.90 179,192.57

In terms of our report of even date attached herewith

For B Chhawchharia & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 305123E Vishal Gupta
(Managing Director)

Abhishek Gupta DIN 00097939
Partner

Membership No: 529082

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30" May, 2023

Varun Gupta
[Whole-time Director)
DIN 01666653

(Company Secretary)

Vikash Dugar

(CFO)

Sonal Mattoo
(Independent Director)
DIN 00106795
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Standalone Statement of Profit & LoOsS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

Particulars Notes
Income
Revenue from Operations 8.1
Income from Partnership 8.2
Other Income 8.3
Total Income
Expenses
Direct Costs:
Purchases 9.1
Project Expenses 9.2
Changes in Inventories 9.3
Hotel & Club Expenses 94
Employee Benefits Expense 9.5
Selling Expenses
Finance Costs 96
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 9.7
Other Expenses 9.8
Total Expenses
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional item and tax
Less : Exceptional ltem 9.9
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Tax Expense: 10
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
A) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Changes in fair value of Equity Instruments
- Tax Expense relating to above
- Remeasurement of net defined benefit liabilities
- Tax Expense relating to above items
B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share
Basic & Diluted
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Paolicies 1&2
Accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 1to25

R in lakhs)

31st March 2023 31st March 2022
33,989.56 15,629.66
1,061.91 1,570.17
1,448.03 993.41
36,499.49 18,193.24
13,586.46 33,593.93
37,860.10 26,316.07
(27,936.46) (49,177.10)
555.31 375.27
24,065.41 11,108.18
3,805.11 2,853.77
1,773.03 1,728.92
295.63 466.75
768.03 766.96
2,556.58 2,071.49
33,263.80 18,996.07
3,235.69 (802.83)
- 408.21
3,235.69 (1,211.04)
606.25 -
(76.30) (617.91)
529.96 (617.91)
2,705.73 (593.13)
75.14 56.56
043 31.13

0.31 (199.58)
(0.08) 50.23
75.81 (61.65)
2,781.54 (654.78)
2.72 (0.64)

In terms of our report of even date attached herewith

For B Chhawchharia & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 305123E Vishal Gupta
(Managing Director)
DIN 00087939

Abhishek Gupta
Partner
Membership No: 529082

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30" May, 2023

Nitin Sharma
(Company Secretary)

Varun Gupta

(Whole-time Director)

DIN 01666653

Vikash Dugar

(CFQ)

Sonal Mattoo

(Independent Director)
DIN 001087395
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023
R in lakhs)

i As at As at
Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax and exceptional items 3,235.69 (802.83)
Adjusted for :
Depreciation 768.03 766.96
Interest Income (369.57) (359.57)
Income from Investments (429.39) (248.28)
Interest Paid 2,753.51 1,679.66
Irrecoverable Balances Written off 2.35 24.07
Liabilities Written Back (35.20) (87.82)
Provision for Employee Benefits 128.88 93.05
Loss on sale of Investment Property 41.69 -
Fixed Assets written off 2.31 50.75
Gain on modification/ termination of Right of use Lease Liability (96.12) (7.30)
Provision for doubtful debts 7.84 -
(Profit) / Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (0.32) 7.99
Income from Partnership (1,061.91) (1,570.17)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 4,947.79 (453.49)
Adjusted for:
Trade Receivables (1,004.00) 144.91
Other Financial Assets 276.70 50044
Other Assets (4,603.04) (29.15)
Inventories (28,190.95) (50,616.89)
Trade Payables 1,232.48 207.6e2
Other Financial Liabilities 2,118.52 96.55
Customer Advances 25,602.59 42,221.69
Other Liabilities 389.97 (49.27)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 770.06 (7,977.59)
Direct Taxes paid / adjusted (678.63) (263.66)
Cash flow before exceptional items 91.43 (8,241.25)
Exceptional items - (408.21)
Net cash from Operating activities (A) 91.43 (8,649.46)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Fixed Assets (2,076.10) (557.22)
Sale of Fixed Assets 291.79 146.19
Net change in Investments 3,970.55 (2,682.08)
Interest Income 3698.57 359.57
Other Income from Investments 429.39 248.28
Net Cash from investing activities (B) 2,985.18 (2,485.27)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Net Proceeds from borrowings 2,104.81 10,944.19
Payment of Lease Liabilities (140.25) (237.87)
Interest on Lease Liabilities (55.86) (124.78)
Interest Paid (2,.697.65) (1,554.88)
Dividend paid (511.76) (818.83)
Net Cash from Financing activities (C) (1,300.71) 8,207.83
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+ B+ C) 1,775.90 (2,926.89)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 9,495.05 12,421.94
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 11,270.96 9,495.05

01. Proceeds from long term and other borrowings are shown net of repayment.
02. Cash and Cash equivalents includes other bank balances.

In terms of our report of even date attached herewith

For B Chhawchharia & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 305123E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta Sonal Mattoo
(Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director)

Abhishek Gupta DIN 00087939 DIN 01666653 DIN 00108785

Partner

Membership No: 529082 Nitin Sharma Vikash Dugar

Place: New Delhi (Company Secretary) (CFO)

Date: 30™ May, 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Ashiana Housing Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements
of Ashiana Housing Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company”] and its subsidiaries and joint ventures (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries and joint ventures together referred
to as “the Group”), which comprises the consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31st March, 2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 [‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS’) specified under
section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the
Group and its joint ventures as at March 31, 2023, and consolidated
profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
its consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI') together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. \We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled
the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements section of our
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Revenue recognition (refer note 8.1 to the consolidated financial statements)

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue from sale of residential units represents 82.80%
of the total revenue from operations of the Group.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of
residential units to customers for an amount that reflects
the consideration which the Group expects to receive
in exchange for those units. The trigger for revenue
recognition is normally upon satisfaction of performance
obligation and the control there of is transferred from
the company to the buyer upon possession or upon
issuance of letter for offer of possession (“deemed date
of possession”).

Revenue recognition prior to completion of the project

Due to the Group’s projects being spread across
different regions within the country and the competitive
business environment, there is a risk that revenue could

Our audit procedures on Revenue recognition included the following:

* Evaluating that the Group’s revenue recognition accounting policies are in
line with the applicable accounting standards and their application to the key
customer contracts including consistent application;

»  Sales cut-off procedures for determination of revenue in the correct reporting
period;

* Scrutinising all the revenue journal entries raised throughout the reporting
period and comparing details of a sample of these journals, which met certain
risk-based criteria, with relevant underlying documentation.

*  Conducting site visits during the year for selected projects to understand the
scope and nature of the projects and to assess the progress of the projects;
and

* Considered the adequacy of the disclosures in note 2.25 to the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the judgments taken in recognising revenue
for residential units.
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Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

be overstated (for example, through premature
revenue recognition i.e. recording revenue without .
receipt of approval from authorities or its intimation to
the customers) or understated (for example, through
improperly shifting revenues to a later period) in order
to present consistent financial results. Since revenue
recognition has direct impact on the Group’s profitability,

the element of management bias is likely to be involved.

In addition, we have the performed the following procedures:

Discussing and challenging key management judgments in interpreting
contractual terms including obtaining inhouse legal interpretations;

* Testing sample sales of units for projects with the underlying contracts,
completion status and proceeds received from customers; and

* Identified and tested operating effectiveness of key controls around approvals
of contracts, milestone billing, intimation of possession letters / intimation of

receipt of occupation certificate and controls over collection from customers;

Information other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs (consolidated financial position), consolidated
profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive
income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows
of the Group including its Joint ventures in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind
AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and otherirregularities;
selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
consolidated financial statements by the management of the holding
company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the group and its
joint venture entities are responsible for assessing the ability of the
group and its joint ventures to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
group and of its joint ventures are also responsible for overseeing
financial reporting process of the group and its joint ventures.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3](i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.



e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

¢  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
ability of Group and its Joint venture to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the group and
its joint venture to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

¢ (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the group and its joint venture to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.
For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit carried out by them. We solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the holding
company and such other entities included in consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
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significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. \We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
A.  As required by Section 143 (3] of the Act, we report that:

a)] we have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and the reports of other
auditors;

Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash

c) the Consolidated Balance

Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial
statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act;

e] on the basis of written representations received from the
directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2023,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors
of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the
Group Companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2023,
from being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section
(2] of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013;

f)  with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Group and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure A”; and

B. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements, to the extent
ascertainable, disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer
clause (d], (e), and (f]) of Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements;

i. ~ The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on
long term contracts including derivative contracts which
would impact its financial position;
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there has been a delay of 3 days in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of
its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the
best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party [“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c] Based on the audit procedures that have been
considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v. The Company has complied with section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect to declaration and
payment of dividend during the year.

vi. As Proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies [Accounts] Rules,
2014 is applicable for the company w.ef. April, 2023,
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16)
of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Holding Company to its directors during the yearis in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4
of the Companies [Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/
“CARQ"] issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’'s report,
according to the information and explanations given to us, and
based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and
its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements
of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable,
we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in
these CARO reports.

For B.CHHAWCHHARIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 305123E

Abhishek Gupta

Partner

Membership No. 529082

UDIN- 23529082BGV0OM02702

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30th May, 2023
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Ashiana Housing Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its
subsidiaries and joint ventures as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction
with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial

Controls

The Holding Company’s management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
[ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to group’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10]) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Group’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B.CHHAWCHHARIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 305123E
Abhishek Gupta

Partner

Membership No. 529082

UDIN- 23529082BGVOM0O2702

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30th May, 2023
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

R in lakhs)
Particulars Notes As at Rl
eu 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3.1 4,599.61 4,021.38
Capital work-in-progress 3.2 262.77 -
Investment property 3.3 2,457.67 3,941.77
Intangible assets 34
- Goodwill 341 0.01 0.01
- Other Intangible Assets 34.2 65.18 86.27
Leased Assets 3.5 269.82 1,233.89
Financial assets 3.6
- Investment Others 36.1 364 2,325.09
- Investment in Joint ventures 36.2 - 1.01
- Other financial assets 36.3 2,299.75 2,176.71
Deferred tax Assets (Net) 3.7 1,914.45 1,889.42
11,872.89 15,675.56
Current assets
Inventories 4.1 152,892.66 124,700.13
Financial assets 36842
- Investment Others 36.1 6,717.88 7,161.87
- Investment in Joint ventures 36.2 3,400.11 4,338.53
- Trade receivables 421 3,303.23 2,481.70
- Cash and cash equivalents 422 11,540.24 7,797.67
- Other Bank Balances 423 4,085.72 4,913.56
- Other financial assets 36.3 4,548.68 4,708.53
Current tax assets (Net) 4.3 794.95 816.69
Other current assets 44
- Trade advance and deposits 441 8,795.88 7,036.86
-  EWS/LIG units 442 1,786.41 2,439.18
- Others 443 7,952.95 4,324.04
205,818.70 170,718.74
Non-Current assets held for sale 45 2,317.24 -
2,317.24 -
Total Assets 220,008.84 186,394.29
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 5.1 2,047.04 2,047.04
Other Equity 52 73,922.94 71,557.02
Equity attributable to owners of parent 75,969.99 73,604.06
Non-Controlling Interests - -
Total Equity 75,969.99 73,604.06
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 6.1
- Borrowings 6.1.1 16,512.77 15,588.01
- Lease Liabilities 53.80 951.43
- Other financial liabilities 6.1.2 3,358.14 3,142.05
Non - Current Provisions 6.2 881.81 694.34
Other non-current liabilities 6.3 1,197.66 728.76
22,004.18 21,104.60
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 6.1&7.1
- Borrowings 6.1.1 1,691.73 577.30
- Lease Liabilities 134.74 288.99
- Trade payables 711
- Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 608.23 150.94
- Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,123.13 2,5685.05
- Other financial liabilities 6.1.2 4,868.74 2,814.97
Other current liabilities
- Advance from customers 6.3 107,666.36 82,029.72
- Others 6.3 3,795.96 3,063.13
Current Provisions 6.2 145.78 175.54
122,034.67 91,685.62
Total Equity and Liabilities 220,008.84 186,394.29
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies 1&2
Accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 1to27

In terms of our report of even date attached herewith

For B Chhawchharia & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 305123E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta Sonal Mattoo
(Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director)

Abhishek Gupta DIN 00097939 DIN 01666653 DIN 00106785

Partner

Membership No: 529082 Nitin Sharma Vikash Dugar

Place: New Delhi [Company Secretary) (CFO)

Date: 30" May, 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

Particulars Notes
Income
Revenue from Operations 8.1
Income from Partnership 8.2
Other Income 8.3
Total Income
Expenses
Direct Costs:
Purchases 9.1
Project Expenses 9.2
Changes in Inventories 9.3
Hotel & Club Expenses 94
Real Estate Support Operations Expenses 9.5
Employee Benefits Expense 96
Selling Expenses
Finance Costs 9.7
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 9.8
Other Expenses 9.9
Total Expenses
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax
Less : Exceptional ltem 9.10
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Tax Expense: 10
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Change in fair value of equity instruments
- tax expense relating to above
- Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability
- tax expense relating to above
B] Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Comprehensive income for the year
Add: Profit/ (loss) from Joint Venture
Less : Non-Controlling interests
Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share
Basic & Diluted 11
Corporate Information & Significant Accounting Policies 18&2
Accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 1to27

R in lakhs)

31st March 2023 31st March 2022
39,960.74 20,385.26
775.79 1,788.71
1,782.13 1,185.12
42,518.66 23,359.09
13,586.46 33,593.93
37,860.10 26,316.07
(27,936.46) (49,177.10)
555.31 375.27
3,968.84 3,565.35
28,034.25 14,673.53
5,175.67 4,136.51
1,757.97 1,727.49
304.23 488.38
841.49 837.58
2,972.78 2,533.03
39,086.40 24,396.52
3,432.26 (1,037.42)

- 425.90
3,432.26 (1,463.33)
684.05 -
(39.54) (759.07)
644.50 (759.07)
2,787.76 (704.25)
112.04 138.28
(17.77) 13.96
(5.17) (131.58)
1.84 29.02
2,878.69 (654.58)
(1.01) (1.49)

- (0.39)
2,877.68 (655.68)
2.81 (0.64)

In terms of our report of even date attached herewith

For B Chhawchharia & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 305123E

Abhishek Gupta
Partner
Membership No: 529082

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30* May, 2023

Vishal Gupta
(Managing Director)
DIN 00097939

Nitin Sharma
(Company Secretary)

Varun Gupta

(Whole-time Director)

DIN 01666653

Vikash Dugar

(CFO)

Sonal Mattoo

(Independent Director)
DIN 00108795
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023
R in lakhs)

i As at As at
Particulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Profit/(loss) before tax and exceptional items 3,432.26 (1,037.42)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation 841.49 837.58
Interest Income (other than from customers) (485.37) (458.87)
Income from Investments (590.54) (334.93)
Irrecoverable Balances Written Off 22.71 53.25
Provision for Doubtful Debts 64.90 228.88
Liabilities Written Back (44.35) (88.92)
Interest Paid 2,762.11 1,701.30
Investment Property written off - 24.07
Property, plant & equipment written off 2.31 50.75
Gain on madification/ termination of Right of use Lease Liability (96.12) (7.30)
Minority Interest - (0.39)
Loss on Sale of Investment Property 41.69 -
(Profit) / Loss on sale of Property,plant & equipment (0.32) 7.99
Provision for Employee Benefits (incl. remeasurement through OCl) 152.54 11012
Profit/ (loss) from Joint Venture (1.01) (1.49)
Income from Partnership (775.79) (1,788.71)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 5,326.51 (704.11)
Adjusted for :
Trade Receivables (908.14) [51.36)
Other Financial Assets 184.68 468.28
Non Financial Assets (5,387.93) 311.09
EWS/LIG Units 652.77 (417.27)
Inventories (28,192.54) (50,619.55)
Other Financial Liabilities 2,269.85 481.33
Customer Advances 26,105.53 42,195.63
Non Financial Liabilities 732.83 249.70
Trade Payables 1,038.31 239.37
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 1,820.88 (7,846.89)
Direct Taxes paid / adjusted (662.30) (260.07)
Cash flow before exceptional items 1,158.58 (8,106.96)
Exceptional ltems - (425.90)
Net cash from Operating activities (A) 1,158.58 (8,532.86)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Property,plant & equipment (2,113.74) (545.28)
Sale of Property, plant & equipment 291.79 121.46
Net Purchase/ sale of Investments 3,939.81 (2,616.37)
Interest Income 485.37 458.87
Other Income from Long Term Investments 590.54 334.93
Net Cash from investing activities (B) 3,193.77 (2,246.39)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from long term and other borrowings 2,039.19 10,835.32
Payment,/ Madification of Lease Liabilities (203.94) (294.95)
Interest on Lease Liabilities (64.18) (139.70)
Interest Paid (2,697.93) (1,561.59)
Dividend paid (511.76) (818.83)
Change in Minority Interest 1.01 1.81
Net Cash used in Financing activities (C) (1,437.61) 8,122.06
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+ B+ C) 2,914.74 (2,657.19)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 12,711.23 15,368.42
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 15,625.96 12,711.23

01. Proceeds from long term and other borrowings are shown net of repayment.
02. Cash and Cash equivalents includes other bank balances

In terms of our report of even date attached herewith

For B Chhawchharia & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 305123E Vishal Gupta Varun Gupta Sonal Mattoo
(Managing Director) (Whole-time Director) (Independent Director)

Abhishek Gupta DIN 00087939 DIN 01666653 DIN 00108785

Partner

Membership No: 529082 Nitin Sharma Vikash Dugar

Place: New Delhi (Company Secretary) (CFO)

Date: 30™ May, 2023



d ashiana

you &re in safe hands

ASHIANA HOUSING LIMITER

Arfd. T, 5F fuperaie, dESC, Chowdglian Aoad, Kkt - 700071
Heged ot 2304, Soahiotn Parh, Saver Dhemioe Cartra, tsker, diavs Ol 110017

Eekepho=t raumib=t- : 0N 1-GLE2EEET. Py 01102628207
RETIigd d i, irsped bar ¢ o bl nup S Bhags] ho e i g G

WUENTAE o B s sdelm KWL LT
G L s B P CO A 0E g

LA | TED FIN AR CIEL REGLILTE FIOR THE QUBFTEN ARG BB BACRTHE MDD Of 5457 DEC5EEgGEA 4793

APA e Lo, e ot EPe3

14

1%

136

IpeTre Poam Qe sl i
Pl RE Sl STt T T DY D e
fr) dapnTes e Mpmaserhg P
B R e eran
T i Dol

[T T
) Peopect Exporumar
i Purcheses H it Ao E L 5 GhiE
izl ChuaWle A cuavelitahg
fEl Erplopees LEnptts ogmvige
for] D ALALS aveu - el s S IR L
P B (T
il Celsh Eepebiglin

Tl i B v
Proht s [Loaw| Balors By puocatsama ard Twe |47
Enciptizsinl Hm
ot (L] baloer Tea FA4]
T Epp2risE
B g i ] (" Lw Pijraigt

oLl

CHhar comgeraten com eyl spa s
[Enbey ol T |

P £ ooy of B e Tl e
o3| sy et Bt fre et | F 034+

P coll sty ey i [oll1
(IFmt i ol K5 27 i)

|
| Cichar gy oy [yoefyeng Ausupenn Ay panssj

Esrrangs po- rhars feaicras wrbrasrshread g comal
|ed P 3y mact” | snru sl sl

IE]] Pt

(17— TH ]

Earmirsm por rhare e er aer sy £area)
|l A 34 danh| [ arnpabged )

8 Heer
bl Jdbred
Ashianz Hawgireg Llrbad

3{kt, Sothesn Pack. Sabuet Digrict Conked,
Gotcgt, Maw Dehi 110 D17 T- 211 4265 4365, 7 011 4365 4200
£ etk dipthuadifonping om, WY SETEMSERRREIN J C0
Fipgd. Chilpe. SF Everesr, 46 C Chavwringias Fosd. Kikaa, Wias Bengel - 5030 071

CIN- 1 OO E SSEPLLOACEEA

Lo g Fpforn
W S
Guarar oded | daorcodo i anded RarmfAzmihe Ended | fbmfdonlhe Erge | TR T
| L A ] L sl el * Lot chlacefh et weth | Lk Hom it Im

R R P [ HH] Al 30 AP0 AR D0EE CLRE N o = = - j1.l'.'|:l2¢|.2!_
[1-R-E o esa LR 1 LL-Relr ) od S97 KR

rra 118 oag a3 L= i.262

-1 ] A57 A 1473 17 1 dag

1E.8497 13183 ThEE3 +1.X96 o gty 38500

10 154 L= 8 Sd oy T 25 Mg AR 448

4 % 3575 4908 13 209 8 455 13 8
13.255) I0L0TS [l 2 1. ddF ¢ 18, TS0y a7, S
1,184 1.273 aLp 508 o853 9 5%

am7 - 137 ol agr e

% LRl -4 TE8 L33 fror 8

1,350 T, 205 171 a4.097 PR e [ s
13,88 THERT IWIET LLE 24 maa 13088
2ELE - - rafe e 213 A7

g by 2 0 19 T w13 =Nk ]

543 oFR = LX-t 27 =Hr

==ty al o L r] LR .77 =1

e b J ] 5 =X E-1- -1

o E oy Ly =y L 1888 g. rat

010 a0 EY. oo 47 g0dr

b T )

2= =B o Ex = i/ o/

a5 = B2 fa k) LRl ) i 27

£ e F=y . oga E2G I 75| 2ra

=, 5 =53 ! 5.-93_ -EE"F l_ I T | 2rd

ASHIANA HOUSING LIMITED

..'._.'
s
ot

Pl
o

Director



fandaicm

e yrichmo gl i Bl et ool il |l RS
2192 .0 _SdeAaed a1 13.kg 3143 2023 AR L o] REI.EIE.E_I:E'!I

L B iny Gowtr randubidn & B & 5 aqe & S 5 e =28
" ICast By T3 b 217 oLg o i e g3 a p=F|
" Dl | el G [ B B ok - .34 287 g2 2.a 733
17 P T TR S e o T & de q 53 -] & EE o BA 52 a0
13 Ion MWT, A o 181 . 1 58 A 1 88
1% Lt Enrie ke B ook el gy ol 1 e =T s - a.aa oS [l oE
= Bl THEAC T8 A2 E PEECLHIBR AR D

1 Car yTos LiabLyralos [ o R [N =) £.897 o.8x [l S
FE] ToLi] chietn P B4 L | el Pt ks Fala. ] el Fadni 105 [ngnle} Felpl-|
By CHHET ki PUDD

L | mmyarm | ety Tombeiniut vy Fall s [ s Py o7 o a3 5z o747
25 Dyseria g P egn L% 21, 8% 11.83% 73 55% L) 1309 15 Sth
£8 P, ik P g ) b 12y Fa7m T ) T . &% AT
zr ste Wil th D 73865 TE &7 oo B 457 g

ASHIANA HGPSIMG LIMITED

b o

Direstof




H Ko

A oshiona

ASHIANA HOLISING LIMITED

Ragd CHI - SF dyareat, 35,6, Chevatasiho Roed, Holbaes s Faoor
Hiad .. 304, Sourilbarh Park, Sabet Decrcr Gerace. Eaom, Toew Gty 180002
Terspreane eunnr : Ol TS hd el Py 01 -0 00

EHhrin] @marl * = =07 1R & 0N 2FrREn A R humR g S
TN b o - e Jrpbmg rradhasa gan g G 0T
CIN . LTa1080wE 1t - Cud Sl

you are in safe hands

LIMOand TED FELASACIS), FESLATE FOA THE DLMRTEA SNIG MUMG MORTHE GROEE G 31 5T [Rriknli 703

S

0

11

i

138

oo Irom Cigar i il

Iaf el Uk oy [owin el Bung
Wk AmanlhE bovin PlceihirEhe Feet
lgf  Prlear ceoyne
Tota! ncome
En e ek
[T P Capsmnycy
My otttk M Aol ks
Icf CItarngge v Mo £ 5
7 Fgkenca BiHth fadache:
¢ [eyTEoms AnT Frne ko EeLeaser
fir] ot Cuir
Iy Ocher Expirres
Tim s Eu e

Pt s | in | lpm it [ oriode 1o il i ks P £ ot Tt - B
E=Cp e by

P |t | el et T |34

Tajavpurany

Fiml o' by |Lows| For Elee Paroal [3HD

PPk 1 bk ST, E R Lol riak]
[Phr of T3]

P co=brabinp Mowrt
Trg BHhar Gapmp ra ey e leccrm [1 =02

Faud-up muey dwrs cazlal
(e Wk of Tl G- anch)]

Crifuar Bepmity fa r= bathieg Firuntuntions. R dmrots]

S ek o el 1 g o b Lty by & e |
ot By @5 mach] Lot 4 fremimd |

[+ (1%

L) Miae-d

B ey ppb frsr i Pulmiod [ H et s e ol Cagty i Pl |
[k ME F/- rmch) no mmousd el

e B

L] el

UMA = Let2n et B

Covchod abrd — ]
- HMire Momha Brp Mol ha Perararrem T rwr |
el et e B N7 Rl e
pitensettt Y WL ctpuipliots B (I [Wahariops | (oucied] | pasdwed]
BT WOBECED | 0% TEEGGE | J119A0ES | T0APO0DGW | I1osE0dd
B RT Mas 12 753 &4, 770 24908 FF o
35 15 e A e FrE
437 53 £ 1,768 T 343 1752
18,525 B ACE ALEI1 FHLBSE aCEE 45813
s r, 48 T e 33,07z | e5s0s 45323
a073 LR e AT 10 58 & and 13588
[3.258 TS [« 075! 1,95 - W SEE]
7447 LT 1A .55 Fee7 L
2545 F irs Ao EuT 841
5 57 B ™ L2 A
T.857 Ak ) LI o e i 4 73ar
124 11244 13 365 e EER L) 38,088
=) A% 1o LR =283 | D438
Ee JEN 1o d.awd -y 3432
AR a8 b= W9y a3k L4k
& Tk oras &5 & B2 1.7E Z.ras
2o 7 o 7| =0 a1
i}
2808 F L 2,98 T 828 28
i B FRTE 2.CTiF £04T E.pa7
.l
FAy axrs ;a7 [ LIy ¥ar
£ 7z C 87 & A =" 28t
=258 ) a.a1 & 5 175 < ar
EEE EEr as) EATH 1y #Hr |

Ashlana Housing Limited

30, Sowaherny Park, Sakat iscreac Canitra,
Eaher Mew Ozl <10 017 T: D11 4285 42ET. F M1 4265 4200
E: caleeeBrEhHIEgoom. WY mpianshousog ot

Pl (e THF Evarest, <480 Chawransghen P, kolcrtn, WWesl Bengal - 700 071

Cik LA OB SREFLCOM0aEA

ASHIANA HOUSING LIMITED

Direclar



Toir sl il

B I'd_uli:i-:

— arciare Cuwartct pdos | Gumtararded | Duleltt mdd Erden e e | P b
e sl G L | WL R ik ad | [Lin Aertitazgy Frafp

= i IR 09 foan I 1AEET R For k] 31AEEET | 040 ECED
14 TRy BN 530 Lo 28 458 Fd47
4L Dbty it LY o220 Lrg=viy &g nEs 24
" Dcbe MW CERIrEgE Tan afr T, atE < &g ¥ O L3z
10 Inlererl ervics covmrsg rrdio a3 B. o I3 OF &85 278 2 25
o] Cartare ki rén 1.E1 173 1T 173 169
1= Leng biem dabr wa werbmg cnptod e s a P a8 o2 LRt o2 e l=u]
=] Bord gt 1g qzcpprer g b raba

1 Carrarc Ll rads L5E o&* o483 O G o685
T Tomdl A vt boLTel B o) TRy o8 (n Juky oag 0. g Ealal:]
F [iwh Lyrw wrno - rpbo

LA LR L P b O30 £ o o 32 oig 0.3
O epr g reg rurgla |t mml 77 Ak i3 0gh td 518 BT 1g 8%
e Fhn. gk e ghn [ T S5% FFEN f - &80 huloga Ly
¥ KT Marth 75375 G n) Fq 813 ;RE2ME .31 b 0 )

ASHIANA HOUSING LIMITED

THrmC ol




d ashiona

STATILNA B SEET 5 RS you are in safe hands
- BT I ks
Ilareta i K e kg
L LTaIIET Ein e | dana - Bt ;
i 143 B | mirceans ai12aner BRE R F T
Liirdlrg i3 | GmpEm | [1T].]""17.] [1F ]
n SECETE | |
1 e £ Lot i1 AT HIE |
W PN, S ey YT T £3's §.532 E.aag AE. Ll
b Ca vt e A S ] ]
R T L = L LB 2458 &R LI
i Eeaar L) )
r L g Ry Jd ol a5 Ed
b frcargy b casrs e iz rap]
o Lreard Azl e 2 Ha P
It Fepole iy
[ Eremveloaars 1 sohudoesan [ £
il T ey ¥ ¥ oI L
fal Tk Stcsem b
fral o vzl meaacs ;i - 1M et ] Fo
A (i Jer dopy tha? . Jig 1-5% iEE'I La1d
o250 R ¥d;: ] 1HR ! 1150
'] b LTS
& FhHash 155507 5] e T 5= 5EQ | #&,84%
b e s
[l P! ee? in mhedear .l amiees d G40 Fc-Tn oy o Bl &40
) R LA Sudih A £ g 2 576 3 50 £ rig
fral P rareithi Adi2 215 237F 233
[l Tadl il Sth b i AA57 o rET QdEd 14820
fr] O B Qe B ] < .oee J443 £ 06
[a]l L s i Add
fab]  QHfRT feliad g oemta AEES d ddr AAGd I odg
GO G B S R 2033 B03 S i
o ke parar araps
) e soh ey gt g 744871 - 10 495 i ]
da] AL s ansa =) 2.2 ]
o] (Ere—s . r LSS Aoy 10358 | Iemd
o770 | L EL-N FRLAT ] . FABR
3 fhed CuriE Lkt bt o uln [ =1 BT 1>
MT, - SESETG ! Rasuel __LRpiel EFNET] 2o |
[ ] AGLATY ARG LLAGIL TR
1 il ey
R R e T oAl cA7 205 gt
b Eer Eooony T . 243 T3.36d Fd.923
G M o Andres e 5
tLahas s Toere | ™
I L ik L |
O P Y
8 Hraneal By
il P g 13 Az ALE fEeata T334 T 5tr
Ja]  Fraoe perdon
i o mom el FpTor ALY ATUl misroTar
Ao of CedEw T IR e $THTAT BT
o FkEETm
fo] - leans Lo 8 =2 a LT
Il Y- gy 17 1pa ER-T0) ool
Il Fresan =T ] hex Anf ARD
£ B oy mhoher 71 11
A T L Ol (P i |
3k | LT WA Fr R
H Nwieses akbdilak ] 1 |
& Finbinh Wi
N EAHAmnGE -] AN -1 - 3 L&
dal O Lalheliids L a4 ] 1%
fa]  Froges Sapabls
D oo iy ol gt i et K- BoT &K wan
- yver of s et e s lEmewer s ATEDR 2 ARE AAR
Ml - Cihht Dbl LA £E0F & 595 EXeH -] £.9659
U e Crorvwm batoda s
oo T Frw T t .ol rig rar rag 4l e i 17 S6E
Ml Bthe ST =15 ELT ERG- -]
£ Prgeiten 153 1.1r t61 e
o Dt Ty Ce0es (M | i Pl
31 HE 1,19 [EET.LT] 1,32034
= orol DAY AMD LS LT G THAGIak s agaad &3y T30 0RE

Ashlana Housing Limited ASHIAMA HOUSING LIMITED

2, Souchern Park Sakeg Clowrics Condre, ‘-.;.f
Saver, Mew Delhe 140 D17 T-0111 4265 4265 F 017 4265 4200 =

E. 9Ekstiaaipanatuii s N oom. W s Rrmng L gin g s T Directar
Fegel, CHice TF Eviras. 45 Chnuninghnen Moed, Kalkess, Yiest Beigel - 700 O™

CIW L0 OSWE 1E8E R COL0EEd



NS 4 dcopmly
Fl

e

11

12

Fla afdud wiirdeDd Ioonoal Fewts sne DUbOssRT o dcc s sl A asnts 33 and Aigumon B2 o e SR At Dl iges &
Curishrawyd i i emesep | Aapeimp, S hpp e rawansd S fuod Cpmemrhas woon manbag hetd nd 12N Fkyeary AT anm
SRt B P B A7 TotieLov-a OF el ekt MBS OnF O ST 09 12, 320 “aloumy ol(RW Thial Wi sl re s B0 o ST e a g
wrin the Ko Acciunmng Stancards [TOT 45) ax praccrbed sl Sycoon 153 oF Ui Compeees A FOT3 Mlkd mth muke 3 06 fhe
D410l Jsh AN Aocorfing SEpEgs: fud, FS & LOMperold (e Looryang Stamiurie) Mireniaani Rl 220

Adieneed of s o Far rprppoonn o rasocusy wa eegpock of Al o Preopnrs o
do b BTG e Che poopdnT of gt A% 115 papenoem T moyniet o sl LD SrGplet 18 MACOOMEAD [ SRR o PR e

abrgaron B et o B b CRheElred & et (OO0 Or SeATes e a0 srdehl o it BN Ghik copiamer afmmar foatrgd of
AR b To D hn 0 F Do Temsnd CHAGEDHT AN Bha o' o chiaerl o Dl FeT ehe Gomoanp b Be ™ o ook S tane
A NN TR W bkt G i O Senlbdnl bt 1 daiovhind GG OF DO RS0 L e Ar dietiylt, i o 4p CaTTiCr oF rashFohon

Tz s G e T rpg Al v P S o et OF Sakeeeg ZART Flemd, SErger] Rd e v udeb.

Fufapckurany
1Az hiarey Mpccproancg Seaarar ELO
2 Latan| Depuicysep Sowgey Lod
A Tognsd Proancs Conrabehs L
& Astvang Amer Cealonea

ik oot vl 08 P e et
1 dahagig Grydesthl CaraiohS
& Maghy Caforiners
O Ay PRERT By
2 Lixpa Ml chimg
5 Fawrs Cledlopws Lmros

JEAM T IR kLTI

P P Of Bee] MHpCd 311

Faeadios usihl HE ST [re FUup s SApGrd e SepiF IR Saphmmy Sty ! iuedai o ARG TIAnE uradae 3 Tho Compeay ko
Ite W CATDTAHE FRCD SR Cdmatnmant o il it peeadel”  Thr Bared' of Craciors of Bhe Covnpity gfts s Ok CTndf
Oeprpiry Contivn ke L] The CODAT il ap che Sompany's andormence 40 slacaies e Hecad bEser o0 pa poabse of
TG R NTRACE PRI

O Scagrepicaliso meo os

Tha geopmnhs mnematinn analsie M CaTuvies Soaiee od AGTCLeeRT dsaals e b Sty s oty of CMTiell a0 GOHET
e, A5 Ol SOyt S AT A CEORTHE OF ro Sarhabe prop ey i ki, o Inl ey are ra sabhe qeopranhe! el
Thersfors che sepmant ~sveme  sageniel Sy egahis Gauers SonTehe fabddms, bofsl moaf Fcu sl &) diuats SPTHIH X R,
PRy LTy Ty e by ol e o S Db (1 Ol G B K,

Rroams B rpbr ¢ & ey by crpgrtmd | Pt Pt Cevrea il s D Dokt - LD wiedied Ber e b dell 10 453% 3023

M secuwrad LTS Ssuand o 208 pode Soves Mo A0 10 PERDTRNT widh 1G4 SEIETIOSOMY havs baan duy subhindd O FELY A
SO033 ACCErEIME. e pre s O OO FRISTE SR e W Toelt W 3 Tk D TR ol Sl fonpeg ol acbuatde By Ghae
fusreie e T s G pmbo- B0

Dl g e ' b grahatiniid vl bick L WRITY S0 sBf]
fhe Loy fies rd urmesel ooy p i sy e

£ oy e m phig o/ Pl re e Gt P Rl caleysl e S bt .
Pl FEurATRANE SO T PGl Rifmphoy Hasarun i ) SEpbolh o Ew il 5 pd AAC0 SRLYTRAT member B8 A S5
[E: oS WGch Apgusss B Pocpher, Caebat Pagampobeer Mooorsk A dralted Jus 12 Buy Jack of P25 M e o agquity dhhdls 1 ddyust
AT i e nd Bhe prmndes nd g A0F ORI 3

AC Ba graveec A fom-Uemerhiin Dol arm Sgoaly Sl e ey fulp uDfn e i plgscs seposd s S ulfas dnochiuitd el
JRmem g Chmewmtrun ow ainm o vhaik pedciias Bl g fir et iderem 35T Sagedanan 53 030 aned Aaga i g 52 474 H Ha S5E 'Lshag
b uiacnia hied i CEaund FQLATHvE ) Bapuianons, S0P15, neaparkasy Fatiie, ' ST AF CihAMion or Yematun s sicustut of
AETLg O rOrEa D 47 Eh Al e e i At (R S TR S s el MACH LT bl R T,

Tt ey bk e il i gt i Ehl QU e A 1 sk Cecamber St
The Sraf-for SUEnes SEed ATmT (e i B Re manoak: aendte dad oo an s Sod WAROBeT ot

s D06 D A GRGTT haAWE B FEQNOET S MRS TR Mo LT T i

Toral e of MeiTors Comants mcane Gy the bt v G5 @0 F SBTICMWIRE Bafrd Jenaing 30 ap rbarad o e P of
M qomrfar DUl o Bhe ol B Mo CtoHeces . 50 SOmpAe e Bl chanesad of nmg B oqundte il B COTEINGTS yeie domee e
rmbTRam RE Utk w58 B doartee o 30er Oemben 32 Furthue o an gen, mrk o Thie fdsdng B2 BTARMHE. © COmHavTh: hasm hin
A oY Shy  CoTae sl Lniles onoree s o s sl vt

Fiyca : Fhannan HPWWMWIHW
Ouee 12tk Fepe sy, 034 o

i
¥ :

Ji
wRALM darhTe

|iaHOLE THWE CYRECTO R



B.Chhawchharia & Co. " DTIS2A- 525, DUF TOWER B, JASCLA DETRICT CEMTEE, JASOLA, NEW DI 1025, INDIA
Chartered Accountants ©T 0 TELRAX[R1-11] 097 BE0 w Webs: waw bochioin

Independent Auditor's Review Beporl vn the Quarierly Unaudited Standalooe Finsncial
Resoles of ¢he Company pwrswant 10 the regmirement of Repgulacion 3.3 aad Repulation 52 of
the 5 EHB1 {Listiag 4*bligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regolations, HH5 a5 ameaded

Tao the Rogrd of Darectoes of Mo ASHLATY HOLPSING LIMITEDR

Yoo have revigwed the avcompanying statemst of wnandilcs stundalons fnancial pezukts of M
ASHIANA LOUSING LIMITED (or the guarter soded December 31, 2023 and vear we date
from Apnh 01, 2023 te December 31, 2023 attached hetewith, being submitted by the Company
parsaant o the requitement of Begolanon 33 and Regalation 32 of the SEBL(Listing Oblizations
urdd Dsebosere Requirementst Begeladions, 2015 as amendad

Thas stalement s the responsihilicy of the Company's kanagement and has heen approved by the
Board of Directons, hay heen prepar2d in accordance weith tha pecogrmition and measurement
prncples lad dwan in Indion Accoumiing Sandard 54, {(IND A5 34) “Imcrim Tinoncial
Freportng”, speeilisdd woder Secion 1335 of the Companies Ao, 2003 @ armended read with
relevanr yules issues thereunder il orher accounting principles senerally accepted in India. Cur
respansiidity 15 b pswee o repart on these financial statements based an our nevigw.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Enpgasement (SEFD 2410,
Rovtew of fatoriie Finpnciof formoion performed B the Indeperdest duiitore of the enrity
issad by e Instinne of Charlered Accountants of [ndio. This standard requires thot we plan and
perform the revicw to obtain moderate assoranes as o whether the Mnancial statements are fiee
of material misseaement. A reviaw Is linired peinianly to inquiries of company personnel aed
and | viical prowedures applied W finaneial dada and thas provide less assuranoe than 2n audit, We
henve pot perforned an audil and accordingly, we do not express an audi opinion.

RAaced on pur review condocted 2z above, mothimg has come te our attention 1hat causes ws m
keheve thor the sccompanying starament of unaddited fimamcial eoulie prepaced m accendance
with appheable Indian nccourting standards and other toccomnized accountng practices and
pfin ies by ol disclosed e Infermarion regeaed © e disclosed in leros of Repulauons 33 and
Regulatiom 52 of the SEHI {Lasting Obligatiens and Disclosure Fequicemems) Regulations, 2015
as amendad, including the manner n which & is w be disclozed, or Ihat it contains any mateyiak
msslalernent.

For B Chhaweh baria & Co.,
Chavtered Aacouptats
Finn Repistration Mo: 303123C

Pipta

Abhishek Gupra
Partner
Pl beership Mo 529082
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B.Chhawchharia & Co.  ousy. 5 0iriowme. imsois bismicr Coire, sasola, sEw DeLs-10025, 0w
Chartarad Accountants - HEFAXFLN] OV S0 Wab ) wwwbooocon

Independent Auditer’s Review Repert on the Cruarterly Unawdited Consolidatod
Financial Results of the {Company pursuant to the sequirement of Regulatiin 33 and
Regulavion 42 of the SEB] (Listing Obligations and Disclesure Requirentemncs)
Regulanions, 241 5 as amended

Fiewiew Baepurk e
The Beard of Lirectors
ks ASHIANA HOUSING LIMITED

1. We have reviewsd the sccompanying sialement of anaudited consolidated finaacial
results of bfs ASITIANA HOUSIMNG LIMITED*"the Tlelding Company ™} and its
subsidiries (i Holding Company wwl 68 subsidianies iogether referred o as e
Ciroup”) and its share of the nei profitiLoss) atter 1ax of it joiotly conirollzd
entities for the quaner ended December, 31, 2023 and vear 1o daie trom April 01,
221t Tlecember 31, 2025 artached herewith, hernp submired by the Haolding
Company pursuant w the regoirement of Repolation 353 and Repalatien 52 of the
SELT {Listing Obligation: and Ddsclesure Beguirements) Regulations, 2013, as
dnended

This saeement 16 the responzibuity of the Holliog Company ™5 Management and has
been appeoved by the kolding company s Boand of Directors. has been prepared in
accordance with the recopnition and measurement principles aid down in Indian
Accounhig Sandard 34, (IME AS 33 “Intorim Financial Reporting™. specificd
undsr Sectton 133 of the Compames Ack 2013 as amewded read with relevant rules
issues therewnder 2ol other acoounting principles generally accepted m India, Our
responsibiliy is o iss02 a report an these Tinancial statemends based on our review.

[

|:'._|_

We conductad our review in aeeordanee with the Standard on Beview Engazement
(SREY AN Revicw of feferis Finenciod inforanation pectored by the hrdipeedent
Aveditors pf the ey issued by the Tostaiwe of Cherered Accountants of India. This
stdidard requices thal we plan and perform the review o obuin moderate assurance
as to whether the francal statements are free of material misstatement. A review is
limited primarily to mquiries of company personnel and analvtical procedures
applied to financial data and thes provides less assorance than an audir. We have not
performed an audit and accordingly, we de not express on audil optrion.

4 We alzo performad procedures In accordance with the SEBI Circular T
CIR/CFDACMDA22HY dated 2%th Barch, 2HS isswed by the SEBl under
repulation 328y of the SEBI iListing Cbhgations and Disclosure Bequircments)
Regulatons, 20145 a4 amended, 1o the ¢xtant applicable.

FOLKATA | NEWDELHI { NAGPUR
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The Siatement in:lodes the results of following citities:
S ubeidinres:
i Topwell Mrogeets Consullant: Limited
ir. Latest Develioers Addvisory Limnsd
. Ashand Mantenanee Serviges LLP
P Asliana Amar Developers

Joindy Conteodled Eniimes:
1, kaicav Developers Limited
i, Ashiana Greenwomd Develupers
i, Wisla Mowsing
iv. Mevha Coloniers
Y. Ashiana danelam Builders
vi, Ashizna Manolam Builders Extenzion

. Based v our review conducted v above, pothing has come o our atentien that
causes we 1o beligve that the accompanying staeent of unaudined financial resuhs
prepared in accordance with applwable ndian sccoumimz standands and olleey
recoznized accounling praclices and policies has not disclosed the inlormaticn
required o be disclosed i teoms of Repulations 33 and Repulation 52 of the SERI
{Listing, Obblipations ond Disclosure Reguitements) Bepolationa, 2015 a5 amended,
inc e e edamies i welioch 3 e e disclosed, or that f contaios aoy material
misstatement.

For B, Clihawehkaria & Co.
U hanered ACcolkntants
Firm Bewistration MNo- 305123E

gtz

Ablahzk Gupta
Fartner
Belembrersnip Mo, 32H00E2

Place. Mew Delhi
Dtz 120 Febauary, 2024
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B.Chhawchharia & CO.  vi5-55 0 owes, 12500 DEmIcT CEHRE FASCLA, MEW DELH-1100Z5, DL,
{hartered Accountants TEEFAX(F1-1]| 4037 5600 » Wb | wivt Deconoun

Independent Anditor’s Cerfificate on the Statemen! ol malntesance of security cover in respeel
of orher secured debt as af 31" December 202,

L. This Cenbicate i dssusd in aceerdance it the terms of our engagement lelier witly AsThiana
Mowsiae Litnited {the “company ™} and pursbant o secorilies st Exchange Board of India {Listing
Oibligations and Dizclosure Bequirements) Bzgulations. 215 and SEBI erecular: SEBI: HG MIRS DY
MIRSD CRADTS CIR/AM220T daed 19 Mayp 2023 (Coltectively refecred to az ™ Regulalions™).

Y. We, M5 R Chhswchharia & Co., Statitory Auditors of the company, have examined the detakls
given in the amached starement (referced oz the "Stolement”} prepared by the management, stomped
by us dor Dlentifcation plupaess, cimtinimg.

a. Computation of Security eover as o 31 December 2023 and

b Details of book value of assets ol liabilities and the market volue oF the charged pssets of the
Company, wherever applicabls, ason 3§ Drevember 2023 as per e Rewulaivn:

Management's Responsibiliby

} The comphance wath the Begulanons & other applicable circulor the werms & covenonts of the
wiher debt and calcolatiun ol secorty cover as given ur e attached Seatement is Qe reeaputisibility off
the company’s management, This responsibibty includes the design,  anplementation,  and
mainfenarnee of miemnal confrols relevant to the preparation and presemation of the Statement. The
manatenend is alsa responcible o enenring thar the company complies with the cequirements,
ncluding these given in the Regulations and provides all relevant infoimation 1o SEBI,

Auditor's Responsibility

4. Chir responsibibity for the pirpose of this cedificate is w express limited assurance as o whether
anything has conng o our otigalion that caoses ug 1o believe that the book valuss 25 considered inthe
Satewment, i relalion 1o the compuuation ol Securty cover Dave nor been aicurate |y eattacied from
the wpaudised standalons financial information as at and for the period ended 31 December 2023 or
hat the computation thereof'is arithmeticaily inaccurace.

3. The procedures performed in 2 limiled asmarance engagement vary in naturs and fiming from, and
are less i extenf than for, a reasonable assurance engagament; and consequently. the level of
assarance obiained in a himued assuronee engagemenl is substapttally lower than the assuranec st
wipld have been cbliined had o redsonable sssuranee eozagetnent been petforoed. The proveduees
selected depend on the audimt's judgment, meluding the assessment of 1he ardas where a matenal
misstatemyent of th2 subject matter infarmation is likeiy w anse.

KOLKATA | NEWDELHI | MNAGFPUR



&, Far the purpose ol ound examindtion. we have velizd on the representation reccived from the
management [or complereness of miprmation @nd records provided to uws and camicd ot following
procedures:

a) Obiained the unaudited standalone fingna ial informatean of the company 4 at and for the period
ended 3 December 2023.

b Traced the amauncs in the Statemeani. in relation to the computanos of Security cover, [0 the
unaudiled standalane finanmal information of the company o at and for the period cnded 31
December 20235,

o) Erswred arithnstical scoucacy of the competation ol sscurity cover in e Satenen;
d) Obtained pecessary prpresentations fom e managemens.

T We kave carried oot our verificatian in accordance with the 'Guidance Note on Beports oc
Crertificoles for Special Purposss (Revised 2076F issued by the Dnstitote of Chartered Sccoamants of
Inddia § 1 AT} 0 50 Far as applicable for the purpose af this Cerlificate. Ths Guidanee Note requires
Ihat we coomply with the cthival reguirements of the Code of Ethics 1ssved by the 3041

§ Wz have complied with the relevant appheable requirements of the Standard on Lality Conteal
{S0CY L Cuality Contra? for Firms that Pecform Augits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Informatien, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements issued b the FOAL

Conclusion

9. Based on oue ecamination apd e procedures performeal as per paragraph © above, cvidences
ahtained, and the information and gxplanalions given 1o uz, along with the Jepwesentations provided
by the management, nothing has come w our atention that causcs us to belicve that the details
included i the Statement with respect 1 compliance with the financial covenants sad the anounts
uged i the compaiation of such fanancial covenants aze nol in agreement, i all material respects,
with the standalone nnaudited fimancial results of the Company, underlying bocks of aconont and
alher relesont récords and documents maiotansd by the Company bor the quortér ended 31 December
23, or that thie calculauon thereol is arithmetivally inacuurale,

Reatwiction on Use

L0 Char weork was perfommed solely w0555 you in mesting vour responsibilities in relation o vour
compliance with the SEB| requiraiments. O obligativns in respeal of this cenlilicale ste entirzh
separate Irom, and our responsibility end liabiity are i oo way changed by, any glhér role we may
have as statutory auditors of Ue company or othenvise, Nothine in this certificate, nor anythine said
or dene in the course of or in conneclion with the services that are the subject of this certificate, will
cafend any duty ofcare :n connestion with the statueory avdit and other atrest function camied out by
s U1 our CApacity as srator) andivors of the company.



Ll- This eertifivate 15 addressed to the Egard of Ebreciors and provided to 1he Company salely foe
subimissoon to the SEBL pursaant to the requirements as mentioned in parsoraph 2 above and should
not he used, rxferred o or distribuied for any reher puepnse ar tooany ather person wiloml ooy pracor
wiitier eongeml, Accondingly. we do not accepr or assume sy labilite or any duty of carc for any

olher purpuse ur Wwoany ather person W whom this cecificate 15 shown or ino whose hands it may
COme Wil Ur prior consent in wiiling.

For B.CHHAWCHHARIA & CO,
Chrriored doconainoaH

Firm Bewisiration MNo: 30E125E

@'«kﬂ/‘?}*

Abdashek Cupto

Partner
Merbership Mo, 3283

[rate; 12" Febmaary, 2024
Flace: Maw Dl
UDING:1H519083 BKCBVESU D)
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ANNEXURE IX
To,
BSE Limited
14" Floor, BSE Limited,
Phiroze Jegjeebhoy Towers,

Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

Dear Sir / Madam,

Sub.: Issue by Ashiana Housing Limited (“Company” or “lssuer”) of Unsecured, Rated, Listed,
Redeemable, Non- Convertible Debentures (the“ NCDs”) of face value of Rs. 1,00,000 each (Rs. One
Lakh) each aggregating up to Rs. 5.6 crores (Rs. Five Crores Sixty Lakh only) to be issued on a
private placement basis (the “Issue”’) to belisted on BSE Limited.

We Vistra I TCL (India) Limited (herein after referred to as “ Debenture Trustee”), the Debenture Trustee to the
above-mentioned forthcoming issue state as follows as on date:

1) We have examined documents pertaining to the said issue and other such relevant documents, reports and
certifications as provided to us.

2) On the basis of such examination and of the discussions with the Issuer, its directors and other officers, other
agencies and on independent verification of the variousrelevant documents, reports and certifications provided
to us.

We confirm that:

a) All disclosuresmadeintheO rrvd ‘ or GID/KID with respect
to the debt securities are true, fair and adequate to enable the investors to make awell informed decision
asto the investment in the proposed issue as on date.

b) Issuer has disclosed al covenants proposed to be included in debenture trust deed (including any side
letter, accel erated payment clause etc.), in the privateplacement-memerandum-or GID/KID.

c) Issuer has given an undertaking that debenture trust deed shal be executed before filing of listing
application.

For Vistral TCL (India) Limited

—. ¥ . .__-_-'__
N ey

Jatin Chonani
Compliance Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: December 01, 2023
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Registered office: Corporate office :
The IL&FS Financial Centre, The Qube, 6th floor, 602 Tel : +91 22 2850 0028
Plot No. C- 22, G Block, 6th Floor A wing Hasan pada road , Fax : +9122 2850 0029
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mittal industrial estate Marol , Email: mumbai@vistra.com Vistra ITCL (India) Limited

Mumbai 400051, India Andheri (East) Mumbai 400059 www.vistraitcl.com Corporate Identity Number (CIN):U66020MH1995PLC095507
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ANNEXURE X

Sl. Name of Related Nature of Transaction Amount
No. Party 01.04.2022
to
31.03.2023
)] Ashiana Establishment Charges Received 30,95,140
Maintenance
ServicesLLP Referral Charges 4,80,000
Rent for Sample/ Show Flat & Sales Office | 2,79,583
Hotel and Club Income 6,89,952
Commission 14,750
Business Promotion 26,10,222
Maintenance char ges 2,68,15,852
Electricity Expenses 14,84,670
Staff Welfare 2,39,629
Support Service 92,39,996
Consultant and Professional Charges 2,23,020
Investment in LLP 3,10,00,000
Investment repaid by LLP 26,00,00,000
Others 1,73,427
i) L atest Developers Establishment Charges Received 12,000
Advisory Ltd
iii) Topwell Projects Establishment Char ges Received 12,000
Consultants Ltd.
iv) VistaHousing Establishment Char ges Received 76,11,450
Sale of Materials 84,432
Purchase of Material 98,360
V) ) Mr. Vishal Gupta (Managing Director)
Remuneration 1,64,00,000
Commission 33,18,900
i) Mr. Ankur Gupta (Jt. Managing Director)
Remuneration 1,64,00,000
Commission 33,18,900
iii) Mr. Varun Gupta (Whole Time Director)
Remuneration 1,64,00,000
Commission 33,18,900
iv) Mr. Hemant Kaul (Independent Director)
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Commission
Sitting Fee

3,26,580

Remuneration
V) Ms. Sonal Mattoo (Independent Director)
Commission -
Remuneration 18,00,000
Sitting Fee -
Vi) Mr. Narayan Anand (I ndependent
Director)
Remuneration 8,00,000
Sitting Fee -
Vii) Mr. Abhishek Dalmia (Independent
Director)
Remuneration 8,00,000
Sitting Fee -
viii) Mrs. Piyul Mukherjee (Independent
Director)
Remuneration 8,00,000
Sitting Fee -
IX) Vikash Dugar (KMP)
Remuneration/Commission 95,32,184
Sale of Flat 43,68,800
X) Nitin Sharma (KMP)
Remuneration 16,50,000
S Name of Related Nature of Transaction Amount
No. Party 01.04.2021
to
31.03.2022
(1) Ashiana Establishment Char ges Received 30,78,600
Maintenance
ServicesLLP
Support Services 92,40,000
Staff Welfare & Business Promotion 35,55,365
Expenses paid
Recovery of Branch Office Expenses 53,27,333
Referral Charges 5,29,662
Upkeep Inventory Charges 1,17,29,632
Repair & Maintenance Building 1,02,38,202
Commission 2,10,964
Hotel & club income 4,15,120
Other Income 36,471
(i) L atest Developers Establishment Char ges Received 12,000
Advisory Ltd
(i) | Topwell Projects Establishment Char ges Received 12,000
Consultants L td.
(@iv) Kairav Developers | Investment in Debentures 10,80,00,000
Limited
(@iv) OPG Realtors Rent Paid 2,21,18,400

Limited




(V) KarmaHospitality | Management Fee Paid 23,47,355
LLP
(vi) Woodstory LLP Purchase of Material 1,42,32,556
Repairs & Maintenance 9,75,250
Business Promotion Expenses 55,382
(vii) | BG EstatesPrivate | Rent paid 3,84,000
Limited
(viii) i) | Mr. Vishal Gupta (Managing Director)
Salary 1,20,00,000
ii) | Mr. Ankur Gupta (Joint Managing
Director)
Salary 1,20,00,000
iii) | Mr. Varun Gupta (Whole Time Director)
Salary 1,20,00,000
lv) | Mr. Hemant Kaul (Independent Director)
Remuneration 8,00,000
Sitting Fee 3,000
V) | Ms. Sonal Mattoo (I ndependent Dir ector)
Remuneration 18,00,000
Sitting Fees 4,000
vi) | Mr. Abhishek Dalmia (Independent
Director)
Remuneration 8,00,000
Sitting Fees 3,000
vii) | Mr. Narayan Anand (Independent
Director)
Remuneration 8,00,000
Sitting Fees 5,000
viii) | Ms. Piyul Mukherjee (Independent
Director)
Remuneration 8,00,000
Sitting Fees 5,000
iX) | Mr. Vikash Dugar (KMP)
Remuneration 72,92,172
X) | Mr. Nitin Sharma (KMP)
Remuneration 15,00,000
S Statement of Nature of transaction 01%April
No. Related Party 2020 to 31%
Transactions March 2021
(Standalone)
) Ashiana Establishment Char ges Received 32,34,600
Maintenance
ServicesLLP
Support Services 92,40,002
Staff Welfare & Business Promotion 32,58,307
Expenses paid
Electricity Charges Received 41,95,443
Referal Charges 35,000
Upkeep Inventory Charges 1,95,84,532
Repair & Maintenance Building 1,19,47,996




Sale 32,731
Hotel & club income 3,11,129
(i) L atest Developers Establishment Char ges Received 12,000
Advisory Ltd
(iii) | Topwel Projects Establishment Char ges Received 12,000
Consultants L td.
(v) OPG Realtors Rent Paid 1,65,18,400
Limited
Sale of Fixed Asset 18,00,00,000
(vi) KarmaHospitality | Management Fee Paid 13,17,777
LLP
(vi) [ Woodstory LLP Purchase of Material 59,68,703
Repairs & Maintenance 2,95,679
Business Promotion Expenses 1,58,650
(viii) | BG EstatesPrivate | Trade Receivable 1,96,888
Limited
(ix) i) | Mr. Vishal Gupta (Managing Director)
Salary 60,00,000
i) | Mr. Ankur Gupta (Joint Managing
Director)
Salary 60,00,000
iii) | Mr. Varun Gupta (Whole Time Director)
Salary 60,00,000
Iv) | Mr. Hemant Kaul (Independent Director)
Sitting Fee 800,000
V) | Ms. Sonal Mattoo (I ndependent Dir ector)
Sitting Fees 18,00,000
vi) | Mr. Abhishek Dalmia (Independent
Director)
Sitting Fees 8,00,000
vii) | Mr. Narayan Anand (Independent
Director)
Sitting Fees 3,00,000
viii) | Ms. Piyul Mukherjee (Independent
Director)
Sitting Fees 4,00,000
iX) | Mr. Vikash Dugar (KMP)
Salary 65,72,184
X) | Mr. Nitin Sharma (KMP)
Salary 13,11,312




General Information Document for issue of listed unsecured non-
convertible debentures on private placement basis
For private circulation only
16 February, 2024

ANNEXURE Xl

PROJECT DETAILS

Project Name and

L ocation

Upcoming Project for which Non-Convertible Debentures are being issued on Leasehold
land admeasuring approximately 17.9 (seventeen point nine) acres, situated at Mahindra
World City (Residential Sector of Township), Paranur Village, Chengalpattu Taluk,
Chengalpattu District, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, within the registration district of
Chengalpattu and Sub Registration District of Joint |1 Chengalpattu. Further details are
given in Annexure V1 above.

Gestation Period of the
project

The expected timelines of the Project are as follows:

1. Project Construction Commencement Date - March 2024
2. Project Construction Completion Date March 2030

Extent of progressmade
in the Project

15.64 acres of the Project Land has been acquired by the Issuer on leasehold basis and
boundary wall is completed.

Deadlines for | The Project is expected to be completed in June, 2030.

completion of the

proj ect

Summary of Project |Note: Out of the total project land measuring 17.90 acres, lease deed for 15.64

Appraisal Report, if any

acres have been executed in favour of the Issuer on September 30, 2021, land
admeasuring 2.01 acres of land has been acquired through lease deed dated 17
October 2022, and land admeasuring 0.25 acres is a Paramboke land.

Schedule of
implementation of
project

1.

2. Obtaining of all the approvalsregquired for construction and development of the
Project: February 2024

3. Project Construction Commencement Date: March 2024

4. Completion of Structurework:

Phase |: June 2025, Phase I1: June 2026, Phase Il1: June 2027, Phase 1V: June 2028,
Phase V: June 2029

4, Obtaining Completion Certificate: June 2030

5. Grace period for obtaining Completion Certificate: June 2030

6. Commencement of Hand Over/ Receipt of Occupancy Certificate: June 2030

Note: These aretentative dates as project yet to be commenced, they may vary in actual.
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